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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS FROM THE PRESIDENT AND CEO

Dear Fellow Stockholder:

Over the past several years, First Industrial has been hard at work implementing a strategy that is dedicated to serving the
industrial real estate needs of corporate customers, The benefit of this strategy was evident in First Industrial’s 2006 financial
results, Funds from operations (FFO) grew 14% to $4.13 per share/unit, well above the $4.00 midpoint of our initial guidance
range. First Industrial calculates FFO by adding depreciation and amortization of real estate ($3.30 per share) to and deducting
accumulated depreciation and amortization on real estate sold ($1.21 per share) from net income ($2.04 per share).

Growth was broad based across the company. Net operating income grew 9% as occupancy rose to 94% at year end. For the
eighth year in a row, we achieved record net economic gains, reaching $124 million in 2006. And FFO from joint ventures grew
more than threefold to $53 million. These accomplishments were reflected in our total return to stockholders for the year that
exceeded 30%.

Strategy Formulated Around Growing Customer Demand

Our strategy is straightforward. We provide industrial real estate solutions for every stage of a customer’s supply chain. To
implement this strategy, we closely monitor the major trends influencing customer demand. Then, we align our human and
financial capital accordingly. In doing so, we have created a powerful franchise. Customers and real estate brokers know that
First Industrial has the expertise and resources to solve virtually any industrial real estate challenge. We acquire, develop,
redevelop, own and manage all of the major property types in the industrial supply chain — from research and development
facilities — to bulk and regional warehouses. And through the dedication of our employees, we have continued to eamn leading
customer service scores from independent research firm, Kingsley Associates.

By delivering comprehensive solutions and leading customer service across a national platform, First Industrial has grown
to become the largest acquirer of industrial real estate from third parties for the last two years. As we complete the asset
management plans for each investment, we harvest the value created through sales so that we can reinvest the proceeds back into
our business. In total, we completed 256 investment and sale transactions in 2006 comprising 416 properties. Therefore, on
average we bought or sold an industrial property each and every business day in 2006.

The demand for industrial real estate is being driven by several factors beyond the overail growth of the economy. First and
foremost is the increasing volume of containerized cargo at U.S. ports caused by rising international trade. Global.production
-and distribution patterns continue to evolve as companies seek lower manufacturing costs, frequently in offshore markets. The
result is that the flow of containerized cargo in the U.S. is projected to rise nearly 9% this year, creating greater demand for large
distribution facilities. ) ‘

Growing supply chain complexity is the second major driver of customer demand. Astute companies are not merely using
more and bigger distribution centers to handle a growing level of containerized cargo. They are also imptementing port
diversification strategies to address complicated rail, trucking and labor issues, which allow them to be less dependent on
individual distribution channels that may bottleneck their supply chains. This trend has created heightened demand for industrial
space at altemative ports, as well as major inland ports, particularly those that are near intermodal sites with sophisticated rail
and trucking solutions that speed merchandise to end users.

"The third major factor influencing the demand for industrial space is demographic trends. Population growth in Southern
regions of the nation such as Southern California, Phoenix, Texas, and Southern Florida is increasing at faster rates than the rest
af the country. Consequently, the demand for industrial real estate is greater because more goods need to be created, produced,
assembled and stored to serve the rising populations in these areas.

Growing Our Financial and Intellectual Capital Resources

To address these growth trends that are driving customer demand for industrial space, First Industrial has been expanding its
financial and human capital resources. During the past two years, First Industrial has added $4.5 billion of new joint venture
capacity to serve a wide spectrum of customer needs. Over the same time period, we have increased our workforce by 40%.

In July 2006, First industrial formed a new $950 million Strategic Land and Development Joint Venture — the third venture
created with the California State Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS). The purpose of this latest venture is to purchase large,
strategic land sites in major industrial markets, principally coastal and inland ports, that are experiencing the fastest growth from
international trade. By anticipating demand in high growth markets, First Industrial will be ready with new space, at the right
time, in the right locations.

The first investment in the Strategic Land and Development Joint Venture was a 356 acre land parcel where First Industrial
will develop the new DalPort Business Park — strategically lecated in an emerging South Dallas County submarket near a
recently opened intermodal facility and major trucking routes. First Industrial will initially develop a 500,000 square-foot
speculative warehouse on the site, and the new park will have capacity for total development exceeding six million square feet of




'

industrial space. Dailas has become an increasingly important inland port for customers and we will develop a combination of
build-to-suits and speculative distribution facilities to meet anticipated customer demand fueled by growing international trade
and favorable demographic trends in Texas.

In December 2006, we increased the size of our initial CalSTRS joint venture, FirstCal 1, to $1.6 billion. This venture is
focused on the development, redevelopment and repositioning of industrial property, primarily in infill locations across the
country. The venture was formed in March 2005 and has already invested more than $600 million. Investments have been
focused in leading growth markets, such as Southern California and Phoenix.

An example of a recent investment in this venture is the purchase of an 88 acre land site strategically located in the Port of
Houston between the Barbour’s Cut Container Terminal and the new Bayport Container Terminal that opened in February 2006.
First Industrial will develop the new $55 million InterPort Business Park totaling 1.3 million square feet of bulk distribution
space at this site, which also provides intermodal distribution given its proximity to Union Pacific rail lines. The new Bayport
Container Terminal will have capacity for seven cargo ships and a maximum capacity of 2.3 million twenty-foot equivalent units
(TEUs). This represents a two hundred percent increase over the port’s current container capacity. It will support the rising
volume of containerized cargo that is flowing through Houston, the fourth largest city in the country and an increasingly
important coastal port given its expanding rail, air, and highway infrastructure to distribute goods.

To grow our investments in our joint ventures, as well as our balance sheet, we have increased cur talent base in high growth
markets, particularly Southern California, Phoenix, Texas and Florida. We have also opened new markets, including Seattle, that
will be significant beneficiaries of growing international trade and supply chain reconfiguration projects.

While development and redevelopment represent a major portion of our joint venture investments for customers, First
Industrial has also created a $900 million co-investment program with UBS Wealth Management that facilitates net lease
investments. A recent example is the sale-leaseback transaction with Volkswagen. In the transaction, First Industrial acquired a
one million square-foot portfolio covering multiple markets — Dallas/Fort Worth, Chicago/Milwaukee, and Toronto — and
then leased back the distribution centers to Volkswagen. Total net lease investments in our co-investment ventures are more than
$600 million.

In total, joint venture assets exceed $1.8 billion at year end with more than 250 properties, 26 million square feet of
industrial space, and 1,600 acres of developable land that can accommodate an additional 32 million square feet of new space
when fully developed. Joint venture capital capacity for additional investment is more than $3 billion. When adding balance
sheet capital of $4.6 billion, First Industrial’s total deployed and available capital exceeds $9 billion.

Looking Ahead

Investments in our workforce and capital sources accelerated the growih of our company in 2006. These same invesiments
will support future growth and there are many opportunities to expand the size of our franchise, For example, it is important to
note that, while First Industrial has been the largest acquirer of industrial property for the past two years, we still own less than
one percent of all the industrial real estate in the country.

To capitalize on the growth opportunities that we see in our market, we have built a powerful franchise spanning more than
3,000 customers, one hundred million square feet of industrial space, 1,200 buildings, and hundreds of broker relationships. Our
plaiform now spans 30 markets in the U.S., and we have also expanded into Canada.

For 2007, we have established several goéls that we believe will continue to drive strong growth in FFO per share;
= $2 billion+ of investments that rank us among the top three acquirers in the U.S.,

» $750 million of development starts and land acquisitions,

+ an increase in average occupancy, and )

+ the formation of new private capital sources.

The pipeline for new investments was $1.9 billion at the beginning of 2007, the highest ever going into a new year, which [
believe positions us well to achieve our goals and to continue to provide significant value to customers and stockholders.

Our board of directors has provided expert guidance as we have grown our company. I thank our board members for their
dedication and service, and you, our stockholders, fer your trust in us.

Sincerely,

I, —

Michael W. Brennan
President and Chief Executive Officer
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
311 South Wacker Drive
Suite 4000
Chicago, Illinois 60606

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On May 16, 2007

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting™) of First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) will be held on Wednesday, May 16, 2007 at 9:00 a.m. at The Chicago
Club, Robert Todd Lincoln Room — 2nd floor, 81 East Van Buren, Chicago, Illinois 60605 for the following
purposes: ’

1. To elect three Class I Directors of the Company to serve until the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified; .

2. To approve Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan;

3. To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm: for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007; and

4. To consider and act upon any other matters that may properly be brought before the Annual Meeting
and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

Any action may be taken on the foregoing matters at the Annual Meeting on the date specified above, or on any
" date or dates to which, by original or fater adjournment, the Annual Meeting may be adjourned, or to which the
Annual Meeting may be postponed.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 20, 2007 as the record date for the Annual
Meeting. Only stockholders of record of the Company’s common stock, $.01 par value per share, at the close of
business on that date will be entitled to notice of and to vole at the Annual Meeting and at any adjournments or
postponements thereof.

You are requested to fill in and sign the enclosed Proxy Card, which is being solicited by the Board of
Directors, and to mail it promptly in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope. Any proxy may be revoked by delivery
.of a later dated proxy. Stockholders of record who attend the Annual Meeting may vote in person, even if they have
previously delivered a signed proxy. “Strect name™ stockholders who wish to vote in person will need to obtain a
duly executed proxy form from the institution that holds their shares prior to the Annual Meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

John H. Clayton
Secretary

Chicago, Illinois
April 9, 2007

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN,
DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD IN THE POSTAGE-PREPAID
ENVELOPE PROVIDED,
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
311 South Wacker Drive
Suite 4000
Chicago, Illinois 60606

! PROXY STATEMENT

FOR THE 2007 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On May 16, 2007

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. (the *Company”) for use at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the
Company to be held on Wednesday, May 16, 2007, and at any adjournments or postponements thereof (the “Annual
Meeting™). At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to vote on the election of three Class I Directors of
the Company, to approve Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, to ratify the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the current
fiscat year and to act on any other matters properly brought before them.

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Card are first being sent to
stockholders on or about April 9, 2007, The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 20, 2007 as
the record date for the Annual Meeting (the “Record Date”). Only stockholders of record of the Company’s
common stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Common Stock”), at the close of business on the Record Date will be
entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, there were 45,378,060 shares of
Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Holders of Common Stock outstanding as of
the close of business on the Record Date will be entitled to one vote for each share held by them on each matter
presented to the stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

Stockholders of the Company are requested to complete, sign, date and promptly return the accom-
panying Proxy Card in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope. Shares represented by a properly executed
Proxy Card received prior to the vote at the Annual Meeting and not revoked will be voted at the Annual
Meeting as directed on the Proxy Card. If a properly executed Proxy Card is submitted and no instructions
are given, the persons designated as proxy holders on the Proxy Card will vote (i) FOR the election of the
three nominees for Class I Directors of the Company named in this Proxy Statement, (ii} FOR the approval of
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, (iii) FOR the ratification of the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the
current fiscal year and (iv) in their own discretion with respect to any other business that may properly come
before the stockholders at the Annual Meeting or at any adjournments or postponements thereof. It is not
anticipated that any matters other than those set forth in the Proxy Statement will be presented at the Annual
Meeting.

The presence, in person or by proxy, of holders of at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares
of Common Stock entitled to vote is necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual
Meeting. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the votes cast with a quorum present at the Annual
Meeting is required for the election of directors, the approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s 200t Stock
Incentive Plan and the ratification of the appointment of the Company’s independent registered public accounting
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firm. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not bé counted as votes cast and, accordingly, will have no effect on the
majority vote required, although they will be counted for quorum purposes.

A stockholder of record may revoke a proxy at any time before it has been exercised by filing a written
revocation with the Secretary of the Company at the address of the Company set forth above, by filing a duly
executed proxy bearing a later date, or by appearing in person and voting by ballot at the Annual Meeting. Any
stockholder of record as of the Record Date attending the Annual Meeting may vote in person whether or not a
proxy has been previously given, but the presence (without further action) of a stockholder at the Annual Meeting
will not constitute revocation of a previously given proxy. “Street name” stockholders who wish to vote in person
will need to obtain a duly executed proxy form from the institution that holds their shares prior to the Annual
Meeting. '

In the pages preceding this Proxy Statement is a Letter to Stockholders from the Company’s President and
Chief Executive Officer. Also, Appendix B to this Proxy Statement contains the Company’s 2006 Annual Report,
including the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 and certain other
information required by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Neither
the Letter to Stockholders from the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer nor the Company’s 2006
Annual Report, however, are part of the proxy solicitation material. See “Other Matters-Incorporation by
Reference” herein. : ‘

PROPOSAL I
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Company, as amended (the “Articles™), the
maximum number of members allowed to serve on the Company’s Board of Directors is 12. The Board of Directors
of the Company currently consists of nine seats and is divided into three classes, with the directors in each class
serving for a term of three years and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. The term of one class
expires at each Annual Meeting of Stockhelders. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company,
vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by a majority vote of the directors, and directors elected to fil}
vacancies shall hold office until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

At the Annual Meeting, three directors will be elected to serve as Class I Directors until the 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. The Board of Directors has
nominated Jay Shidler, J. Steven Wilson and Robert D. Newman to serve as Class I Directors (the “Nominees™).
Each of the Nominees is currently serving as a Class [ Director of the Company. Each of the Nominees has
consented to be named as a nominee in this Proxy Statement. The Board of Directors anticipates that each of the
Nominees will serve as a director if elected. However, if any person nominated by the Board of Directors is unable
to accept election, the proxies will vote for the election of such other person or persons as the Board of Directors
may recommend. .

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the Nominees.

INFORMATION REGARDING NOMINEES AND DIRECTORS

The following biographical descriptions set forth certain information with respect to the three Nominees for
election as Class I Directors at the Annual Meeting, the continuing directors whose terms expire at the Annual
Meetings of Stockholders in 2008 and 2009 and certain executive officers, based on information furnished to the
Company by such persons. The following information is as of March 20, 2007, unless otherwise specified.

2
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Class I Nominees for Election at 2007 Annual Meeting — Term to Expire in 2010
- Jay H. Shidler Director since 1993

Mr. Shidler, 64, has been Chairman of the Board of Directors since the formation of the Company in August
1993. He is the founder and managing partner of The Shidler Group. A nationally acknowledged expert in the field
of real estate investment and finance, Mr. Shidler has over 35 years of experience in real estate investment and has
acquired and managed properties involving several billion dollars in aggregate value. Since 1970, Mr. Shidler has
been directly involved in the acquisition and management of over 1,000 properiies in 40 states and Canada.
Mr. Shidler is the Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Corporate Office Properties Trust (NYSE:OFC). From 1998
through 2005, Mr. Shidler served as a director of Primus Guaranty, Lid. (NYSE:PRS), a Bermuda company of
which Mr. Shidler is a founder and whose subsidiary is a AAA-rated financial products company.

J. Steven Wilson Director since 1994

Mr. Wilson, 63, has been a director of the Company since June 1994, Since February 2003, Mr. Wilson has
been owner and President of Advanced Building Products & Services, LL.C, a building product supply company
located in Jacksonville, Florida. Since 1985, Mr. Wilson has been President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Riverside Group, Inc., a holding company. From 1991 to April 2003, Mr. Wilson was
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Wickes Inc.

Robert D. Newman Director since 2006

Mr. Newman, 45, has been a director of the Company since July 2006. Mr. Newman is also a principal and a
member of the executive committee of William Blair & Company, L.L.C., a Chicago-based investment firm
offering investment banking, asset management, equity research, institutional and private brokerage, and private
capital to individual, institutional, and issuing clients. Since 2001, he has served as that firm’s director of equity
research, managing its equity research department. He joined William Blair & Company, L.L.C. in 1989 as a
securities analyst in its investment management services department, became a principal in the firm in 1993 and,
from 1999 to 2001, served as director of research of its investment management services department, Before joining
William Blair & Company, L.L.C., Mr. Newman was a senior financial analyst in the business development and
corporate planning groups for the Quaker Cats Company. He is a chartered financial analyst and a certified public
accountant and his professional affiliations include the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Investment Analysts Society of Chicago.

Class I Continuing Directors — Term to Expire in 2008
Michael W, Brennan ) Director since 1996

Mr. Brennan, 50, has been a director since March 1996. He has been President and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since November 1998, prior to which time he served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company from
December 1995 to November 1998 and as Senior Vice President — Asset Management of the Company from April
1994 to December 1995. He was a partner of The Shidler Group between 1988 and 1994 and the President of the
Brennan/Tomasz/Shidler Investment Corporation and was in charge of asset management, leasing, project finance,
accounting and treasury functions for The Shidler Group’s Chicago operations. Between 1986 and 1988,
Mr. Brennan served as The Shidler Group’s principal acquisition executive in Chicago. Prior to joining The
Shidler Group, Mr. Brennan was an investment specialist with CB Commercial (now CB Richard Ellis, Inc.).
Mr. Brennan is a director of Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc. (NYSE: BEE). His professional affiliations include the
Urban Land Institute (“ULI), The Real Estate Roundtable, the National Asscciation of Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“NAREIT"), the Young Presidents Organization and the Economic Club of Chicago.

3
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Michael G. Damone Director since 1994

Mr. Damone, 72, is Director of Strategic Planning for the Company and has been a director of the Company
since June 1994, Between 1973 and 1994, Mr. Damone was Chief Executive Officer of Damone/Andrew, a full
service real estate organization, which developed several million square feet of industrial, warehouse, distribution
and research and developmenti buildings. Prior to co-founding Damone/Andrew in 1973, Mr. Damone was the
executive vice president of a privately held, Michigan based real estate development and construction company,
where he was responsible for the development of industrial/business parks. His professional affiliations include the
Society of Industrial and Office Realtors (“SIOR”), the National Association of Realtors (“NAR”), the Michigan
Association of Realtors and the Detroit Area Commercial Board of Realtors.

Kevin W. Lynch Director since 1994

M. Lynch, 54, has been a director of the Company since June 1994. Mr. Lynch is the co-founder and Principal
of The Townsend Group (“Townsend”), an institutional real estate consulting firm, which provides real estate
consulting for pension funds and institutional investors. In his capacity as Principal, Mr. Lynch is responsible for
strategic development and implementation of client real estate portfolios. Mr. Lynch is also responsible for new
produci development. Prior to founding Townsend, Mr. Lynch was associated with Stonehenge Capital Corporation,
where he was involved in the acquisition of institutional real estate properties and the structuring of institutional real
estate transactions. Mr. Lynch is a director of Lexington Corporate Properties Trust (NYSE: LXP). He is a member
of the National Real Estate Advisory Board for the Real Estate Center at New York University, the National Council
of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries, and the Pension Real Estate Association,

Class I Continuing Directors — Term to Expire in 2009

John Rau Director since 1994

Mr, Rau, 58, has been a director of the Company since June 1994, Since December 2002, Mr. Rau has served as
President and Chief Executive Officer and as a director of Miami Corporation, a private asset management firm.
From January 1997 to March 2000, he was a director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Chicago
Title Corporation, a New York Stock Exchange listed company, and its subsidiaries, Chicago Title and Trust
Co., Chicago Title Insurance Co., Ticor Title Insurance Co. and Security Union Title Insurance Co, Mr. Rau is a
director of LaSalle Bank, N.A., Nicor Inc. and Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company. From July 1993 until November 1996,
Mr. Rau was Dean of the Indiana University School of Business. From 1991 to 1993, Mr, Rau served as Chairman of
the [ilinois Economic Development Board and as special advisor to [llinois Governor Jim Edgar. From 1990 to
1993, he was Chairman of the Banking Research Center Board of Advisors and a Visiting Scholar at Northwestern
University’s J.L.. Kellogg Graduate School of Management. During that time, he also served as Special Consultant
to McKinsey & Company, a worldwide strategic consulting firm. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Rau served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of LaSalle National Bank. From 1979 to 1989, he was associated with The Exchange
National Bank, serving as President from 1983 to 1989, at which time The Exchange National Bank merged with
LaSalle Naticnal Bank. Prior to 1979, he was associated with First National Bank of Chicago.

Robert J. Slater ’ . 7 Director since 1994

M. Slater, 69, has been a director of the Company since June 1994. Since 1988, Mr. Slater has been President
of Jackson Consulting, Inc., a private investment and consulting company that specializes in advising manufac-
turing and distribution companies on strategic, organizational, and economic planning. He retired as President,
Chief Operating Officer and Director of Crane Co., a multinational manufacturing, distribution, and aerospace
company, after serving the company from 1969 to 1988. Mr. Slater also held several executive level positions at
Crane Co. subsidiaries including CF&:I Corporation, Medusa Corporation, and Huttig Sash & Door Co. Mr. Slater
has served on the boards of directors of a number of public companies during his career. Most recently, he was a
director of Southdown, Inc. and National Steel Corporation.

4
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W. Ed Tyler - , Director since 2000

Mr. Tyler, 54, has been a director of the Company since March 2000. Mr. Tyler was appointed CEO of
Ideapoint Ventures in 2002. Ideapoint Ventures is an early stage venture fund that focuses on nanotechnologies.
Prior to joining Ideapoint Ventures, Mr. Tyler served as Chief Executive Officer and a director of Moore
Corporation Limited, a provider of data capture, information design, marketing services, digital communications
and print solutions, from 1998 to 2000. Prior to joining Moore Corporation, Mr. Tyler served in various capacities at
R.R. Donnelley & Sons Company, most recently as Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer, from
1997 to 1998, and as Executive Vice President and Sector President of Donnelley's Networked Services Sector,
from 19935 to 1997.

INFORMATION REGARDING EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Michael J. Havala

Mr. Havala, 47, has been Chief Financial Officer of the Company since April 1994. He joined The Shidler
Group in 1989, and was Chief Financial Officer for The Shidler Group’s Midwest region with responsibility for
accounting, finance, information technology and treasury functions. With The Shidler Group, Mr. Havala structured
joint ventures, obtained and refinanced project financing, developed and implemented management information
systems and directed all financial aspects of a several million square foot portfolio located in various states
throughout the Midwest. Prior to joining The Shidler Group, Mr. Havala was a Senior Tax Consultant with Arthur
Andersen & Company, where he specialized in real estate, banking and corporate finance. Mr. Havala is a certified -
public accountant. His professional affiliations include NAREIT.

Johannson L. Yap

MEr. Yap, 44, has been the Chief Investment Officer of the Company since February 1997. From April 1994 to
February 1997, he served as Senior Vice President — Acquisitions of the Company. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Yap joined The Shidler Group in 1988 as an acquisitions associate, and became Vice President in 1991, with
responsibility for acquisitions, property management, leasing, project financing, sales and construction manage-
ment functions. Between 1988 and 1994, he participated in the acquisition, underwriting and due diligence of
several hundred million dollars of commercial properties. His professional affiliations include ULI, NAREIT and
the Council of Logistics Management.

David P. Draft

Mr. Draft, 55, has been Executive Vice President — Operations of the Company since January 2001, prior to
which time he served as Managing Director of the Company’s Central region from December 1998 to January 2001
and as Senior Regional Director of the Company’s Michigan and Northern Ohio regions from March 1996 to
December 1998. He has 29 years experience in real estate brokerage, sales, leasing and asset management. Between
1994 and March 1996, Mr. Draft was Co-Founder and Principal of Draft & Gantos Properties, L.L.C., where he was
responsible for real estate management, construction and development. From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Draft was Director
of Development and Operations for Robert Grooters Development Company where he was responsible for land
acquisitions, development project planning, financing and construction of industrial property. From 1977 to 1990,
he was with First Real Estate, Inc., serving in the capacity of chief operating officer.

Arne M. Cook

Mr. Cook, 46, has been Managing Director of the Company’s Central region since January 2001, prior to which
time he served as Senior Regional Director of the Company’s Minnesota region from January 2000 to December
2000, as Regional Director of the Company's Minnesota region from April 1998 to December 1999 and as Regional
Development Manager from April 1997 to March 1998. He has 20 years of experience in the office and industrial
real estate industry. From January 1988 to March 1997, Mr. Cook served in various capacities, most recently as
Senior Director of Real Estate Development, with Opus Northwest LLC, a member of the Opus Group of
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Companies, where he was responsible for the development, sales, financing and asset management of office and
industrial properties throughout the Midwest. His professional affiliations include the National Association of
Industrial and Office Properties (“NAIOP”), NAREIT, ULLI, the Minnesota Commercial Association of Realtors and
the University of Wisconsin Real Estate Alumni Association.

Gregory S. Downs

Mr. Downs, 58, has been Managing Director of the Company’s Gulf/Mountain region since July 2001, prior to
which time he served as a Senior Regional Director from January 2000 to July 2001 and as a Regional Director from
June 1998 10 December 1999 of the Company’s Denver region. From November 1997 to June 1998, he served as a
Regional Development Officer of the Company. Mr. Downs has over 25 years of real estate experience. Between
June 1994 and November 1997, he was Vice President of Development for Pacifica Holding Company, a full-
service real estate company operating in Denver. Mr. Downs' professional affiliations include NAIOP and SIOR.

Robert Cutlip

Mr. Cutlip, 57, has been Managing Director of the Company’s East region since March 2006. From September
2003 to February 2006, he served as Senior Vice President of Highwoods Properties, Inc. (NYSE: HIW), a real
estate investment trust. From April 2001 to September 2003, Mr. Cutlip served as Vice President of Real Estate
Operations for Progress Energy (NYSE: PGN), a diversified energy company, prior to which time, from 1999 to
2001, he served as Executive Vice President of Duke-Weeks Realty Corp. (NYSE: DRE), a real estate investment
trust. Mr. Cutlip has over 25 years of real estate experience. His professional affiliations include NAIOP.

Scott A. Musil

Mr. Musil, 39, has been Chief Accounting Officer of the Company since March 2006; Senjor Vice President of
the Company since March 2001; Controller of the Company since December 1995; Treasurer of the Company since
May 2002; and Assistant Secretary of the Company since May 1996. In addition, he served as a Vice Prestdent of the
Company from May 1998 to March 2001. Prior to joining the Company, he served in various capacities with Arthur
Andersen & Company, culminating as an audit manager specializing in the real estate and finance industries.
Mr. Musil is a certified public accountant, His professional affiliations include the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and NAREIT.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company is currently comprised of nine members, a
majority of whom are independent as affirmatively determined by the Board of Directors. In determining the
independence of its members, the Board of Directors applied the following standards:

1) The member must meet the definition of “Independent Director” contained in the Company's Articles,
which requires that he or she be neither an employee of the Company nor a member of The Shidler Group.

2) After taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, the Board must determine that the
member has no material relationships with the Company (either directly or as a partner, sharcholder or officer
of an organization that has a relationship with the Company). Relationships to be considered include
commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting, charitable and familial relationships.

3) The member must satisfy the independence tests set forth in Section 303A.02(b) of the Listed
Company Manual of the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE™).

Applying such standards, the Board of Directors has affirmatively determined that its current independent
directors are Messrs. Lynch, Newman, Rau, Slater, Tyler and Wilson.

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Articles, the directors are divided into three classes. Class I Directors,
Messrs. Shidler, Wilson and Newman, hold office for a term expiring at this Annual Meeting. Class II Directors,
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Messrs. Brennan, Damone and Lynch, hold office for a term expiring at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held in 2008. Class III Directors, Messrs. Rau, Slater and Tyler, hold office for a term expiring at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2009. Each director will hold office for the term to which he is elected and
until his successor is duly elected and qualified. At each Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the successors to the class
of directors whose term expires at that meeting will be elected to hold office for a term continuing until the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election and the election and qualification
of their successors,

The Board of Directors held 11 meetings and acted three times by unanimous consent during 2006. Each of the
directors serving in 2006 atiended at least 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and of the
respective committees of the Board of Directors of which he was a member. Although the Company does not have a
formal policy regarding director attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders, all of the directors then serving
attended the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,

The Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance Gnuidelines to reflect the-principles by which it
operates. These guidelines, as well as the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, are accessible at the investor relations
pages of the Company’s website at www.firstindustrial.com. The Company has adopted a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics which includes the principles by which theé Company expects its employees, officers and
directors to conduct Company business and which is accessible at the investor relations pages of the Company’s
website at www.firstindustrial.com. The Company intends to post on its website amendments to, or waivers from,
any provision of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, an Investment
Committee, a Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and a Special Committee.

Audit Committee. The Audit Commitiee is directly responsible for the appointment, discharge, compen-
sation, and oversight of the work of any independent public accountants employed by the Company for the purpose
of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work. In connection with such responsibilities, the Audit
Committee approves the engagement of independent public accountants, reviews with the independent public
accountants the audit plan, the audit scope, and the results of the annual audit engagement, pre-approves audit and
non-audit services provided by the independent public accountants, reviews the independence of the independent
public accountants, pre-approves audit and non-audit fees and reviews the adequacy of the Company’s internal
accounting controls. '

The membership of the Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Rau, Lynch and Wilson, each of whom,
in the judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors, is independent as required by the listing standards of the
NYSE and the rules of the SEC. In the judgment of the Company’s Board of Directors, each member is financially
literate as required by the listing standards of the NYSE. Further, in the judgment of the Company’s Board of
Directors, Mr. Rau is an *‘audit committee financial expert,” as such term is defined in the SEC rules, and has
“accounting or related financial management expertise,” as defined in the listing standards of the NYSE. See
Mr. Rau's biography above. The Audit Committee met 11 times in 2006.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee has overall responsibility for approving and
evaluating the compensation plans, policies and programs relating to the executive officers of the Company. The
Compensation Committee administers, and has authority to grant awards under, the First Industrial Realty Trust,
Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1994 Stock Plan™), the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive
Pilan (the “1997 Stock Plan™), the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. Deferred Income Plan (the “Deferred Income
Plan”) and the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Stock Plan”). The
Compensation Committee currently consists of Messrs. Slater and Tyler, each of whom, in the judgment of the
Company’s Board of Directors, is independent as required by the listing standards of the NYSE. The Compensation
Committee met seven times and acted once by unanimous consent in 2006.
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Investment Committee. The Investment Committee provides oversight and discipline to-the investment
process. Investment opportunities are described in written reports based on detailed research and analyses in a
standardized format applying appropriate underwriting criteria. The Investment Commiftee meets with the

- Company’s acquisition personnel, reviews each submission thoroughly and approves acquisitions of land having

a total investment of greater than $5 million and all other acquisitions and development projects having a total
investment of greater than $15 million, The Investment Committee makes a formal recommendation to the Board of
Directors for all acquisitions and development projects with a total investment in excess of $30 million. The
membership of the Investment Committee currently consists of Messrs. Shidler, Brennan, Damone, Tyler and
Wilson. The Investment Committee met 37 times and acted twice by unanimous consent in 2006,

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee rec-
ommends individuals for election as directors at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company and in
connection with any vacancy that may develop on the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors, in turn, as a whole
by a majority vote cither approves all of the nominations so recommended by the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee or rejects all of the nominations in whole, but not in part. In the event that the Board
of Directors as a whole by a majority vote rejects the recommended nominations, the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee develops a new recommendation. In addition, the Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee develops and oversees the Company’s corporate governance policies. The current Nominating/Cor-
porate Governance Committee consists of Messrs. Lynch, Slater and Wilson, each of whom, in the judgment of the
Company’s Board of Directors, is independent as required by the listing standards of the NYSE. Mr. Lynch is the
current Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and also presides at meetings of non-
management directors. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee met twice during 2006 and met in
February 2007 to determine its nominations for this Proxy Statement.

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominees recommended by stockholders of
the Company. In order for a stockholder to nominate a candidate for election as a director at an Annual Meeting,
notice must be given in accordance with the Bylaws of the Company to the Secretary of the Company not more than
180 days nor less than 75 days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s Annual Meeting. The fact that the
Company may not insist upon compliance with the requirements contained in its Bylaws should not be construed as
a waiver by the Company of its right to do so at any time in the future. ‘

In general, it is the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee's policy that, in its judgment, its recom-
mended nominees for election as members of the Board of Directors of the Company, at a minimum, have business
experience of a breadth, and at a level of complexity, sufficient to understand all aspects of the Company’s business
and, through either experience or education, have acquired such knowledge as is sufficient to qualify as financially
literate. In addition, recommended nominees must be persons of integrity and be committed to devoting the time
and attention necessary to fulfill their duties to the Company.

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee may identify nominees for election as members of the
Board of Directors of the Company through its own sources (including through nominations by stockholders made
in accordance with the Company’s Bylaws), through sources of other directors of the Company, and through the use
of third-party search firms. The Company has previously engaged a third party search firm to identify potential
nominees and may do so again in the future. Subject to the foregoing minimum standards, the Nominating/
Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate each nominee on a case-by-case basis, assessing each nominee’s
judgment, experience, independence, understanding of the Company’s business or that of other related industries,
and such other factors as the Nominating/Corporate Governance Commiltee concludes are pertinent in light of the
current needs of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Special Committee. The Special Committee is authorized, within limits specified by the Board of Directors,
to approve the terms under which the Company issues Common Stock, preferred stock or depository shares
representing fractional interests in preferred stock, or under which the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries, including First Industrial, L P., issues debt. The membership of the Special Committee currently
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consists of Messrs. Shidler, Brennan and Rau. The Special Committee acted by unanimous consent twice during
2006. -

Communications by Stockholders.  Stockhoelders of the Company may send communications to the Board of
Directors as a whole, its individual members, its committees or its non-management members as a group.
Communications to the Board of Directors as a whole should be addressed to “The Board of Directors™;
communications to any individual member of the Board of Directors should be addressed to such individual
member; communications to any committee of the Board of Directors should be addressed to the Chairman of such
committee; and communications to non-management members of the Board of Directors as a group should be
addressed to the Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee. In each case, communications
should be further addressed *“c/o First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc., 311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 4000, Chicago,
Illinois 60606.” All communications will be forwarded to their respective addressees and, if a stockholder marks his
or her communication “Confidential”’, will be forwarded directly to the addressee.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Directors of the Company who are also employees, namely Michael W. Brennan and Michael G. Damone,
receive no additional compensation for their services as a director. Compensation of non-employee directors is
reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, which makes any recommendations
of compensation changes to the eatire Board of Directors, In 2006, the Compensation Commilttee retained Towers
Perrin and FPL Associates, outside consultants, to review the appropriateness of directors’ compensation.
Currently, non-employee directors of the Company receive an annual director’s fee equivalent in value to
$40,000. At least 509% of the value of such fee must be taken in the form of restricted Common Stock but
directors can elect to receive a greater proportion of their fee in restricted Common Stock. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee receives an additional fee of $20,000 for his service as Chairman of the Audit Commitiee; the
Chairman of the Compensation Committee receives an additional fee of $10,000 for his service as Chairman of the
Compensation Committee; and the Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee receives an
additional fee of $5,000 for his service as Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee. Each
non-employee director also receives $2,000 for each in-person meeting of the Board of Directors attended, $1,500
for each telephonic Board meeting participated in, $2,000 for each in-person committee meeting attended and
$1,500 for each telephonic committee meeting participated in. Following the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stock-
holders, each of the Company’s non-employee directors also received 1,500 shares of restricted Common Stock
under the 2001 Stock Plan. Shares of restricted Common Stock issued to directors receive dividends at the same rate
as the Company’s Common Stock. Non-employee directors are not entitled to retirement benefits, incentive
compensation or perquisites, although they are reimbursed for their out-of-pocket expenses for meeting attendance.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION SUMMARY
Fees Earned
or Paid in Stock AH Other Total

Name Cash $)(1) Awards ($)(2) Compensation ($)(3) Compensation ($)
JayH. Shidler . . . . .................. $66,500 $62,948(4) $27,661 $157,109
Kevin W.Lynch ................. ... $29,750 $54,045(3) $19,934 $103,729
James F Millar(6) . . ................. $33,250 $10,279(6) $ 3,292 $ 46,821
Robert D. Newman . ................. $ 7,000 5 40407 $ 161 $ 7.565
JohnRau............... ... .. ..... $64,250 $56,629(8) $22,517 $143,396
Robert J.Slater . .................... $34,000 $87,184(9) $47,441 $168,625
W.EdTyler............. ..ol $356,500 $57,302(10) $22,294 $136,096

J. Steven Wilson ... .... e $66,000 $62,948(11) $27,661 $156,609

(1) Does not include that portion of non-employee directors’ annual director fees paid in the form of Stock
Awards. See under “Stock Awards” in the adjacent column.

(2) All reported awards are of shares of restricted Common Stock and amounts reported represent the amount of
expense recognized by the Company during 2006 under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 123R (Share-Based Payments) (“FAS 123R”) for grants made in 2006 and prior years. The grant date
fair value of each stock award granted in 2006 1o a director is reflected in the footnotes below. The grant date
fair value determined under FAS 123R for each award is approximately equal to the product of the number of
shares of restricted Common Stock granted multiplied by the closing price of the Common Stock as reported
by the NYSE on the applicable date of grant ($40.00 on January 6, 2006; $41.58 on April 5, 2006; $37.78 on
July 7, 2006; $45.33 on October 6, 2006).

(3) Amounts represent dividends on shares of unvested restricted Common Stock. Amounts do not include
dividends/distributions paid on original shares of Common Stock issued in connection with the Company’s
initial public offering, shares of Common Stock purchased subsequently in the open market or by exercise of
options, shares of formerly restricted Common Stock after such stock has vested or on limited partnership
units of First Industrial, L.P. (which generally are exchangeable on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustments,
for Common Stock). ’

(4) Mr. Shidler received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $7,800; $7,318;
$66,664; and $10,290. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Shidler held 10,438 shares of unvested restricted
Common Stock.

(5) Mr. Lynch received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $7,800; $7,318;
$66,664; and $10,290. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Lynch held 7,688 shares of unvested restricted Common
Stock.

(6) Mr. Millar received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $3,880; $7,318;
$66,664; and $10,290. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Millar held 2,264 shares of unvested restricted Common
Stock. Mr. Millar resigned as a Director of the Company January 26, 2007, at which time he vested in
2,477 shares of restricted Common Stock having a value as of the date of vesting of approximately $116,766
(based on the closing price of the Common Stock ($47.14) on that date, as reported by the NYSE).

(7) Mr. Newman received a grant of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair value: $10,290. As of
December 31, 2006, Mr. Newman held 227 shares of unvested restricted Common Stock.

(8) Mr. Rau received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $3,880; $3,659;
$61,657; and $5,168. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Rau held 8,435 shares of unvested restricted Common
Stock. :

(%) Mr. Slater received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $7,800; $7,318;
$66,664; and $10,290. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Slater held 17,477 shares of unvested restricted
Common Stock.
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(10) Mr. Tyler received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $7,800; $7,318;
$66,664; and $10,290. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Tyler held 8,528 shares of unvested restricted Common
Stock and 30,000 options. '

(11) Mr. Wilson received grants of stock during 2006 with the following grant date fair values: $7,800; $7,318;
$66,664; and $10,290. As of December 31, 2006, Mr. Wilson held 10,438 shares of unvested restricted
Common Stock and 60,000 options,

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW OF COMPENSATION PROGRAM — OBJECTIVES AND DESIGN

The Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”) has overall respon-
sibility for approving and evaluating the compensation plans, policies.and programs relating to the executive
officers of the Company.

The Company maintains the philosophy that compensation of its executive officers and other employees
should serve the best interests of the Company’s stockholders. Accordingly, the Company believes its executive
compensation program should not only serve to attract and retain talented, capable individuals, but also to provide
them with proper incentives linked to performance criteria that are designed to maximize the Company’s overall
performance. To this end, the Company’s compensation program consists of a mix of compensation that is intended
to compensate executive officers for their contributions during the year and to reward them for achievements that
lead to increased Company performance and increases in stockholder value.

THE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROCESS AND THE ROLE OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS IN
COMPENSATION DECISIONS

The Compensation Committee typically begins the process of formulating executive compensation in the
December before the upcoming applicable fiscal year by setting that year’s salaries for each of the Named Executive
Officers and target maximum cash and equity bonus for each of the Named Executive Officers other than the
Managing Directors. (As discussed below, beginning with 2006, the Managing Directors are subject to the
Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan.) Then, typically, in the first quarter of the applicable fiscal
year, the Compensation Committee adopts, and the full Board of Directors ratifies, the performance criteria to be
used to determine the Chief Executive Officer’s and other Named Executive Officers’ (other than the Managing
Directors’) incentive compensation for that year. Then, after the end of the applicable fiscal year, the Compensation
Committee meets to determine incentive compensation to be paid to the Named Executive Officers (other than the
Managing Directors) with respect to that year. At that time, the Compensation Committee also reviews the
calculations per the Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan of the Managing Directors’ incentive
compensation with respect to that year. Per such determination/review, the Company pays cash bonuses, typically in
February, and issues restricted stock, typically in March. In the case of the Named Executive Officers’ 2006
incentive compensation, the Compensation Committee determined/reviewed both the cash and equity components
of incentive compensation at a meeting on January 30, 2007 and by a unanimous written consent dated as of
February 23, 2007. Cash bonuses were paid on February 28, 2007 and restricted stock awards were granted on
March 12, 2007. The restricted stock awards were granted when administratively convenient, and the number of
shares to be awarded was based on the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on January 23, 2007, the day
prior to the submission of award information and recommendations to the Compensation Committee for purposes of
its January 30, 2007 meeting.

Periodically, though not every year, the Company and the Compensation Committee engage the services of
cutside consultants to evaluate the Company’s executive compensation program. In 2006, the Compensation
Committee retained FPL Associates, an outside consultant, to review the appropriateness of the compensation of the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Executive Vice
President — Operations, and of the Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, As part of its review,
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the outside consultant surveyed a range of real estate companies that included not only the Company’s industrial
peers, but similarly sized companies and companies with similar operating strategies from other sectors of the REIT
industry. The Compensation Commitiee used such survey not as a benchmark, per se, but rather to gauge generally
the appropriateness of the Company’s executive compensation programs.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer participate in meetings with the
Compensation Committee at various times throughout the year. In December of each year, they meet with the
Compensation Committee to present and discuss recommendations with respect to the upcoming fiscal year's
salaries for the Named Executive Officers and target maximum cash and equity bonus for the Named Executive
Officers other than the Managing Directors. In the first quarter of each year, they meet with the Compensation
Committee to present and discuss recommendations with respect to incentive compensation for the year just ended.
They also meet with the Compensation Commitiee regarding employment agreements that the Company has
entered into and assist the Compensation Committee in providing compensation information to outside consultants
engaged to evaluate the Company’s compensation programs.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION COMPONENTS

The components of the Company’s execulive compensation program are base salary, incentive bonuses (both
cash and equity awards) and benefits/perquisites (including premiums paid by the Company on term life insurance
and long-term disability insurance, car allowances, personal financial planning allowances, 401(k) matching
contributions and standard health, life and disability insurance). .

Each component of the Company’s executive compensation program serves to attract and retain talented,
capable individuals to the Company’s management ranks. Incentive bonuses serve the added purpose of providing
such individuals with proper incentives linked to performance criteria that are designed to maximize the Company’s
overall performance. '

The Company considers base salary, incentive bonuses and benefits/perquisites as independent components of
the Company’s executive compensation program, Base salary and benefits/perquisites are intended to compensate
Named Executive Officers for services rendered and increases to their base salary are a function of individual
performance and general economic conditions. Incentive bonuses, by contrast, are linked to, and are a function of
the achievement of, performance criteria that are designed to maximize the Company’s overall performance. Base
salary and benefits/perquisites constitute approximately 1/3 of executive officers’ compensation in a typical year,
while incentive bonus makes up approximately 2/3. This allocation between base salary and incentive compen-
sation is consistent with the Compensation Committee’s compensation philosophy that executive officers’ com-
pensation should be largely tied to performance criteria designed to maximize the Company’s overall performance.

The Compensation Committee does not have a specific policy regarding the mix of cash and nen-cash
compensation awarded 10 its executive officers, although' it believes that a significant portion of executive officer
compensation should be paid in the form of equity. The mix of target maximum cash and non-cash incentive
compensation our executive officers are entitled to receive is set forth in their respective employment agreements.
Depending on the individual, non-cash compensation makes up approximately 40% of the executive officers’
potential incentive compensation. With respect to allocating between cash and non-cash incentive compensation for
the Company’s Managing Directors, the Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan calls for incentive
compensation to be paid 60% in cash and 40% in restricted stock awards.

When granting non-cash compensation to the executive officers and Managing Directors, the Compensation
Committee uses restricted stock awards. Typically, such restricted stock awards vest ratably over 3 years and are
denominated based on the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the day prior to the submission of
award information and recommendations to the Compensation Committee for purposes of its award determinations.
The Compensation Committee believes that restricted stock awards play an important role in aligning manage-
ment’s interests with those of the Company’s stockholders in that restricted stock (other than the vesting and transfer
restrictions applicable to it) is economically identical to stockholders’ common stock. For this reason, restricted
stock awards have been and, the Company expects, will continue to be a significant part of executive compensation.
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SETTING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Base Salary

The Company provides the Named Executive Officers with base salary to compensate them for services
rendered during the fiscal year. The base salaries of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Executive Vice President — Operations are a function of the minimum base
salaries specified in their employment agreements and the increases to such base salaries approved by the
Compensation Committee. Base salaries for the Company’s Managing Directors are a function of the base salaries
negotiated and approved by the Compensation Committee at the time each Managing Director was hired or
promoted to that position and the increases to such base salaries approved by the Compensation Committee. In
setting the base salaries of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment
Officer and Executive Vice President — Operations that are specified in their employment agreements, as well as
the base salaries of the Managing Directors, the Compensation Committee consulted with outside compensation
consultants, In determining increases to such base salaries for the following year, the Compensation Committee
considers individual performance of the Named Executive Officers in the year just past, including organizational
and management development and sales leadership exhibited from year-to-year. The Compensation Committee
also considers general economic conditions prevailing at the end of such year when the increases for the following
year are typically determined. The increases in base salaries for 2006 were relatively modest and reflect a cost of
living increase. 7

Incentive Bonuses

The Company provides the Named Executive Officers with incentive compensation, which currently includes
cash and equity awards in the form of restricted stock, to incentivize and reward them for Company and individual
performance in specified areas that serves the best interests of the Company’s stockholders. Our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Executive Vice President — Operations each
participate in an incentive compensation plan (the “Executive Officer Bonus Plan™) which derives from the
Company’s strategic plan, while our Managing Directors participate in the 2006 Managing Director Incentive Plan,

The Executive Officer Bonus Plan seeks to tie executive officer compensation to achievement of the
Company’s business plan and individual goals. Under the Executive Officer Bonus Plan, awards are made in
cash and restricted stock based on a target maximum cash and equity bonus, expressed as a percentage of
participants’ base salaries. The target maximum cash and equity bonus are based on targets required by participants’
employment agreements and are subject to increase by the Compensation Committee. The target maximum borus
for 2006 for the Named Executive Officers that participated in the Executive Officer Bonus Plan were as follows:

Target Maximum  Target Maximum

Named Executive Officer - Cash Bonus Equity Bonus
Michael W. Brennan . .. ... .. it ne et ia e 225% 187%
Michael JJHavala. ......... ... .. . et 200% 187%
Johamnson L. Yap . ... ..ot e e e 200% 187%

David B Draft. . .. .o e e e e e s 200% 187%
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When granting awards under the Executive Officer Bonus Plan, the Compensation Committee evaluates five
broad performance categories designed to reward different areas of executive officer performance. These categories
include earnings growth, growth in stockholder value, customer base growth, personnel excellence and compet-
itiveness. Under these five broad categories are more specific goals and objectives: for example, under the broad
category “earnings growth” there is a funds from operations {or FFO'DY growth percentage target, among other
targets; under “growth in stockholder value” there is a target total stockholder return, among other targets; under
“customer base growth” there is a tenant retention target, among other targets; under “personnel excellence” there is
a target percentage for employee satisfaction, among other targets; under “competitiveness” there is a target
percentage for portfolio occupancy to exceed market occupancy, among other targets.

The Compensation Committee sets targets based on the above-described criteria at the beginning of each year
and evaluates whether the Company met, exceeded or failed to meet each of these more specific goals and
objectives. Based on this evaluation, the Compensation Committee assigns an overall ““grade” to each of the broad
catégories. An overall weighted average grade, expressed as a percentage, is then established based on the weight
the Compensation Committee has assigned to each of the broad categories: currently 50% to earnings growth and
12.5% to each of customer base growth, personnel excellence, competitiveness and growth in stockholder value.
Earnings growth is given the greatest weight in this calculation because the Compensation Committee believes this
category represents the most important goal for our executive officers.

For 2006, the Compensation Committee assigned a high grade to the earnings growth category. This grade was
primarily based on FFO per share growth of 14%, compared to a target of 11%. In addition to the grade for earnings
growth, the Compensation Committee assigned high grades for customer base growth, personnel excellence, and
growth in stockholder value and an average grade for competitiveness, The overall weighted average grade is then
applied to the applicable officer’s target maximum cash and equity bonus to compute the executive officers’
estimated cash and non-cash bonus payout. . :

Once the Compensation Committee has determined the estimated cash and non-cash bonus payout for each
executive officer, it has the discretion to increase or decrease such amounts, and to alter the mix of cash versus non-
cash compensation. Based on the achievement of these and other factors and on the Compensation Committee’s
evaluation of certain other qualitative factors, including organizational and management development and sales
leadership exhibited from year-to-year, the Compensation Committee awarded bonuses to the Named Executive
Officers that participate in the Executive Officer Bonus Plan ranging from 70% to 72% of the executive officer’s
target cash bonus award and 116% to 143% of the executive officer’s target equity bonus. For 2006, the
Compensation Committee approved equity bonuses for the Named Executive Officers in excess of the target

(1) FFO is a non-GAAP measure that the Company defines as net income available to common stockholders, plus
depreciation and amortization of real estate, minus accumulated depreciation and amortization on real estate
sold. Investors in and analysts following the real estate industry utilize FFO, variously defined, as a
supplemental performance measure. The Company considers FFO, given its wide use by and relevance to
investors and analysts, an appropriate supplemental performance measure. FFO, reflecting the assurnption that
real estate asset values rise or fall with market conditions, principally adjusts for the effects of GAAP
depreciation/amortization of real estate assets. In addition, FFO is commonly used in various ratios, pricing
multiples/yields and returns and valuation calculations used to measure financial position, performance and
value. FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and is not
necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs, including the repayment of principal on debt and
payment of dividends and distributions. FFO should not be considered as a substitute for net income available to
common stockholders (calculated in accordance with GAAP) as a measure of results of operations or cash flows
(calculated in accordance with GAAP) as a measure of liquidity. FFO as calculated by the Company may not be
comparable to similarly titled, but differently calculated, measures of other REITs or to the definition of FFO
published by NAREIT. Please see the reconciliation of FFQ to net income available to common stockholders
contained in our Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 21, 2007.
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maximum equity bonus it previously set in order to reduce the cash bonus the Company would have otherwise paid
with respect to a year in which the Company achieved strong performance.

Our Managing Directors, including Mr. Cook, are eligible to participate in a bonus plan created specifically for
Managing Directors. The plan is designed to reward the Company’s Managing Directors for profitable develop-
ment, sale and lease transactions consummated in their regions and to increase their ownership in the Company.
Under the Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan each Managing Director is eligible to receive
(i) an amount equal to 7% of the new business generation incentive compensation paid to officers of the Managing
Director’s region and (ii) an additional 20% of the new business generation incentive compensation paid to officers
of the Managing Director’s region on certain types of transactions. Losses from comparable transactions will offset
gains for the purpose of determining compensation payable under the plan. In addition, each Managing Director
may receive compensation up to $300,000 upon the achievement of profitability and sales leadership goals and
acquisitions and development projects. Managing Directors have no target maximum cash and equity bonus under
the Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan.

For 2006, Mr. Cook received an award of $510,011 in cash and 12,708 shares of restricted Common Stock. The
following table indicates the contribution of the various components of the Managing Director 2006 Incentive
Compensation Plan to this award:

Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan Components Value (%)
7% of the new business generation incentive compensation paid to officers of the Managing

|1 Gl 0] 3 2 () A A N 26
Additional 20% of the new business generation incentive compensation paid to officers of the

Managing Director’s region on certain types of transactions. . .. ............ .. ciinan... 54
Achievement of profitability and sales leadership goals and acquisitions and development projects . . 20
Benefits/Perquisites

The Company provides the Named Executive Officers with certain benefits/perquisites, which, depending on
the officer, include premivms paid by the Company on term life insurance and long-term disability insurance, car
allowances and personal financial planning allowances. The Named Executive Officers, along with all of the
Company’s other full time employees, also receive 401(k) matching contributions and standard health, life and
disability insurance. To the extent provided, premiums paid by the Company on term life insurance and long-term
disability insurance and personal financial planning allowances are specified in the employment agreements of the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Executive Vice
President — Operations. Current car allowances were set in 2000 and 2001 and are a function of the then
prevailing market rates to lease and operate an executive class vehicle. 401(k) matching payments are a function of
each Named Executive Officer’s contribution to his 401 (k) account during the year and the percentage match which
management determines to apply to the Company’s 401(k} Plan for that year. Standard health, life and disability
insurance benefits are a function of the group benefit packages the Company is able to negotiate with third party
providers.

Termination and Change-in-Control Triggers

Each of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and
Executive Vice President ~— Operations have employment agreements and all of the Named Executive Officers
have agreements in respect of their restricted stock awards pursuant to the Company’s stock incentive plans, and
such agreements specify certain events, including involuntary termination and change-in-control, which trigger the
payment of cash and/or vesting in restricted stock awards. The Company believes having such events as triggers for
the payment of cash and/or vesting in restricted stock awards promotes stability and continuity of management. See
“Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control” below for more information on the payments
triggered by such events.
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TAX AND ACCOUNTING IMPLICATIONS
Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), generally limits the
deductible amount of annual compensation paid by a public company to a-“‘covered employee” (the chief executive
officer and four other most highly compensated executive officers of the Company) to no more than $1 million. The
Company does not believe that Section 162(m) of the Code is applicable to its current arrangements with its
executive officers. :

Accounting for Restricted Stock

Effective January 1, 2006 the Company adopted FAS 123R, using the modified prospective application
method, which requires measurement of compensation cost for the Company's restricted stock awards at fair value
on the date of grant and recognition of compensation over the service period for awards expected to vest. Although
the Compensation Committee has considered the impacts of FAS 123R, it has not altered its equity award practices
as a result of it.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed, and discussed with
management, the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included above in this Proxy Statement, Based on such
review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors of the Company that
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the
Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee;

Robert J. Slater, Chairman
W. Ed Tyler
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION SUMMARY

The Summary Compensation Table below sets forth the aggregate compensation, including cash compen-
sation and amortization expenses of, and ordinary dividends with respect to, restricted stock awards, paid by the
Company to its Chief Executive Officer, its Chief Financial Officer and its three other most highly compensated
executive officers (the “Named Executive Officers™) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. The Grants of
Plan Based Awards Table following the Surnmary Compensation Table provides additional information regarding
the cash compensation paid and restricted stock awarded by the Company to Named Executive Officers.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and Executive Vice
President -— Operations have employment agreements which provide for an annual base salary, subject to increase
or decrease at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, an annual cash and/or equity bonus at the discretion
of the Board of Directors and as may be determined by the Committee and/or the Board, and certain other benefits.

Base salary of the Named Executive Officers accounted for only approximately 20% of the aggregate total
compensation of the Named Executive Officers for 2006. This is consistent with the Company’s compensation
philosophy, which is to weight compensation towards incentive compensation to better align executive compen-
sation with the Company’s actual economic performance during the applicable fiscal year.

Restricted Common Stock granted to the Named Executive Officers typically vests in three approximately
equal installments on each January 1st following the year of grant. From and after the date ofissuance, holders of the
restricted Common Stock are entitled to vote such Common Stock and receive dividends at the same rate applicable
to unrestricted shares of Common Stock.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Non-Equity
Annual Stock Incentive Plan All Other
Salary Awards Compensation  Compensation Total

Nome and Principal Position Year ® $X1) $)2) 3 (5}

{a) (b) ) (e} ® (i) @

Michael W. Brennan . . ............ 2006 $530,000 $1,061,425 '$850,000 $301,104 $2,742,529
President and CEQ .

Michael . Havala................ 2006 $315000 § 682,314 §$450,500 $210,887 $1,658,701
Chief Financial Officer S

Johannson L. Yap ... ............. 2006 $334,000 $ 594,722 $467,500 $199,208 $1,595,430
Chief Investment Officer .

David P.Draft. .................. 2006 $300,000 $ 543,297 $391,000 $145,247 $1,379,544
Executive Vice President — -
Operations .

Ame M, Cook................... 2006 $240,000 $ 342,995 $510,011 $ 84931 $1,177,937

Managing Director

(1) The amount reflected is the cost recognized by the Company in 2006 under FAS 123R for all restricted stock
grants to the executive in 2006 and prior years.

(2) Amounts represent cash incentive compensation awarded in February 2007 based on performance for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

(3) Includes premiums paid by the Company on term life insurance and long-term disability insurance, car
allowances, personal financial planning allowances and 401(k) matching paymenis. Term life insurance
premiums paid on behalf of Mr. Brennan in 2006 aggregated $15,800. Also includes dividends on shares of
unvested restricted Common Stock of: $263,679 for Mr. Brennan, $187,160 for Mr. Havala, $176,113 for
Mr. Yap, $128,997 for Mr. Draft and $72,031 for Mr. Cook. Does not include dividends/distributions paid on
original shares of Common Stock issued in connection with the Company’s initial public offering, shares of
Common Stock purchased subsequently in the open market or by exercise of options, shares of formerly
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restricted Common Stock after such stock has vested or on limited partnership units of First Industrial, L.P.
(which generally are exchangeable on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjistments, for Common Stock),

‘GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS TABLE

Estimated Future Payouts Grant Date
Under Non-Equity Incentive ~ Estimated Future Payouts Under paiv value
, . Plan Awards Equity Incentive Plan Awards of Stock
Grant Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximom Awards
Name Date  Approval ® @ - ® 6] EC)] 35 $)(6)
(@ ) Date {c) G)] {e) \Uj (® {h) (i)
Michael W. Brennan . . . . ... (1) 4} (2) 938,588 1,192,500 ) 810,867 991,100 1,417,680
Michael J. Havala, ... ... .. (0} n ) 564,000 630,000 2) 548,174 589,050 . 751,349
Johannson L. Yap......... (4] (1) (03] 597.840 668,000 (2} 581,060 624,580 779,703
David P.Draft . .......... (1) [{}] (03] 411,840 540,000 2) 444,763 561,000 652,154

AmeM. Cook . .......... ()] (n (3) 391,500 3) -3 371,762 3 586,855

(1) On December 6, 2005, the Compensation Committee determined 2006 salaries for the named executive officers
and set maximum percentages applicable to the cash and equity bonuses for Messrs. Brennan, Havala, Yap and
Draft. The Compensation Committee adopted performance criteria for 2006 bonus eligibility on March 8, 2006.
Cash and equity incentive awards bonuses for Named Executive Officers for 2006 were determined at a meeting
on January 30, 2007 and by a unanimous written consent dated as of February 23, 2007. Cash bonuses for
Named Executive Officers were paid February 28, 2007, and shares of restricted Common Stock were issued on
March 12, 2007.

'(2) Bonus payments for Messrs. Brennan, Havala, Yap and Draft do not have threshold amounts.
(3) Under the Managing Director 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan (described above), Mr. Cook is not subject to
any threshold amount or any limit on his cash or equity incentive compensation.
(4) The Company has no incentive bonus targets, per se. Amounts shown are the aggregate dollar values of the cash
and equity incentive bonuses paid for the year ended December 31, 2005.
(5) The Company does not express its maximum payout in numbers of shares, but rather as a dollar value based on a
. percentage of salary (187% in the case Messrs. Brennan, Havala, Yap and Draft).

(6) The Company typically grants shares of restricted Common Stock in March of each year as compensation for
the prior year’s performance. On March 12, 2007, the Company granted shares of restricted Commeon Stock to
the named executive officers as follows: 30,699 to Mr. Brennan; 16,270 to Mr. Havala; 16,884 to Mr. Yap;
14,122 to Mr. Draft; and 12,708 to Mr. Cook. The dollar amount shown represents closing price of the
Company’s Common Stock as reported by the NYSE on March 12, 2007 ($46.18).
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of Nurnher Market Value
Securities Securities Of Share of Shares or
Underlying Underlying Or Units Units of
Unexercised Unexercised Option Of Stock Stock
Options - Options Exercise Option That Have That Have
i ) Price Expiration Not Vested Not Vested
Name Exercisable Unexereisable $) Date @ $)
@ (b) {c) (e) 43 ® (h)(6)
Michael W. Brennan(1)............ 60,000 0 3113 5-14-08 93,836 4,399,970
75,000 0 33.13 1-23-11 — —
32,000 0 30.53 1-16-12 — —
Michael J. Havala(2).............. 0 0 — — 66,604 3,123,062
Johannson L. Yap(3).............. 52,000 0 3313 1-23-11 62,675 2,938,831
David P.Draft(4) ................ 0 0 — — 45907 2,152,579
0 — — 25,637 1,202,119

Ame M. Cook(5) ................ 0

(1) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported in column (g), 29,401 vested in January 2007, as to
which restrictions have been removed, 20,691 vest in January 2008, 14,252 vest in January 2009 and 29,492
vest in approximately equal installments in Januvary 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

(2) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported in column (g), 19,227 vested in January 2007, as to
which restrictions have been removed, 14,197 vest in January 2008, 10,356 vest in January 2009 and 22,824
vest in approximalely equal installments in January 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

(3) Ofthe shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported in column (g), 16,925 vested in January 2007, as to
which restrictions have been removed, 14,021 vest in January 2008, 10,289 vest in January 2009 and 21,440
vest in approximately equal installments in January 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

(4) Ofthe shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported in column (g), 15,003 vested in January 2007, as to
which restrictions have been removed, 10,538 vest in January 2008, 7,092 vest in January 2009 and 13,274 vest
in approximately equal installments in January 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

(5) Of the shares of unvested restricted Common Stock reported in column (g), 9,434 vested in January 2007, as to
which restrictions have been removed, 6,392 vest in January 2008, 4,484 vest in January 2009 and 5,326 vest in
approximately equal installments in January 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

(6) The dollar amounts shown in column (h) are approximately equal to the product of the number of shares of

-restricted Common Stock reported in column (g) multiplied by the closing price of the Common Stock as
reported by the NYSE on December 29, 2006, the last trading day of the year ($46.89). This valuation does not
take into account any diminution in value that results from the restrictions applicable to such Common Stock.
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OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

In 2006, no options were exercised by the Named Executive Ofﬁcers and an aggregate of 91 204 shares of
_ restricted Common Stock held by the Named Executive Officers vested.

Options Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Shares Value
Acquired on Value Realized Acquired on Realized
Exercise on Exercise Vesting on Vesting
Name ) : $) (1) )2
(a) () (© d (e)
Michael W.Brennan . ........... ... 0. 0 — 30,740 1,211,770
Michael L Havala .. ... ... .. .. .. ... .. ..... 0 — - 19,437 766,207
Johannson L. Yap . ........oiiiiniinnnnnn.. 0 — 17,179 677,196
DavidP.Draft.......... ... ...t 0 — 15,036 592,719
0 — 8,812 347,369

Ame M. Cook........o it i e

(1} The shares of Common Stock reported in column (d} vested on January 1, 2006.

(2) The dollar amounts shown in column (e) are approximately equal to the product of the number of shares of
Common Stock reported in column (d) multiplied by the closing price of the Commeon Stock as reported by the
NYSE on January 3, 2006, the first trading following the date of vesting of such award ($39.42).

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CONTROL
Employment Agreements

The Company has entered into wrilten employment agreements with Messrs. Brennan, Havala, Yap and Draft.
These employment agreements may require the Company to make payments and provide benefits to these
executives in the event of a termination of their employment or of a change of control. Severance amounts
payable to Messrs. Havala, Yap and Draft upon their termination will be reduced if such amounts become payable
after their respective 67th birthdays. In addition to their rights under the standard grant agreements under our stock
incentive plans, Messrs. Havala, Yap and Draft are entitled to the accelerated vesting of their restricted stock and
stock options in the event their employment is terminated without cause.

In addition to the events of termination of employment identified in the following table, the employment
agreements provide for payments in the event of an executive’s death or disability. Mr. Brennan’s agreement
provides that, upon a termination related to disability, Mr. Brennan is entitled to receive his current annual base
salary for five years after termination and to the continuation of his health benefits or comparable health coverage
for a period of up to five years. Upon a work-related disability, each of Mr. Havala, Mr. Yap and Mr. Draft is entitled
to severance in an amount equal to three times his annual base salary, plus 75% of his maximum bonus potential for
the then-current year prorated through the date of termination. Upon death, each executive is entitled to such base
salary and unused vacation pay that has accrued and remains unpaid through the date of death and 75% of the
maximum cash bonus for which he would have been eligible, prorated through the date of his death.

The employment agreemenis also contain important non-financial provisions that apply in the event of a
termination of employment or of a change of control. Benefits payable upon a merger, acquisition or other changes
in control are payable upon consummation of such transactions regardless of whether the executive is terminated.
Each of Mr. Havala, Mr. Yap and Mr. Draft has agreed to a one-year covenant not to compete after his termination,
except in connection with certain changes in control of the Company. Each of Mr. Havala, Mr. Yap and Mr. Drafi has
agreed to a six-month covenant not to compete in connection with certain changes in control of the Company. In the
event of termination, Mr. Brennan has agreed to a one-year covenant not to compete and a two-year covenant {(one
year in the case of a change of control) not to solicit Company employees after termination.
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Stock Incentive Plans

Under the 1994, 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans, unvested restricted Common Stock fully vests in the event of a
change of contrel or involuntary termination. Assuming that the triggering event occurred on December 31, 2006,
Messrs, Brennan, Havala, Yap, Draft and Cook, would have vested in restricted Common Stock having a value at the
time of vesting of $4,399,970, $3,123,062, $2,938,831, $2,152,579 and $1,202,119, respectively (based on the
closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on December 29, 2006 ($46.89), the last trading day of the year).

The following table includes estimated payments owed and benefits required to be provided to the applicable
Named Executive Officer under the employment agreements and stock incentive plans described above, exclusive
of benefits available on a non-discriminatory basis generally, in each case assuming that the triggering event
occurred on December 31, 2006.

Accelerated Medical

Equity Insurance
Severance Awards Premiums
Name Triggering Event ((ME))] (3U®) ax$)

Michael W. Brennan. . ......... Change of Control 4421,198 4,399,970 22,596
Termination w/o Cause(2) 4,421,198 4,399,970 22,596

Non-renewal of Agreement 3,724,676 4,399,970 22,596

Termination for Cause 0 4,399,970 0

Michael J. Havala............. Change of Control 2,520,000 3,123,062 33,895
Termination w/o Cause(2) 1,370,250 3,123,062 33,895

Termination for Cause 0 3,123,062 0

Johannson L. Yap............. Change of Control 2,672,000 2,938,831 33,895
Termination wfo Cause(2) 1,503,000 2,938,831 33,895

Termination for Cause 0 2,938,831 -0

David P. Draft ............... Change of Control 2,220,000 2,152,579 . 23,397
Termination w/o Cause(2) 1,305,000 2,152,579 23,397

Termination for Cause 0 2,152,579 0

Ame M. Cook ............... Change of Control 0 1,202,119 0
Termination w/o Cause 0 1,202,119 0

Termination for Cause 0 1,202,119 0

(1) Each Named Executive other than Mr. Cook is entitled to a supplemental payment of one month’s base salary in
addition to amounts reflected if requisite notice is not provided prior to termination of employment by the
Company.

(2) Includes constructive discharge under the terms of the.employment agreement of each Named Executive
Officer other than Mr. Cook.

(3) For purposes of estimating the value of awards of restricted stock for which restrictions lapse the Company has
assumed a price per share of its Common Stock of $46.89, which was the closing price of its Common Stock on
the NYSE on December 29, 2006, the last trading day of the year.

{4) Present value of estimated premiums required to be paid by the Company or cash payments in lieu of benefits
required to be provided.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Slater and Tyler. Neither of them has served as an officer of
the Company nor, except for his service as a director, had any other business relationship or affiliation with the
Company in 2006 requiring disclosure by the Company under Item 404 of Regulation S-K.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to a meeting of the Audit Committee on February 26, 2007, the Audit Committee reports that it has:
(i) reviewed and discussed the Company’s audited financial statenents with management; (i) discussed with the
independent registered public accounting firm the matters (such as the quality of the Company’s accounting
principles and internal controls) required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61; and
(iii) received written confirmation from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP that it is independent and written disclosures
regarding such independence as required by Indeperdence Standards Board No. I, and discussed with Pricewa-
terhouseCoopers LLP its independence. Based on the review and discussions referred to in items (i} through
(iti) above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the andited financial statements be
included in the Company’s anrual report for the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Submitted by the Audit Committee:

John Rau, Chairman
Kevin W. Lynch
J. Steven Wilson

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS, PROMOTERS AND CERTAIN CONTROL PERSONS

Transactions with Related Persons. The Company often engages in transactions for which CB Richard Ellis,
Inc. (“CBRE") acts as a broker. CBRE is among the largest real estate brokerage companies in the world. The
brother of Michael W. Brennan, the President and Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company, is an
employee of CBRE and a member of CBRE's national Single Tenant Net Lease Properties Group. In 2006, in five
transactions in which the Company sold property for approximately $88.5 million, $114.3 million, $10.6 million,
$4.6 million and $12.5 million, Mr. Brennan’s brother received $79,650, $139,242, $52,750, $23,125 and $46,588,
respectively, as a portion of the brokerage commissions paid by the Company to CBRE in connection with such
transactions. In January 2007, in one transaction in which the Company sold property for approximately
$48.8 million, Mr. Brennan’s brother received $116,750, as a portion of the brokerage commissions paid by
the buyer to CBRE in connection with such transactions. Management of the Company believes the terms of
brokerage services provided by CBRE in such transaction were as favorable to the Company as could be obtained in
arm’s length transactions.

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons. Transactions involving the Company
and its executive officers and directors that are reportable under Item 404 of Regulation S-K are required by the
Company’s written policies to be reported to and approved by the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee of
the Board of Directors. The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee addresses such transactions on a
case-by-case basis, after considering the relevant facts and circumstances. The Company’s engagement in
transactions involving CBRE and Mr. Brennan's brother {(e.g. as discussed above) was approved by the Board
of Directors prior to the implementation of such policies.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended, the “Exchange Act”) requires the
Company's officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the
Company’s equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC and the NYSE.
Officers, directors and “greater than ten-percent” stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the
Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms so filed.

Based solely on review of the copies of such forms furnished to the Company for 2006, all of the Company’s
officers, directors and “greater than ten-percent” stockholders timely filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table presents information concerning the ownership of Common Stock of the Company and
limited partnership units (“Units”) of First Industrial, L.P. (which generally are exchangeable on a one-for-one
basis, subject to adjustments, for Common Stock) by all directors, the Named Executive Officers, the directors and
executive officers of the Company as a group and persons and entities, if any, known to the Company to be
beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Company’s Common Stock. The information is presented as of March 20,
2007, unless otherwise indicated, and is based on representations of officers and directors of the Company and
filings received by the Company on Schedule 13G under the Exchange Act. As of March 20, 2007, there were
45,378,060 shares of Common Stock and 6,550,492 Units outstanding.

Common Stock/Units
Beneficially Owned

Percent
Names and Addresses of 5% Stockholders Number of Class
INGGroep NV . e e i it i e 3,370,100 7.4%

Amstelveenseweg 500
1081 KL. Amsterdam(1)
Barclays Global Investors Japan Limited . . ... ......... ... .o oot 3,295,312 71.3%
Ebisu Prime Square Tower, 8th Floor
1-1-39 Hiroo Shibuya-Ku
Tokyo 150-8402 Japan(2)
The Vanguard Group, INC.. . .. .ottt e et et a et en e 2,601,394 579%
100 Vanguard Blvd.
Malvern, PA 19355(3)

Names and Addresses of Directors and Officers*

Jay H. Shidler(d) . ... e e e 1,350,771 3.0%
Michael W. Bremnan(5). . .. oot v v v i rsr e e et et e e 558,681 1.2%
Michael G. Damone(6) . . .. ...t u ittt ie e n i e e e e 214,213 **
Kevin W, Lynch(?) . ... ... i e e 8,901 *F
Robert D, Newman(B). . . ... ... ittt eiar et ee i anannnas 440 **
John Rau() . ..o e e e e e e 9,542 **
Robert J. Slater(10) ... ittt i it i s 19,690 **
W B TYIER(IL) - . oo oot ettt et et e e e 39,741 +
T Steven Wilson(12). . ... oot o i i 81,026 b
Michael J. Havala(l3). . ... ... . it i i et et i e 134,418 A
Johannson L. Yap(14) . ... ..o i e e e 242748 .
David P. Draft(18) . ..o i i e e e e 95,251 ok
AmMe M. CooK(16) . ...ttt e e e e e 49,305 **
All directors, Named Executive Officers and other executive officers as a group

(16 persons)(17) . .o v e e e 2,903,699 6.3%

* The business address for each of the directors and executive officers of the Company is 311 South Wacker
Drive, Suite 4000, Chicago, lllinois 60606,

** | ess than 1%

(1) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G filed February 14, 2007 by ING Groep N.V. (“ING Groep”). ING Groep has the
sole power to vote and dispose of all 3,370,100 shares reported. According to the Schedule 13G, the shares
held by ING Groep include the ownership interests separately reported by ING Clarion Real Estate
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Securities L.P., a wholly-ov'vned indirect subsidiary of ING Groep, in a Schedule 13G filed with the
Commission on February 13, 2007,

(2) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G dated February 14, 2007 filed by Barclays Global Investors Japan Trust and
Banking Company Limited (“BGIJ”). BGII has the sole power to dispose of all 2,298,963 shares reported, but-
has the sole power to vote only 2,102,977 of such shares.

(3) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G dated February 14, 2007 filed by The Vanguard Group Inc. {*Vanguard”}).
Vanguard has the sole power to dispose of all 2,601,394 shares reported, but has the sole power fo vote only
75,421 of such shares.

{4) Includes 910,660 shares held by Shidler Equities, L.P., a Hawaii limited partnership owned by Mr. Shidler and
Mrs. Shidler, 20,000 shares owned by Mrs. Shidler, 68,020 Units held by Mr. Shidler directly, 254,541 Units
held by Shidler Equities, L.P,, 1,223 Units held by Mr. and Mrs. Shidler jointly, and 22,079 Units held by
Holman/Shidler Investment Corporation. Also includes 10,333 shares of restricted Common Stock issued
under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(5) Includes 167,000 shares that may be acquired by Mr. Brennan upon the exercise of vested options granted
under the 1997 Stock Plan, consisting of 60,000 shares at an exercise price of $31.13 per share, 75,000 shares
at an exercise price of $33.13 per share and 32,000 shares at an exercise price of $30.53 per share. Also
includes 3,806 Units and 95,138 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock
Plans.

(6) Includes 7,500 shares held by a trust for the benefit of Mr. Damone’s wife. Also includes 6,700 shares that may
be acquired upon the exercise of vested options granted under the 1997 Stock Plan at an exercise price of
$30.53 per share. Also includes 144,296 Units. Also includes 8,717 shares of restricted Common Stock issued
under the 1997 Stock Plan.

{7 Includes 8,901 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(8) Includes 440 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 2001 Stock Pilan.

(9) Includes 8,383 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.
(10) Includes 10,264 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(11) Includes 30,000 shares that may be acquired by Mr. Tyler upon the exercise of vested options granted under the
1997 Stock Plan, consisting of 10,000 shares at an exercise price of $30.00 per share, 10,000 shares at an
exercise price of $31.05 per share and 10,000 shares at an exercise price of $33.15 per share. Also includes
8,741 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(12) Includes 60,000 shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of vested options granted under the 1997 Stock
Plan, consisting of 10,000 shares at an exercise price of $30.50 per share, 10,000 shares at an exercise price of
$31.13 per share, 10,000 shares at an exercise price of $27.69 per share, 10,000 shares at an exercise price of
$30.00 per share, 10,000 shares at an exercise price of $31.05 per share and 10,000 shares at an exercise price
of $33.15 per share. Also includes 10,333 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001
Stock Plans.

(13) Includes 2,100 shares held in custodial accounts for Mr. Havala’s children. Also includes 63,647 shares of
restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(14) Includes 52,000 shares that may be acquired by Mr. Yap upon the exercise of vested options granted under the
1997 Stock Plan at an exercise price of $33.13 per share. Also includes 1,680 Units. Also includes
62,636 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(15) Includes 45,028 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(16) Includes 28,910 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans.

(17) Includes 315,700 shares in the aggregate that may be acquired by directors and executive officers upon the
exercise of vested options granted under the 1997 Stock Plan, consisting of 10,000 shares at an exercise price

of $30.50, 70,000 shares at an exercise price of $31.13, 10,000 shares at an exercise price of $27.69,
127,000 shares at an exercise price of $33.13, 20,000 shares at an exercise price of $30.00, 20,000 shares at an
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exercise price of $31.05, 20,000 shares at an exercise price of $33.15 and 38,700 shares at an exercise price of
$30.53. Also includes 495,645 Units. Also includes 417,145 shares of restricted Common Stock issued under
the 1997 and 2001 Stock Plans. '

PROPOSAL It
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE 2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

At its meeting on February 28, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted Amendment No. 2 (the
“Amendment No. 2”) to the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended by
Amendment No. 1, the “Plan™) and directed that Amendment No. 2 be submiited to the stockholders for their
approval. As previously adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company and approved by the Company’s
stockholders, the Plan provides for the issuance of a total of 2,300,000 shares of Common Stock but has a sub-limit
for the number of shares of Common Stock specifically available for grants of stock appreciation rights,
performance share awards and restricted stock awards of 950,000 shares for all participants for the life of the
Plan and has a further sub-limit for the number of shares of Common Stock specifically available for grants of
performance share awards and restricted stock awards to 100,000 to any one participant in any one calendar year. In
2002, the Company discontinued issuing options to employees and directors and, since then, has used restricted
stock awards exclusively as its equity incentive award. As the Company intends to continue using restricted stock
awards exclusively as its equity incentive award, it will need the current sub-limit on the number of shares of
Common Stock available under the Plan for grants of stock appreciation rights, performance share awards and
restricted stock awards to be increased. The purpose of Amendment No. 2 is to effect an increase in such sub-limits
by (i) making the maximum number of shares available for grant under the Plan available for any type of award
authorized under the Plan and (ii) increasing to 250,000 shares the maximum number of shares of Common Stock
subject to performance share awards and restricted stock awards that may be granted during a calendar year to any
participant under the Plan. The total number of shares issuable under the Plan, however, remains unchanged at
2,300,000. The Board of Directors of the Company believes that the adoption of Amendment No. 2 is in the best
interests of the stockholders and the Company because the continuing ability to grant restricted stock awards under
the Plan is an important factor in attracting, motivating and retaining qualified personnel.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of Amendment No. 2 to
the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan.

Below are summaries of the Plan incorporating the proposed amendment and the federal income tax
consequences of the Plan. As reported on the NYSE, the closing price per share of the Company’s Common
Stock on April 2, 2007 was $45.67.

SUMMARY OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE 2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN .

General. ‘The purpose of the Plan is to encourage and enable the officers, employees and directors of the
Company and its affiliates (approximately 489 employees, including two employee directors, and seven non-
employee directors), upon whose judgment, initiative and efforts the Company largely depends for the successful
conduct of its business, to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company. The Plan provides for the grant of incentive
stock options, within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), to
employees of the Company and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”),
restricted stock awards, performance share awards and dividend equivalents to officers, employees and directors of
the Company. The Board of Directors has authorized, and stockholders have approved, 2,300,000 shares of
Common Stock for issuance under the Plan. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock issuable with
respect to SARs and stock options that may be granted during a calendar year to any participant under the Plan is
500,000 shares. Also, with respect to performance share awards and restricted stock awards, the maximum number
of shares of Common Stock issuable with respect to such awards granted during a calendar year to any participant
under the Plan is 250,000 shares. In the event of any recapitalization, reclassification, split-up or consolidation of
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shares of stock, separation (including a spin-off), dividend on shares of stock payable in capital stock, or other
similar change in capitalization of the Company or a merger or consolidation of the Company or sale by the
Company of all or a portion of its assets or other similar event, appropriate adjustments will be made to the shares,
including the number thereof, subject to the Plan and to any outstanding awards. Shares of Common Stock
underlying any awards which are forfeited, canceled, reacquired by the Company, satisfied without the issuance of
Common Stock or otherwise terminated (other than by exercise) will be added back to the shares of Commeon Stock
available for issuance under the Plan.

Administration. The 2001 Stock Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Compensation Committee determines
the persons to whom grants of options, SARs, restricted stock awards, performance share awards and dividend
equivalents are to be made, the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by each grant and all other terms
and conditions of the grant. If an option is granted, the Compensation Committee will determine whether the option
is an incentive stock option or a nonstatutory stock option, the option’s term, vesting and exercisability, and the
other terms and conditions of the grant. The Compensation Committee also determines the terms and conditions of
SARs, restricted stock awards, performance share awards and dividend equivalents. The Compensation Committee
has the responsibility to interpret the Plan and to make determinations with respect to all awards granted under the
Plan. All determinations of the Compensation Committee are binding on all persons, including the Company and
plan participants. The costs and expenses of administering the Plan are borne by the Company.

Eligibiliry.  Participants in the Plan are directors and the full or part-time officers and other employees of the
Company and its affiliates who are responsible for or contribute to the management, growth or profitability of the
Company and its affiliates and who are selected from time to time by the Compensation Commiltee, in its sole
discretion. '

Terms and Conditions of Option Grants. Each option granted under the Plan will be evidenced by a written
agreement in a form that the Compensation Committee may from time to time approve, will be subject to the terms
and conditions of the Plan and may contain such additional terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of
the Plan, as may be determined by the Compensation Committee. The per share exercise price of an incentive stock
option may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the date of the aption’s
grant and the term of any such option shall expire on the tenth anniversary of the date of the option’s grant. In
addition, the per share exercise price of any incentive stock option granted to a person who at the time of the grant
owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of stock of the
Company must be at least 110% of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of
grant and the option must expire no later than five years after the date of its grant. Generally, options may be
exercised by the payment by the optionee or the optionee’s broker of the exercise price in cash, certified check or
wire transfer, or, subject to the approval of the Compensation Committee, through the tender of shares of the
Company’s Common Stock owned by the optionee having a fair market value not less than the exercise price.
Options granted under the Plan will become exercisable at such times as may be specified by the Compensation
Committee, subject to various limitations on exercisability in the event the optionee’s employment or service with
the Company terminates. Options are generally nontransferable by the optionee other than by will or by the laws of
descent and distribution and are exercisable during the optionee’s lifetime only by the optionee, except that non-
qualified options may be transferred to one or more members of the optionee’s immediate family, to certain entities
for the benefit of the optionee’s immediate family menibers or pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order.

Terms and Conditions of Other Awards. Each SAR, restricted stock award and performance share award
made under the Plan will be evidenced by a written agreement in a form and containing such terms, restrictions and
conditions as may be determined by the Compensation Committee, consisteat with the requirements of the Plan. A
SAR may be granted separately or in conjunction with the grant of an option. If the Compensation Committee
determines that a restricted stock award or a performance share award to be granted to a participant should qualify as
“performance-based compensation” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code, the grant, vesting and settlement
of such award will be contingent upon achievement of one or more pre-established performance goals. One or more
of the following business criteria for the Company must be used by the Compensation Committee in establishing
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such performance goals: (1) earnings, including Funds From Operations; (2) revenues; (3) cash flow; (4) cash flow
return on investment; (3) return on assets; (6} return on investment; (7) return on capital; (8) return on equity;
(9) economic value added; (10) operating margin; {11) net income; (12} pretax earnings; (13) pretax earnings before
interest, depreciation and amortization; (14) pretax operating earnings after interest expense and before incentives,
service fees, and extraordinary or special items; (15) operating earnings; (16) total stockholder return; and (17) any
of the above goals as compared to the performance of a published or special index deemed applicable by the
Compensation Committee including, but not limited to, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index. The Compensation
Committee does not have the authority to increase the amount of compensation payable under any performance
share award intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” to the extent such an increase would cause
the amounts payable pursuant to the performance share award to be nondeductible in whole or in part pursuant to
Section 162(m) of the Code and the regulations thereunder. SARs, restricted stock awards and performance share
awards are generally nontransferable, except that SARs may be transferred pursuant to a certified domestic relations
order and may be exercised by the executor, administrator or personal representative of a deceased participant
within six months of the death of the participant.

Change of Control Provisions. *“Change of Control” generally means the occurrence of any one of the
following events:

(i) any person (other than the Company, any of its subsidiaries, any trustee, fiduciary or other person or
entity holding securities under any employee benefit plan of the Company or any of its subsidiaries}, together
with all affiliates and associates of such person, becomes the direct or indirect beneficial owner of securities of
the Company representing 40% or more of either (A) the combined voting power of the Company's then
outstanding securities having the right to vote in an election of the Company’s Board of Directors or (B) the
then outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company (in either such case other than as a result of
acquisition of securities directly from the Company); or

(ii) persons who, as of the effective date of the Plan, constitute the Company’s Board of, Directors
(“Incumbent Directors™} cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board of Directors
(however, any person becoming a director of the Company subsequent to the effective date of the Plan whose
election or nomination for election was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the Incumbent Directors
will, for purposes of the Plan, be considered an Incumbent Director); or

(iii) the stockholders of the Company approve {A) any consolidation or merger of the Company or any
subsidiary where the stockholders of the Company, immediately prior to the consolidation or merger, would
not, immediately after the consolidation or merger, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, shares representing
in the aggregate 50% or more of the voting stock of the corporation issuing cash or securities in the
consolidation or merger (or of its ultimate parent corporation, if any), (B) any sale, lease, exchange or other
transfer (in one transaction or a series of transactions contemplated or arranged by any party as a single plan) of
all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or (C) any plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution
of the Company.

In general, upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, options and SARs automatically woultd become fully
exercisable and restrictions and conditions on restricted stock awards, performance share awards and dividend
equivalents would automatically be deemed waived.

Amendment and Termination of the Plan. The Board of Directors may at any time amend or discontinue the
Plan and the Compensation Committee may at any time amend or cancel any outstanding award, but no such action
will adversely affect rights under any outstanding award without the holder’s consent and, except in the event of
changes in the capitalization of the Company or other similar events, no amendment to any outstanding award will
reduce the exercise price of the award.
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SUMMARY OF FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF
THE 2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The following discussion summarizes the principal federal income tax consequences of the Plan. This
discussion is based on current provisions of the Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder, and administrative
and judicial interpretations thereof as in effect on the date hereof. The summary does not address any {oreign, state
or local tax consequences of participation in the Plan.

Stock Options. In general, the grant of an option will not be a taxable event to the recipient and it will not
result in a deduction to the Company. The tax consequences associated with the exercise of an option and the
subsequent disposition of shares of Common Stock acquired on the exercise of such option depend on whether the
opticn is an incentive stock option or a nonqualified stock option.

Upon the exercise of a nonqualified stock option, the participant will recognize ordinary taxable income equal
to the excess of the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock received upon exercise over the exercise price,
The Company will generally be able to claim a deduction in an equivalent amount. Any gain or loss upon a
subsequent sale or exchange of the shares of Common Stock will be capital gain or loss, long-term or short-term,
depending on the holding period for the shares of Common Stock.

Generally, a participant will not recognize ordinary taxable income at the time of exercise of an incentive stock
option and no deduction will be available to the Company, provided the option is exercised while the participant is
an employee or within three months following termination of employment (longer, in the case of termination of
employment by reason of disability or death). If an incentive stock option granted under the Plan is exercised after
these periods, the exercise will be treated for federal income tax purposes as the exercise of a nonqualified stock
option. Also, an incentive stock option granted under the Plan will be treated as a nonqualified stock option to the
extent it (together with any other incentive stock options granted under other plans of the Company and its
subsidiaries) first becomes exercisable in any calendar year for shares of Common Stock having a fair market value,
determined as of the date of grant, in excess of $100,000.

If shares of Common Stock acquired upon exercise of an incentive stock option are sold or exchanged more than
one year after the date of exercise and more than two years after the date of grant of the option, any gain or loss will be
long-term capital gain or loss. If shares of Common Stock acquired upon exercise of an incentive stock option are
disposed of prior to the expiration of these one-year or two-year holding periods (a “Disqualifying Disposition”), the
participant will recognize ordinary income at the time of disposition, and the Company will generally be able to claim
a deduction, in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock at the date of
exercise over the exercise price. Any additional gain will be treated as capital gain, long-term or short-term, depending
on how long the shares of Common Stock have been held. Where shares of Common Stock are sold or exchanged in a
Disqualifying Disposition (other than certain related party transactions) for an amount less than their fair market value
at the date of exercise, any ordinary income recognized in connection with the Disqualifying Disposition will be
limited to the amount of gain, if any, recognized in the sale or exchange, and any loss will be a long-term or short-term
capital loss, depending on how long the shares of Common Stock have been held.

Although the exercise of an incentive stock option as described above would not produce ordinary taxable
income to the participant, it would result in an increase in the participant’s alternatwe minimum taxable income and
may result in an alternative minimum tax liability.

Restricted Stock. A participant who receives shares of restricted stock will generally recognize ordinary
income at the time the stock vests. The amount of ordinary income so recognized will be the fair market value of the
Common Stock at the time the income is recognized, determined without regard to any restrictions other than
restrictions which by their terms will never lapse. This amount is generally deductible for federal income tax
purposes by the Company. Dividends paid with respect to unvested restricted stock will be ordinary compensation
income to the participant (and generally deductible by the Company). Any gain or loss upon a subsequent sale or
exchange of the shares of Common Stock, measured by the difference between the sale price and the fair market
value on the date restrictions lapse, will be capital gain or loss, long-term or short-term, depending on the holding
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period for the shares of Common Stock. The holding period for this purpose will begin on the date following the date
the stock vests.

In lieu of the treatment described above, a participant may elect immediate recognition of income under
Section 83(b) of the Code. In such event, the participant will recognize as income the fair market value of the
restricted stock at the time of grant (determined without regard to any restrictions other than restrictions which by
their terms will never lapse), and the Company will generally be entitled to a corresponding deduction. Dividends
paid with respect to shares as to which a proper Section 83(b) election has been made will not be deductible to the
Company. If a Section 83(b) election is made and the restricted stock is subsequently forfeited, the participant will
not be entitled to any offsetting tax deduction.

Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Awards. With respect to SARs and other awards under the Plan not
described above, generally, when a participant receives payment with respect to an award granted to him or her
under the Plan, the amount of cash and the fair market value of any other property received will be ordinary income
to such participant and will be allowed as a deduction for federal income tax purposes to the Company.

Payment of Withholding Taxes. The Company may withhold, or require a participant to remit to the
Company, an amount sufficient to salisfy any federal, state or local withholding tax requirements associated with
awards under the Plan,

Speaal Rules. Certain special rules apply if the exercise price for an option is paid in shares prevmusly
owned by the optionee rather than in cash.

Limitation on Deductibility. Section 162(m) of the Code generally limits the deductible amount of annual
compensation paid (including, unless an exception applies, compensation otherwise deductible in connection with
awards granted under the Plan) by a public company to a “covered employee” (the chief executive officer and four
other most highly compensated executive officers of the Company) to no more than $1 million. The Company does
no! believe that Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code is apphcable to its current arrangements with its
executive officers. '

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION(1)
Number of Securities Weighted-Average Number of Securities

to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Remazining Available
Exercise of Outstanding for Further Issuance
Outstanding Options,  Options, Warrants Under Equity
Plan Category Warrants and Rights and Rights Compensation Plans
Equity Compensation Plans Approveci by '
Security Holders . . ............ ... ..., — — 2,178,868(2)
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by -
Security Holders(3). . . ....... ... vvntts 381,976 $31.65 93,340
Total ... e 381,976 $31.65 2,272,208

(1) Information as of December 31, 2006.

{2) As of March 20, 2007, 1,736,860 shares of Common Stock were available for issuance under the 2001 Stock
Plan. Of those shares, without giving effect to the proposed Amendment No. 2 to the 2001 Stock Plan,
386,860 shares were available for issuance in the form of restricted Common Stock.

(3) The Company’s 1997 Stock Plan authorizes (i) the grant of stock options that qualify as incentive stock options
under Section 422 of the Code, (ii) the grant of stock options that do not so qualify, (iii) restricted stock awards,
(iv) performance share awards and (v) dividend equivalent rights. The exercise price of the stock options is
determined by the Compensation Committee. Special provisions apply to awards granted under the 1997 Stock
Plan in the event of a change in control in the Company. The outstanding stock options under the 1997 Stock
Plan vested within one to three years of issuance and expire ten years after issuance. The outstanding restricted
Common Stock under the 1997 Stock Plan vests over periods from one to ten years. The vesting schedule of
restricted Common Stock available for issuance under the- 1997 Stock Plan will be determmed by the
Compensation Committee at the time of issuance.
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PROPOSAL I

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The accounting firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (or its predecessor, Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.) has
served as the Company’s independent auditors since the Company’s formation in August 1993. On February 26,
2007, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the current fiscal year. A representative of Pricewaterhou-
seCoopers LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting, will be given the opportunity to make a statement if he or she
so desires and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

AUDIT FEES ' ‘

The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
for professional services rendered in counection with (i) the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements,
(ii) the review of the financial staterments included in the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the
quarters ended March 31, June 30, and September 30, (iii) consents and comfort letters issued in connection with
debt and equity offerings and registration statements were $1,329,160 and $994,733, respectively.

AUDIT-RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for assurance and related services, including
Rule 3-14 audit work, joint venture audits and an employee benefit plan audit, for 2006 were approximately
$414,633, including expenses. The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for assurance and related
services, including Rule 3-14 audit work, joint venture audits and an employee benefit plan audit, for 2005 were
approximately $268,336, including expenses.

TAX FEES

Tax Compliance. The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for tax compliance, including
tax return preparation, in 2006 were approximately $591,322, including expenses. The aggregate fees billed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for tax compliance, including tax return preparanon in 2005 were approximately
$312,514, including expenses.

Tax Consulting. The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for tax advice and tax planning
services, including 1031 Exchange consultation, REIT compliance consultation, state audit consultation, trans-
action consultation, return of capital review, federal and state regulation consultation, federal and state entity
structuring and taxable REIT subsidiary consultation in 2006 were approximately $259,903, including expenses.
The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for tax advice and tax planning services, including 1031
Exchange consultation, REIT compliance consultation, state audit consultation, transaction consultation, return of
capital review, federal and state regulation consultation, federal and state entity structuring and taxable REIT
subsidiary consultation in 2005 were approximately $172,521, including expenses.

ALL OTHER FEES

During fiscal 2006 and 2005, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP did not prov1de any services to the Company other
than those i in the categories noted above,
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PRE-APPROVAL OF SERVICES

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit, audit-related, tax and other services proposed to be provided by
the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. Consideration and approval of such services
generally occur at the Audit Committee’s regularly scheduled meetings. In situations where it is impractical to wait
until the next regularly scheduled meeting, the Audit Committee has delegated the authority to approve the audit,
audit-related, tax and other services to each of its individual members. Approvals of audit, audit-related, tax and
other services pursuant to the above-described delegation of authority must be reported to the full Audit Committee
at its next regularly scheduled meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR ratification of the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2007,
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OTHER MATTERS

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

The cost of solicitation of proxies in the form enclosed herewith will be borne by the Company. In addition to
the solicitation of proxies by mail, the directors, officers and employees of the Company may also solicit proxies
personally or by telephone without additional compensation for such activities. The Company will also request
persons, firms and corporations holding shares in their names or in the names of their nominees, which are
beneficially owned by others, to send proxy materials to and obtain proxies from such beneficial owners. The
Company will reimburse such holders for their reasonable expenses. :

Georgeson Sharcholder Services, Inc. acts as the Company’s proxy solicitor at a cost of $7,500, plus
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, including a telephone solicitation campaign approved by the Company.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockhelders must be received
by the Secretary of the Company no later than December 11, 2007, in order to be considered for inclusion in the
proxy statement and on the proxy card that will be solicited by the Board of Directors in connection with the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. -

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

In the pages preceding this Proxy Statement is a Letter to Stockholders from the Company’s President and
Chief Executive Officer. Appendix B to this Proxy Statement is the Company’s 2006 Annual Report, which includes
its consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations, as well as certain other financial and other information required by the rules and regulations of the SEC.
Information contained in the Letter to Stockholders or Appendix B to this Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to
be “filed” or “soliciting material,” or subject to liability for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act to the
maximum extent permitted under the Exchange Act.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors does not know of any matters other than those described in this Proxy Statement that
will be presented for action at the Annual Meeting. If other matters are presented, it is the intention of the persons
named as proxies in the accompanying Proxy Card to vote in their discretion all shares represented by validly
executed proxies.

REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER OF SHARES YOU OWN, YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT TO THE
COMPANY. PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY
CARD TODAY.
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APPENDIX A

AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO THE o
FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

AMENDMENT NO. 2 (the “Amendment”), to the First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “Plan™) established and maintained by First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the
“Company™). Capitalized terms used herein and not defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Plan.

WHEREAS, the Plan makes available for issuance a maximum of 2,300,000 shares of the Stock, up to 950,000
of which are available for issnance under the Plan with respect to Stock Appreciation Rights, Performance Share
Awards and Restricted Stock Awards;

WHEREAS, the Plan currently provides that the maximum number of shares of Stock subject to Performance
Share Awards and Restricted Stock Awards granted during a calendar year to any Participant under the Plan shall be
100,000 shares;

WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Plan reservés to the Board the right to amend the Plan at any time;

WHEREAS, the Board has approved making the maximum number of shares available for grant under the Plan
available for any type of Award authorized under the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Board has approved increasing to 250,000 shares the maximum number of shares of Stock
subject to Performance Share Awards and Restricted Stock Awards that may be granted during a calendar year to .
any Participant under the Plan.

SECTION 1. Amendment to Plan.

The fourth sentence of Section 3(a) of the Plan is hereby amended and restated as follows:

“Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 3(b) below, (i) the maximum number of shares of Stock with
respect to which Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted during a calendar year to any
participant under the Plan shall be 500,000 shares and (ii) with respect to Performance Share Awards and Restricted
Stock Awards, the maximum number of shares of Stock subject to such awards granted during a calendar year to any
participant under the Plan shall be 250,000 shares.”

SECTION 2. Effective Date of the Amendment; Ratification and Confirmation, _
This Amendment shall become effective upon approval by the stockholders of the Company. In all other
respects, the Plan is hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 3. Governing Law.

THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY NEW YORK LAW WITHOUT kEGARD TO THE
PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS THEREOF, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT SUCH LAW IS PRE-
EMPTED BY FEDERAL LAW.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following sets forth selected financial and operating data for the Company on a historical consolidated basis.
The following data should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
historical statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003, and 2002 include the
resulis of operations of the Company as derived from the Company's audited financial statements. The results of
operations of properties sold are presented in discontinued operations if they met both of the following criteria: (a) the
operations and cash flows of the property have been (or will be) eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company
as a result of the disposition and (b) the Company will not have any significant istvolvement in the operations of the
property after the disposal transaction. The historical balance sheet data and other data as of December 31, 2006, 2003,
2004, 2003, and 2002 include the balances of the Company as derived from the Company’s audited financial statements,

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/06 12/31/05 1231704 12/31/03 12/31/02

(In thousands, except per unit and property data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Total Revenues .. ............. $ 396,036 $ 325530 $ 268008 $ 247,129 3 231,893
Interest Income . . ............. 1,614 1,486 3,632 2,416 2,378

Mark-to-Market/(Loss) Gain on
Settlement of Interest Rate

Protection Agreements. ....... (3,112) 811 1,583 —_— —
Property Expenses............. (130,230) {108,464) (90,309) (83,848) (75,694)
General and Administrative :

Expense................... (77,497) (55,812) (39,569) (26,953) (19,610}
Interest Expense .............. (121,141) (108,339) (98,636) (94,895) (90,017)
Amortization of Deferred

Financing Costs. . ........ ... (2,666) (2,125) (1,931 (1,764) (1,925)
Depreciation and Other

Amortization . .. ............ (145906) (105,720 (79,939) (63,006) (52,521)
Expenses from Build to Suit

Development for Sale ........ (10,263) (15,574) — — —
Gain (Loss) from Early Retirement

fromDebt(a) . .............. . _ 82 (515) (1,466) (888)
Equity in Income of Joint

Ventures . ..........00vn.n. 30,673 3,699 37,301 539 463
Income Tax Benefit............ 8,920 14,022 7.937 5,495 2,125
Minority Interest Allocable to

Continuing Operations . . ... ... 9,795 7,980 2,034 5,239 4,660
(Loss) Income from Continuing ‘

Operations. . ............... (43,777) (42,424) 9,596 - (11,114) 864

Income from Discontinued

Operations (Including Gain on

Sale of Real Estate of $213,442,

$132,139, $88,245, $79,485 and

$58,323 for the Years Ended

December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004,

2003 and 2002, respectively) . . . 225,357 154,061 116,693 136,764 129,686
Provision for Income Taxes

Allocable to Discontinued

Operations (Including $47,511,

$20,529, $8,659, $2,154, and

$1,538 allocable to Gain on Sale

of Real Estate for the Years

ended December 31, 2006, 2005,

2004, 2003 and 2002,

respectively) ............... (50,140) (23,583) (11,005) (3,689 (2,680)
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Minority Interest Allocable to -
Discontinued Operations . .. ...

Gain on Sale of Real Estate. .. ...

Provision for Income Taxes
Allocable to Gain on Sale of

Real Estate ................ .

Minority Interest Allocable to Gain
on Sale of Real Estate . .. ... ..

NetIncome..................

Redemption of Preferred Stock ... -

Preferred Dividends. . .. ..... ...

Net Income Available to Common
Stockholders ...............

Loss from Continuing Operations
Available to Common
Stockholders Per Weighted
Average Common Share
Outstanding:

Net Income Available to Common
Stockholders Per Weighted
Average Common Share
Outstanding:

Weighted Average Number of
Common Shares Outstanding:

Diluted .............. e

NetIncome..................
Other Comprehensive Income
(Loss):
Settlement of Interest Rate
Protection Agreements . .. ...
Reclassification of Settlement of
Interest Rate Protection
Agreements to Net Income. . .
Mark-to-Market of Interest Rate
Protection Agreements and
Interest Rate Swap
Agreements ..............

Year Ended Year Ended

Year Ended

Year Ended

Year Ended

12/31/06 12/31/05 12/31/04 12/31/03 1231702
(In thousands, except per unit and property data)

(22,796) (17,171) (14,500) (19,602) (19,025)
6,071 29,550 16,755 15,794 16,476
(2,119) (10,871} (5,371) (2,408) (3,111
(514) (2,458) {1,562) (1,972) (2,002)
112,082 87,104 110,606 113,773 120,208
(672) — (7,959) — (3,707
(21,424) (10,688) (14,488) (20,176) (23,432)
89,986 $§ 76416 $ B8B159 $§ 93597 § 93,069
(142) $ {0.87y $ 0.07) % (0.52) $ (0.38)
(142) % {0.87) $ (0.07) § (0.52) % (0.38)
204§ 1.80 3 2.17 243 2.39
2.04 1.80 § 2,17 243 2.39
28100 $ 27850 § 27500 § 27400 §  2.7250
44,012 42431 40,557 38,542 38,927
44,012 42,431 40,557 38,542 38,927
112,082 $ 87,14 $ 110606 $ 113,773 $ 120,208
(1,729) — 6,816 — 1,772
— (159) — — —
(2,800) (1,414) 106 251 (126)
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/06 12/31/05 1231704 12/31/03 12/31/02

(In thousands, except per unit and property data)

Amortization of Interest Rate - -
Protection Agreements . .. ... (912)  (1,085) (512) 198 176
Other Comprehensive Loss

Allocable to Minority . ' )
Interest ................. 698 837 — — —

Comprehensive Income . .. ...... $ 107339 §$ 85283 $ 117016 $ 114222 § 122,030
Balance Sheet Data (End of '

Period):
Real Estate, Before Accumulated )

Depreciation . .............. $ 3,219,728 § 3,260,761 § 2,856,474 $ 2,738,034 $ 2,697,269
Real Estate, After Accumulated '

Depreciation ... ............ 2,754,310 2,850,195 2,478,091 2,388,782 2,388,781
Real Estate Held for Sale, Net. ... 115,961 - 16,840 52,790 — 7,040
Total Assets ................. 3,224,399 3,226,243 2,721,890 2,648,023 2,629,973

Mortgage Loans Payable, Net,
Unsecured Lines of Credit and '
Senior Unsecured Debt, Net. . .. 1,834,658 1,813,702 1,574,929 1,453,798 1,442,149

Total Liabilities. . ............. 2,048,873 2,020,361 1,719,463 1,591,732 1,575,586
Stockholders® Equity ........... 1,022,979 1,043,562 845,494 889,173 882,326
Other Data: ‘

Cash Flow From Operating

Activities. . .. .............. $ 59551 $ 49350 $§ 77,657 $ 103,156 $ 132,838
Cash Flow From Investing

Activities. ... .............. 129,147 (371,654) 9,992 29,037 33,350
Cash Flow From Financing

Activities. .. ............... (180,800) 325,617 (83,546) (131,372) (166,188)
Total In-Service Properties. .. . ... 858 884 827 834 . 908
Total In-Service GLA, in Square

Feet...................... 68,610,505 70,193,161 61,670,735 57925466 59,979,894
In-Service Occupancy Percentage. . 94% 92% - 90% 88% 0%

{a) In 2005, the Company wrote off $0.05 million of financing fees related to the Company’s previous line of credit
agreement, which was amended and restated on August 23, 2005. In addition, the Company paid $0.3 million
of finance fees and wrote off a loan premivm of $0.4 million on a mortgage loan payable which was assumed
by the buyers of the related properties on July 13, 2005, In 2004, the Company paid off and retired a mortgage
loan. The Company recorded a loss from the early retirement of debt in 2004 of approximately $0.5 million,
which is comprised of the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs and prepayment penalties. In 2003,
the Company paid oft and retired a mortgage loan. The Company recorded a loss from the early retirement of
debt in 2003 of approximately $1.5 million, which is comprised of the write-off of unamortized deferred
financing costs. In 2002, the Company paid off and retired senior unsecured debt. The Company recorded a
loss from the early retirement of debt of approximately $0.9 million which is comprised of the amount paid
above the carrying amount of the senior unsecured debt and the write-off of pro rata unamortized deferred
financing costs and legal costs.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data™ and the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

In addition, the following discussion contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. The Company intends such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for
forward-looking statements coatained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and is including this
statement for purposes of complying with those safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking staternents, which are
based on certain assumptions and describe future plans, strategies and expectations of the Company, are generally
identifiable by use of the words *believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project” or similar
expressions. The Company’s ability to predict results or the actnal effect of future plans or strategies is inherently
uncertain. Factors which could have a material adverse affect on the operations and future prospects of the Company
on a consolidated basis include, but are not limited to, changes in: economic conditions generally and the real estate
market specifically, legislative/regulatory changes (including changes to laws governing the taxation of real estate
investment trusts), availability of financing, interest rate levels, competition, supply and demand for industrial
properties in the Company’s current and proposed market areas, potential environmental liabilities, slippage in
development or lease-up schedules, tenant credit risks, higher-than-expected costs and changes in general
accounting principles and policies and guidelines applicable to real estate investment trusts. These risks and
uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be
placed on such statements. Further information concerning the Company and its business, including additional
factors that could materially affect the Company’s financial results, is included herein in Item 1A, “Risk Factors,”
and in the Company’s other filings with the SEC.

» i

The Company was organized in the state of Maryland on August 10, 1993. The Company is a REIT, as defined
in the Code. The Company began operations on July 1, 1994. The Company’s interests in its properties and land
parcels are held through (i) partnerships controlled by the Company, including First Industrial, L.P. (the “Operating
Partnership”), of which the Company is the sole general partner, as well as, among others, First Industrial Financing
Partnership, L.P,, First Industrial Securities, L.P., First Industrial Mortgage Partnership, L.P., First Industrial
Pennsylvania, L.P. (the “Financing Partnership™), First Industrial Harrisburg, L.P., First Industrial Indianapolis,
L.P,, FI Development Services, L.P. and TK-SV, LTD., as to each of which the sole general partner is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (except in the case of the Financing Partnership in which case the Operating
Partnership is also the general partner) and the sole limited partner is the Operating Partnership; (i} limited liability
companies, of which the Operating Partnership is the sole member; and (iii) First Industrial Investment, Inc., of
which the Operating Partnership is the sole stockholder, all of whose operating data is consolidated with that of the
Company as presented herein. The Company, through separate, wholly-owned limited liability companies of which
the Operating Partnership or First Industrial Investment, Inc. is the sole member, also owns minority equity interests
in, and provides services 1o, six joint ventures which invest in industrial properties (the “September 1998 Joint
Venture,” the “May 2003 Joint Venture,” the “March 2005 Joint Venture,” the “September 2005 J oint Venture,” the
“March 2006 Co-Investment Program” and the “July 2006 Joint Venture”). The Company, through a separate,
wholly-owned limited liability company of which the Operating Partnership is also the sole member, also owned a
minority interest in and provided property management services to a seventh joint venture which invested in
industrial properties (the “December 2001 Joint Venture™; together with the September 1998 Joint Venture, the
May 2003 Joint Venture, the March 2005 Joint Venture, the September 2005 Joint Venture, the March 2006
Co-Investment Program and the July 2006 Joint Venture ; the “Joint Ventures”). During the year ended
December 31, 2004, the December 2001 Joint Venture sold all of its industrial properties. On January 31,
2007, the Company purchased the 90% equity interest from the institutional investor in the September 1998 Joint
Venture. The operating data of the Joint Ventures is not consolidated with that of the Company as presented herein.

Management believes the Company’s financial condition and results of operations are, primarily, a function of
the Company’s and its joint ventures’ performance in four key areas: leasing of industrial properties, acquisition and
development of additional industrial properties, redeployment of internal capital and access to external capital.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company generates revenue primarily from reatal income and tenant recoveries from long-term (gen-
erally three to six years) operating leases of its and its joint ventures’ industrial properties. Such revenue is offset by
certain property specific operating expenses, such as real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance, property man-
agement, utilities and insurance expenses, along with certain other costs and expenses, such as depreciation and
amortization costs and general and administrative and interest expenses, The Company’s revenue growth is
dependent, in part, on its ability to (i) increase rental income, through increasing either or both occupancy rates and
rental rates at the Company’s and its joint ventures’ properties, (ii) maximize tenant recoveries and (iii) minimize
operating and certain other expenses. Revenues generated from rental income and tenant recoveries are a significant
source of funds, in addition to income generated from gains/losses on the sale of the Company’s and its joint
ventures’ properties (as discussed below), for the Company’s distributions. The leasing of property, in general, and
occupancy rates, rental rates, operating expenses and certain non-operating expenses, in particular, are impacted,
variously, by property specific, market specific, general economic and other conditions, many of which are beyond
the control of the Company. The leasing of property also entails various risks, including the risk of tenant default. If
the Company were unable to maintain or increase occupancy rates and rental rates at the Company’s and its joint
ventures’ properties or to maintain tenant recoveries and operating and certain other expenses consistent with
historical levels and proportions, the Company’s revenue growth would be limited. Further, if a significant number
of the Company’s and its joint ventures’ tenants were unable to pay rent (including tenant recoveries) or if the
Company or its joint ventures were unable to rent their properties on favorable terms, the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, the Company’s
common stock would be adversely affected.

The Company’s revenue growth is also dependent, in part, on its and its joint ventures’ ability 10 acquire
existing, and acquire and develop new, additional industrial properties on favorable terms. The Company itself and
through its various joint ventures, continually seeks to acquire existing industrial properties on favorable terms, and,
when conditions permit, also seeks to acquire and develop new industrial properties on favorable terms. Existing
properties, as they are acquired, and acquired and developed properties, as they lease-up, generate revenue from
rental income, tenant recoveries and fees, income from which, as discussed above, is a source of funds for the
Company's distributions. The acquisition and development of properties is impacted, variously, by property
specific, market specific, general economic and other conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the
Company. The acquisition and development of properties also entails various risks, including the risk that the
Company’s and its joint ventures’ investments may not perform as expected. For example, acquired existing and
acquired and developed new properties may not sustain and/or achieve anticipated occupancy and rental rate levels.
With respect to acquired and developed new properties, the Company may not be able to complete construction on
schedule or within budget, resulting in increased debt service expense and construction costs and delays in leasing
the properties. Also, the Company and its joint ventures face significant competition for attractive acquisition and
development opportunities from other well-capitalized real estate investors, including both publicly-traded REITs
and private investors. Further, as discussed below, the Company and its joint ventures may not be able to finance the
acquisition and development opportunities they identify. If the Company and its joint ventures were unable to
acquire and develop sufficient additional properties on favorable terms, or if such investments did not perform as
expected, the Company’s revenue growth would be limited and its financial condition, results of operations, cash
flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, the Company's common stock would be adversely
affected.

The Company also generates income from the sale of its and its joint ventures’ properties (including existing
buildings, buildings which the Company or its joint ventures have developed or re-developed on a merchant basis,
and land). The Company itself and through its various joint ventures is continually engaged in, and its income
growth is dependent in part on, systematically redeploying capital from properties and other assets with lower yield
potential into properties and other assets with higher yield potential. As part of that process, the Company and its
joint ventures sell, on an ongoing basis, select stabilized properties or land or properties offering lower potential
returns relative to their market value. The gain/loss on and fees from, the sale of such properties are included in the
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Company's income and are a significant source of funds, in addition to revenues generated from rental income and
tenant recoveries, for the Company’s distributions. Also, a significant portion of the Company’s proceeds from such
sales is used to fund the acquisition of existing, and the acquisition and development of new, industrial properties.
The sale of properties is impacted, variously, by property specific, market specific, general economic and other
conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the Company. The sale of properties also entails various risks,
including competition from other sellers and the availability: of attractive financing for potential buyers of the
Company’s and its joint veatures' properties. Further, the Company’s ability to sell properties is limited by safe
harbor rules applying to REITs under the Code which relate to the number of properties that may be disposed of in a
year, their tax bases and the cost of improvements made to the properties, along with other tests which enable a
REIT to avoid punitive taxation on the sale of assets. If the Company and its joint ventures were unable to sell
properties'on favorable terms, the Company’s income growth would be limited and its financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, the Company’s common stock would
be adversely affected.

Currently, the Company utilizes a portion of the net sales proceeds from property sales, borrowings under its
unsecured line of credit and proceeds from the issuance, when and as warranted, of additional equity securities to
finance future acquisitions and developments and to fund its equity commitments to its joint ventures. Access to
external capital on favorable terms plays a key role in the Company’s financial condition and resulis of operations,
as it impacts the Company’s cost of capital and its ability and cost to refinance existing indebtedness as it matures
and to fund acquisitions, developments and contributions to its joint ventures or through the issuance, when and as
warranted, of additional equity securities. The Company’s ability to access external capital on favorable terms is
dependent on various factors, including general market conditions, interest rates, credit ratings on the Company’s
capital stock and debt, the market’s perception of the Company’s growth potential, the Company’s current and
potential future earnings and cash distributions and the market price of the Company’s capital stock. If the Company
were unable to access external capital on favorable terms, the Company’s financial condition, results of operations,
cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, the Company’s common stock would be
adversely affected.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in more detail in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

» The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts which is based on estimates of potential losses
which could result from the inability of the Company’s tenants to satisfy outstanding billings with the
Company. The allowance for doubtful accounts is an estimate based on the Company’s assessment of the
creditworthiness of its tenants.

» Properties are classified as held for sale when management of the Company have approved the sales of such
properties. When properties are classified as held for sale, the Company ceases depreciating the properties
and estimates the values of such properties and measures them at the lower of depreciated cost or fair value,
less costs to dispose. If circumstances arise that were previously considered unlikely, and, as a result, the
Company decides not to sell a property previously classified as held for sale, the Company will reclassify
such property as held and used. The Company estimates the value of such property and measures it at the
Tower of its carrying amount (adjusted for any depreciation and amortization expense that would have been
recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used) or fair value at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell. Fair value is determined by deducting from the estimated sales price of the
property the estimated costs to close the sale.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

+ The Company reviews its properties on a quarterly basis for possible impairment and provides a provision if
impairments are determined. The Company utilizes the guidelines established under Financial Accounting
Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS™) No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets” (“FAS 144”) to determine if impairment conditions
exist. The Company reviews the expected undiscounted cash flows of each property to determine if there are
any indications of impairment. If the expected undiscounted cash flows of a particular property are less than
the net book basis of the property, the Company will recognize an impairment charge equal to the amount of
carrying value of the property that exceeds the fair value of the property. Fair value is determined by
discounting the future expected cash flows of the property. The calculation of the fair value involves
subjective assumptions such as estimated occupancy, rental rates, ultimate residual value and the discount
rate used to present value the cash flows.

+ The Company is efigaged in the acquisition of individual properties as well as multi-property portfolios. In
accordance with FAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“FAS 141”), the Company is required to allocate
purchase price between land, building, tenant improvements, leasing commissions, intangible assets and
above and below market leases. Above-market and below-market lease values for acquired properties are
recorded based on the present value (using a discount rate which reflects the risks associated with the leases
acquired) of the difference between (i) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to each in-place lease and
(ii) management’s estimate of fair market lease rents for each corresponding in-place lease. Acquired above
and below market leases are amortized over the remaining non-cancelable terms of the respective leases as
an adjustment to rental income. The Company also must allocate purchase price on multi-property portfolios
to individual properties. The allocation of purchase price is based on the Company’s assessment of various
characteristics of the markets where the property is located and the expected cash flows of the property.

» The Company capitalizes (direct and certain indirect) costs incurred in developing, renovating, acquiring
and rehabilitating real estate assets as part of the investment basis. Costs incurred in making certain other
improvements are also capitalized. During the land development and construction periods, we capitalize
interest costs, real estate taxes and certain general and administrative costs of the personnel performing
development, renovations or rehabilitation up to the time the property is substantially complete. The
determination and calculation of certain indirect costs requires estimates by the Company. Amounts
included in capitalized costs are included in the investment basis of real estate assets.

* The company analyzes its investments in joint ventures to determine whether the joint venture should be
accounted for under the equity method of accounting or consolidated into the Company’s financial
statements based on standards set forth under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpre-
tation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, EITF 96-16, Investor's Accounting for an
Investee When the Investor Has a Majority of the Voting Interest but the Minority Shareholder or
Sharcholders Have Certain Approval or Veto Rights and Statement of Position 78-9, Accounting for
Investments in Real Estate Ventures. Based on the guidance set forth in these pronouncements, the Company
does not consolidate any of its joint venture investments because either the joint venture has been determined
not to be a variable interest entity or it has been determined the Company is not the primary beneficiary. The
Company’s assessment of whether they are the primary beneficiary of a variable interest involves the
consideraticn of various factors including the form of our ownership interest, the Company’s representation
on the entity’s governing body, the size of the Company’s investment and future cash flows of the entity.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2066 to Year Ended December 31, 2005

The Company’s net income available to common stockholders was $90.0 million and $76.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Basic and diluted net income available to common
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

stockholders were $2.04 and $2.04 per share, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2006, and $1.80 and
$1.80 per share, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The tables below summarize the Company’s revenues, property expenses and depreciation and other amor-
tization by various categories for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. Same store
properties are in-service properties owned prior to January 1, 2005. Acquired properties are properties that were
acquired subsequent to December 31, 2004. Sold properties are properties that were sold subsequent to Decem-
ber 31, 2004. Properties that are not in service are properties that are under construction that have not reached
stabilized occupancy or were placed in service after December 31, 2004 or acquisitions made prior to January 1,
2005 that were not placed in service as of December 31,'2004. These properties are placed in service as they reach
stabilized occupancy (generally defined as properties that are 90% leased). Other revenues are derived from the
operations of the Company’s maintenance company, fees earned from the Company’s joint ventures, fees earned for
developing properties for third parties and other miscellaneous revenues. Other expenses are derived from the
operations of thé Company’s maintenance company and other miscellaneous regional expenses.

The Company’s future financial conditior and results of operations, including rental revenues, may be
impacted by the future acquisition and sale of properties. The Company’s future revenues and expenses may vary
materially from historical rates. S

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the occupancy rates of the Company’s same store properties were 92.6% and
91.7%, respectively.

2006 2005 $ Change % Change

~ ($ in 000’s)

REVENUES
Same Store Properties .......... e $257,525 $255963 % 1,562 0.6%
Acquired Properties . . ............ ... ...... 95,957 18,563 71,392 416.9%
Sold Properties . ............ ..., 27,738 79,826 (52,088) {653)%
* Properties Not In-service .................... 22,217 18,789 3,428 18.2%
Other. . ................. e 30,048 19,118 10,930 - 57.2%
' 433,485 392,261 41,224 10.5%
Discontinued Operations ... .. e L. (37,449) . (66,731) 29,282 (43.99%
Total Revenues. . .. ..o v vne i ineeenns $396,036  $325,530 $ 70,506 21.7%

Revenues from same store properties remained relatively unchanged. Revenues from acquired properties
increased $77.4 million due to the 252 industrial properties totaling approximately 30.6 million square feet of GLA
acquired subsequent to December 31, 2004. Revenues from sold properties decreased $52.1 million due to the 221
industrial properties totaling approximately 29.9 million square feet of GLA sold subsequent to December 31, 2004,
Revenues from properties not in service increased by approximately $3.4 million due primarily to an increase in
properties placed in service during 2006 and 2005. Other revenues increased by approximately $10.9 million due
primarily to an increase in joint venture fees, partially offset by a decrease in assignment fees.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2006 2005 $ Change % Change
($ in 000's)
PROPERTY EXPENSES )

Same Store Properties .. ...............c..... $ 87,047 $85220 $ 1,827 2.1%
Acquired Properties .. ......... ... ... 31,380 5,688 25,692 451.7%
Sold Properties ...... e e e 8,270 34,959 (26,689) (76.3)%
Properties Not In-service .................... 9,512 9,005 507 5.6%
Other. .. .. e et e e 15,429 11,321 4,108 36.3%
151,638 146,193 5,445 3.7%
Discontinued Operations .................... {11,145) (22,155} 11,010 (49.N%
Total Property Expenses . .. ................ $140,493  $124,038 § 16,455 13.3%

Property expenses include real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance, property management, utilities, insur-
ance, other property related expenses and expenses from build to suit development for sale. Property expenses from
same store properties increased $1.8 million or 2.19% primarily due to an increase of $1.1 million in utility expense
attributable to increases in gas and electric costs and an increase of $0.8 million in real estate tax expense. Property
expenses from acquired properties increased by $25.7 million primarily due to properties acquired subsequent to
December 31, 2004 and due to an increase in build-to-suit-for-sale expenses of $10.3 million. Property expenses
from sold properties decreased $26.7 million due to properties sold subsequent to December 31, 2004, and also due
to a decrease in build-to-suit-for-sale expenses of $15.6 million. Property expenses from properties not in service
increased by approximately $0.5 million due primarily to an increase in properties placed in service during 2006
and 2005. Other expenses increased $4.1 million due primarily to increases in employee compensation,

General and administrative expense increased by approximately $21.7 million, or 38.9%, due primarily to
increases in employee compensation related to compensation for new employees as well as an increase in incentive
compensation.

2006 2005 $ Change % Change
($ in 000's)
DEPRECIATION AND OTHER AMORTIZATION
Same Store Properties . ................ienn... $ 82,806 % 84,009 § (I,113) (1.3)Y%
Acquired Properties. . ... ....... . i i, 51,652 11,808 39,844 337.4%
Sold Properties . ....oovveienne e innnennns 9,584 20,644 (11,0600 (53.6)%
Properties Not In-service and Other . ... ........... 14,250 10,169 4,081 40.1%
Corporate Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment . . .. ... B 1,913 1,371 542 39.5%
160,295 128,001 32,294 25.2%
Discontinued Operations .. ..................... (14,389) (22,281) 7,892 (35.4)%
Total Depreciation and Other Amortization . ......,.. $145,906 $105,720 $40,186  38.0%

Depreciation and other amortization for same store properties remained relatively unchanged. Depreciation
and other amortization from acquired properties increased by $39.8 million due to properties acquired subsequent to
December 31, 2004. Depreciation and other amortization from sold properties decreased by $11.1 million due to
properties sold subsequent to December 31, 2004. Depreciation and other amortization for properties not in service
and other increased $4.1 million due primarily to accelerated depreciation on one property in Columbus, OH which
was razed during the year ended December 31, 2006. Amortization of corporate furniture, fixtures and equipment
increased $0.5 million primarily due to expansion and improvement to corporate offices.
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Interest income remained relatively unchanged.

In April 2006, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, entered into interest rate protection agree-
ments which it designated as cash flow hedges. Each of the interest rate protection agreements had a notional value
of $74.8 million, were effective from May 10, 2007 through May 10, 2012, and fixed the LIBOR rate at 5.42%. In
September 2006, the interest rate protection agreements failed to qualify for hedge accounting since the actual debt
issuance date was not within the range of dates the Company disclosed in its hedge designation. The Company,
through the Operating Partnership, settled the interest rate protection agreements and paid the counterparties
$2.9 million. In October 2005, the Company, through an entity wholly-owned by the Operating Partnership, entered
into an interest rate protection agreement which hedged the change in value of a build-to-suit development project
the Company was constructing. This interest rate protection agreement did not qualify for hedge accounting. The
Company recognized a loss of $0.2 million related to this interest rate protection agreement for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Both transactions are recognized in the mark-to-market/(loss) gain on settlement of interest
rate protection agreements caption on the consolidated statement of operations.

The Company recognized a $0.6 million gain related to the settlement/mark-to-market of two interest rate
protection agreements the Company entered into during 2005 in order to hedge the change in value of a build-to-suit
development project as well as $0.2 million in deferred gain that was reclassified out of other comprehensive
income relating to a settled interest rate protection agreement that no longer qualified for hedge accounting.

Interest expense increased by approximately $12.8 million due primarily to an increase in the weighted
average debt balance outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2006 ($1,880.3 million) as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2005 ($1,690.2 million), an increase in the weighted average interest rate for the year ended
December 31, 2006 (6.72%) as compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 (6.63%), partially offset by an
increase in capitalized interest for the year ended December 31, 2006 due to an increase in development activities,

Amortization of deferred financing costs increased by approximately $0.5 million, or 25.5%, due primarily to
financing fees incurred associated with the amendment and restatement of the Company’s Unsecured Line of Credit
Iin August 20085, the issuance of the 2016 Notes in January 2006 and the issuance of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes
in September 2006.

The Company recognized approximately $0.08 million of gain on the early retirement of debt for the year
ended December 31, 2005, comprised of $0.05 million write-off of financing fees associated with the Company’s
previous line of credit agreement which was amended and restated on August 23, 2005. The gain on early retirement
of debt also includes a payment of $0.3 million of fees and a write-off of loan premium of $0.4 million on a
$13.7 million mortgage loan which was assumed by the buyers of the related properties on July 13, 2005.

Equity in income of joint ventures increased by approximately $27.0 million duve primarily to the Company’s
economic share of gains and earn outs on property sales from the March 2005 Joint Venture and the September 2005
Joint Venture during the year ended December 31, 2006.

The income tax provision (included in continuing operations, discontinued operations and gain on sale)
increased by $22.9 million, in the aggregate, due primarily to an increase in the gain on sale of real estate, joint
venture fees, equity in net income of joint ventures, partially offset by an increase in interest expense and an increase
in general and administrative expense within the Company’s taxable REIT subsidiary.

The $6.1 million gain on sale of real estate for the year ended December 31, 2006 resulted from the sale of
several land parcels that do not meet the criteria established by FAS 144 for inclusion in discontinued operations.
The $29.6 million gain on sale of real estate for the year ended December 31, 2005 resulted from the sale of 10
industrial properties and several land parcels that do not meet the criteria established by FAS 144 for inclusion in
discontinued operations.
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The following table summarizes certain information regarding the industrial properties included in discon-
tinued operations by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(5 in 000’s)

Total REVENUES . . & ..ttt ettt e n e m e e e a e $ 37449 $ 66,731
Property Expenses. . .. ... e ittt e e e e (11,145) (22,155)
Interest EXPense ... ..ottt i it — (373)
Depreciation and Amortization ............. .., (14,389)  (22,281)
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Operations. . ................. (2,629) (3,054)
Gainon Sale of Real Bstate. .. .. ...ttt ittt e e 213,442 132,139
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Gainon Sale ... .............. 47,511) (20,529)
Income from Discontinued Operations . .. ....... . oo, $175.217 $130,478

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the
results of operations and gain on sale of real estate of $213.4 million relating to 125 industrial properties that were
sold during the year ended December 31, 2006 and the results of operations of 25 properties that were identified as
held for sale at December 31, 2006. ’

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for the year ended December 31, 2005 reflects the
results of operations of industrial properties that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2006, 25 properties
that were identified as held for sale at December 31, 2006, the results of operations and gain on sale of real estate of
$132.1 million from the 86 industrial properties which were sold during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2005 to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The Company’s net income available to common stockholders was $76.4 million and $88.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2005 -and 2004, respectively. Basic and diluted net income available to common
stockholders were $1.80 and $1.80 per share, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005, and $2.17 and
$2.17 per share, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2004,

The tables below summarize the Company’s revenues, property expenses and depreciation and other amor-
tization by various categories for the years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. Same store
propetties are in-service properties owned prior to January I, 2004. Acquired properties are properties that were
acquired subsequent to December 31, 2003. Sold properties are properties that were sold subsequent to Decem-
ber 31, 2003, Properties that are not in service are properties that are under construction that have not reached
stabilized occupancy or were placed in service after December 31, 2003 or acquisitions made prior to January 1,
2004 that were not placed in service as of December 31, 2003. These properties are placed in service as they reach
stabilized occupancy (generally defined as properties that are 90% leased). Other revenues are derived from the
operations of the Company’s maintenance company, fees earned from the Company’s joint ventures, fees earned for
developing properties for third parties and other miscellaneous revenues. Other expenses are derived from the
operations of the Company’s maintenance company and other miscellaneous regional expenses.

The Company’s future financial condition and results of operations, including rental revenues, may be
impacted by the future acquisition and sale of properties. The Company’s future revenues and expenses may vary
materially from historical rates.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the occupancy rates of the Company’s same store properties were 90.1% and
89.5%, respectively.
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2005 2004 $ Change % Change
(% in 000’s)
REVENUES
Same Store Properties . ..................... $251,046  $249309 § 1,737 0.7%
Acquired Properties .. ....... .. ... il 55,098 11,912 43,186 362.5%
Sold Properties ............ ... o 24,482 49,395 (24,913) (50.4)%
Properties Not In-service .. .................. 42,199 23,617 18,582 18.7%
Other, ... e e e, 19,436 8,880 10,556 118.9%
392261 343,113 49,148 14.3%
Discontinued Operations .................... {66,731) (75,105) 8,374 11.1%

Total Revenues............. e $325,530  $268,008 $ 57,522 21.5%

Revenues from same store properties remained relatively unchanged. Revenues from acquired properties
increased $43.2 million due to the 240 industrial properties totaling approximately 29.3 million square feet of GLA
acquired subsequent to December 31, 2003. Revenues from sold properties decreased $24.9 million due to the 193
industrial properties totaling approximately 20.2 million square feet of GLA sold subsequent to December 31, 2003.
Revenues from properties not in service increased by approximately $18.6 million due primarily to build-to-suit-
for-sale revenues of $16.2 million. Other revenues-increased by approximately $10.6 million due primarily to an
increase in joint venture fees due to new joint ventures and assignment fees.

, 2005 2004 $ Change % Change
(% in 000’s)

PROPERTY EXPENSES

Same Store Properties . . ... ..... P $ 83,636 § 80,051 $ 3,585 4.5%
Acquired Properties. . .. .....oviiii ., 15,702 3,756 11,946 318.1%
Sold Properties . . .......ovvienennin,, 8,823 16,661 (7,838) 47.00%

' Properties Not In-service . . . .................. 26,161 8,739 17,422 199.4%
Other ... i e i i 11,871 6,543 5,328 81.4%
146,193 115,750 30,443 26.3%
Discontinued Operations . . . .................. (22,155) (25441 3,286 (12.9)%
Total Property Expenses ................... $124,038  $ 90,309  $33,729 37.3%

Property expenses include real estate taxes, repairs and maintenance, property management, utilitics, insur-
ance, other property related expenses and expenses from build to suit development for sale. Property expenses from
same store properties increased $3.6 million or 4.5% primarily due to an increase of $0.9 million in utility expense
attributable to increases in gas and electric costs, an increase of $1.3 million in repair and maintenance attributable
to increases in snow removal expense and an increase of $0.9 million in real estate tax expense. Property expenses
from acquired properties increased by $11.9 million due to properties acquired subsequent to December 31, 2003.
Property expenses from sold properties decreased by $7.8 million due to properties sold subsequent to December 31,
2003. Property expenses from properties not in service increased by approximately $17.4 million due primarily to
build-to-suit-for-sale costs of $15.6 million. Other expenses increased $5.3 million due primarily to increases in
employee compensation.

General and administrative expense increased by approximately $16.2 million, or 41.0%, due primarily to
increases in employee compensation related to compensation for new employees as well as an increase in incentive
compensation. '
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2005 2004 $ Change % Change
. : ($ in 000’s)

DEPRECIATION AND OTHER AMORTIZATION '

Same Store Properties. . . ................. D $ 77,329 $ 72,016 $ 5313 7.4%
Acquired Properties ............. ... . i, 29,278 3,797 25481 671.1%
Sold Properties. . ... ... i it i e 7,795 13,713 (5,918) (43.2)%
Properties Not In-service and Other. ... ............ 12,228 9,740 2,488 25.5%
Corporate Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment. . ... ... 1,371 1,280 91 7.1%

_ 128,001 100,546 27,455 27.3%

Discontinued Operations. . .................... .. (22,281) (20,607) (1,674) 8.1%
Total Depreciation and Other Amortization . . ........ $105,720 § 79939 $25,781 32.3%

The increase in depreciation and other amortization for same store properties is due to an acceleration of
depreciation and amortization on tenant improvements and leasing commissions for tenants who terminated leases
early, an acceleration of amortization on in-place lease values related to leases for which the tenants did not renew
and a net increase in leasing commissions and tenant improvements paid in 2005 and 2004. Depreciation and other
amortization from acquired properties increased by $25.5 million due to properties acquired subsequent to
December 31, 2003. Depreciation and other amortization from sold properties decreased by $5.9 million due
to properties sold subsequent to December 31, 2003. Depreciation and other amortization for properties not in
service and other increased $2.5 million due to developments substantially completed in 2004 and 2003.
Amortization of corporate furniture, fixtures and equipment remained relatively unchanged.

Interest income decreased by approximately $2.1 million due primarily to a decrease in the average mortgage
loans receivable outstanding during the year ended December 31, 2005, as compared to the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004.

The Company recognized a $0.6 million gain related to the settlement/mark-to-market of two interest rate
protection agreements that the Company entered into during 2005 in order to hedge the change in value of a build to
suit development project as well as $0.2 million in deferred gain that was reclassified out of other comprehensive
income relating to a settled interest rate protection agreement that no longer qualified for hedge accounting.

In March 2004, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, entered into an interest rate protection
agreement which fixed the interest rate on a forecasted offering of unsecured debt which it designated as a cash flow
hedge. This interest rate protection agreement had a notional value of $73.5 million. In May 2004, the Company
reduced the projected amount of the future debt offering and settled $24.5 million of this interest rate protection
agreement for proceeds in the amount of $1.5 million which is recognized in net income for the year ended
December 31, 2004, In November 2004, the Company settled an interest raie protection agreement for $0.3 million
that had been designated as a cash flow hedge of $50.0 million of a forecasted debt issuance. Hedge ineffectiveness
in the amount of $0.1 million, due to a mismatch in the forecasted debt issuance dates, was recognized in net
income. The remaining $0.2 million was included in other comprehensive income and was reclassified into net
income for the year ended December 31, 2005 as the hedge no longer qualified for hedge accounting.

Interest expense increased by approximately $9.7 million due primarily to an increase in the weighted average
debt balance outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2005 ($1,690.2 million) as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2004 ($1,522.9 million), an increase in the weighted average interest rate for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (6.63%) as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004 (6.60%), partially offset by an
increase in capitalized interest for the year ended December 31, 2005 due to an increase in development activities,

Amortization of deferred financing costs remained relatively unchanged. :
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The Company recognized a $0.08 million gain on the early retirement of debt for the year ended December 31,
2005. This includes $0.05 million write-off of financing fees associated with the Company’s previous line of credit
agreement which was amended and restated on August 23, 2005. The gainon early retirement of debt also includes a
payment of $0.3 million of fees and a write-off of loan premium of $0.4 million on a $13.7 million mortgage loan
which was assumed by the buyers of the related properties on July 13, 2005. The loss on early retirement of debt of
approximately $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 is comprised of the write-off of unamortized
deferred financing costs, a loan premium and a prepayment penalty related to the early pay off and retirement of a
$4.8 million mortgage loan. '

Equity in income of joint ventures decreased by approximately $33.6 million due primarily to the Company’s
allocation’ of gain and earn out from the sale.of all the properties in the December 2001 Joint Venture and the
Company’s recognition of the deferred gain on its initial sale of certain properties to the December 2001 Ioint
Venture recognized in the year ended December 31, 2004.

The income tax provision (included in continuing operations, discontinued operations and gain on sale)
increased by $12.0 million, in the aggregate, due primarily to an increase in the gain on sale of real estate and joint
venture fees partially offset by an increase in general and administrative expense and interest expense in the
Company’s taxable REIT subsidiary. :

The $29.6 million gain on sale of real estate for the year ended December 31, 2005 resulted from the sale often
industrial properties and several land parcels that do not meet the criteria established by FAS 144 for inclusion in
discontinued operations. The $16.8 million gain on sale of real estate for the year ended December 31, 2004 resulted
from the sale of five industrial properties and several land parcels that do not meet the criteria established by
FAS 144 for inclusion in discontinued operations.

The following table summarizes certain information regarding the industrial properties included in discon-
tinued operations by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004.

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
($ in 000’s)

Total REVENUES .« o v v v vveeve e et teaaeenenses e $ 66,731 % 75,105

. Property EXpEnses. . . ..ot ttit e (22,155)  (25,441)
- Interest Expen_se ............................... PR (373) (609)
Depreciation and AmOrtization ..............ciiinenneniiin (22,281 (20,607)
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Operations. . ........cocouunn. . (3,054) . (2,346)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate., . ... ......covvoainn.. e 132,139 88,245
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Gainon Sale . . ............... (20,529) (8,659)
Income from Discontinued Operations . . .........ov et e $130,478  $105,688

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for the year ended December 31, 2005 reflects the
results of operations of industrial properties that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2006, the results of
operations and gain on sale of real estate of $132.1 million relating to 86 industrial properties that were sold during
the year ended December 31, 2005 and the results of operations of 25 properties that were identified as held for sale
at December 31, 2006, ‘

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, for the year ended December 31, 2004 reflects the
results of operations of industrial properties that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, 25
properties that were identified as held for sale at December 31, 2006, the results of operations of industrial
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properties that were sold during the year ended December 31, 2004, as well as the gain on sale of real estate of
$88.2 million from the 92 industrial properties which were sold during the year ended December 31, 2004.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2006, the Company's cash and cash equivalents was approximately $16.1 million and
restricted cash was approximately $16.0 million, Restricted cash is primarily comprised of gross proceeds from the
sales of certain industrial properties. These sales proceeds will be disbursed as the Company exchanges industrial
properties under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. ‘

The Company has considered its short-term (one year or less) liquidity needs and the adequacy of its estimated
cash flow from operations and other expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. The Company’s 7.6% Notes due
2007, with an aggregate principal amount of $150.0 million, are due on May 15, 2007. The Company expects 10
satisfy the maturity of the 2007 Notes with the issuance of additional debt. With the exception of the 2007 Notes, the
Company believes that its principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund normal recurring expenses, debt service
requirements and the minimum distribution required to maintain the Company’s REIT qualification under the Code.
The Company anticipates that these needs will be met with cash flows provided by operating activities.

The Company expects to meet long-term (greater than one year) liquidity requirements such as property
acquisitions, developments, scheduled debt maturities, major renovations, expansions and other nonrecurring
capital improvements through the disposition of select assets, the issuance of long-term unsecured indebtedness and
the issuance of additional equity securities. As of December 31, 2006 and February 22, 2007, $215.4 million of
common stock, preferred stock and depositary shares and approximately $300.0 million of debt securities were
registered and unissued under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Company also may finance the
development or acquisition of additional properties through borrowings under the Unsecured Line of Credit 1. At
December 31, 2006, borrowings under the Unsecured Line of Credit I bore interest at a weighted average interest
rate of 6.058%. The Unsecured Line of Credit bear interest at a floating rate of LIBOR plus .625% or the Prime
Rale, at the Company’s election. As of February 22, 2007, the Company had approximately $210.6 million
available in additional borrowings under the Unsecured Line of Credit I. The Unsecured Line of Credit I contains
certain financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, market value net worth, dividend payout ratio and total
funded indebtedness. The Company’s access to borrowings may be limited if it fails to meet any of these covenants.
Also, the Company’s borrowing rate on its Unsecured Line of Credit I may increase in the event of a downgrade on
the Company’s unsecured notes by the rating agencies.

The Company currently has credit ratings from Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch Ratings of BBB/Baa2/
BBB, respectively. The Company’s goal is to maintain its existing credit ratings. In the event of a downgrade,
management believes the Company would continue to have access to sufficient capital; however, the Company’s
cost of borrowing would increase and its ability to access certain financial markets may be limited.

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Net cash provided by operating activities of approximatefy $59.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 was comprised primarily of net income before minority interest of approximately $125.6 million and net
distributions from joint ventures of $1.0 million, offset by the net change in operating assets and liabilities of
approximately $4.6 million and adjustments for non-cash items of approximately $62.4 million. The adjustments
for the non-cash items of approximately $62.4 million are primarily comprised of the gain on sale of real estate of
approximately $219.5 million and the effect of the straight-lining of rental income of approximately $10.2 million,
offset by depreciation and amortization of approximately $165.0 million and the provision for bad debt of
$2.3 million.

Net cash provided by investing activities of approximately $129.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 was comprised primarily of the net proceeds from the sale of real estate, the repayment of mortgage loans
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receivable, decrease in restricted cash that is held by an intermediary for Section 1031 exchange purposes, and
distributions from the Company’s industrial real estate joint ventures, partially offset by the acquisition of real
estate, development of real estate, capital expenditures related to the expansion and improvement of existing real
estate, contributions to, and investments in, the Company’s industrial real estale joint ventures.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company acquired 91 industrial properties comprising
approximately 10.5 million square feet of GLA and several land parcels. The purchase price of these acquisitions
totaled approximately $610.7 million, excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of the industrial
properties and land parcels. The Company also substantially completed the development of 15 industrial properties
comprising approximately 5.0 million square feet of GLA at an estimated cost of approximately $188.6 million.

The Company; through wholly-owned limited liability companies in which the Operating Partnership is the
sole member, contribuied approximately $32.8 million to, and received distributions of approximately $51.4 million
from, the Company’s industrial real estate joint ventures. As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s industria) real
estate joint ventures owned 255 industrial properties comprising approximately 26.0 million square feet of GLA.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company sold 125 industrial properties comprising approx-
imately 17.1 million square feet of GLA and several land parcels. Gross proceeds from the sales of the 125 industrial
properties and several land parcels were approximately $946.8 million.

Net cash used in financing activities of approximately $180.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
was derived primarily by the redemption of preferred stock, common and preferred stock dividends and unit
distributions, net repayments under the Company’s Unsecured Lines of Credit, the repayments of senior unsecured
debt, the repurchase of restricted stock from employees of the Company to pay for withholding taxes on the vesting
of restricted stock and repayments on mortgage loans payable, partially offset by the net proceeds from the issuance
of senior unsecured debt and preferred stock and the net proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, certain directors and employees of the Company exercised 125,780
non-qualified employee stock options. Net proceeds to the Company were approximately $3.7 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company awarded 303,142 shares of restricted common stock
to certain employees and 16,232 shares of restricted common stock to certain directors. These shares of restricted
common stock had a fair value of approximately $12.2 million on the date of grant. The restricted common stock
vests over a period of three years for awards granted to employees and generally over a period of five years for
awards granted to directors. Compensation expense will be charged to earnings over the respective vesting periods.

.On January 10, 2006, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, paid off and retired the 2005
Unsecured Line of Credit I, which had a borrowing capacity of $125.0 million and matured on March 15, 2006.

On January 10, 2006, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, issued the 2016 Notes. Net of offering
costs, the Company received net proceeds of $197.5 million from the issuance of 2016 Notes. In December 2005,
the Company also entered into interest rate protection agreements which were used to fix the interest rate on the
2016 Notes prior to issuance. The Company settled the interest rate protection agreements on January 9, 2006 for a
payment of approximately $1.7 million which is included in other comprehensive income.

On January 13, 2006, the Company redeemed the Series T Preferred Stock for $242,875.00 per share, and paid a
prorated first quarter dividend of $470.667 per share, totaling approximately $0.4 million. The Operating
Partnership also redeemed the Series I Preferred Units.

On January 13, 2006, the Company issued 6,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/10,000th of a
share of the Company’s 7.25%, $0.01 par value, Series J Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the
*“Series J Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $25.00 per Depositary Share.
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On August 21, 2006, the Company issued 2,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/10,000th of a
share of the Company’s 7.25%, $.01 par value, Series K Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the
“Series K Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $25.00 per Depositary Share,

On September 25, 2006, the Company, through the Operating Pantnership issued $175.0 million of senior
unsecured debt which bears interest at 4.625% (the “Exchangeable Notes”). Under certain circumstances, the
holders of the Exchangeable Notes may exchange their notes for cash up to their principal amount and shares of the
Company's common stock for the remainder of the exchange value in excess of the principal amount. The Company
also granted the initial purchasers of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes an option exercisable until October 4, 2006 to
purchase up to an additional $25,000 principal amount of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes to cover over-allotments, if
any (the “Over-allotment Option”). On October 3, 2006, the initial purchasers of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes
exercised their Over-Allotment Option with respect to $25,000 in principal amount of the 2011 Exchangeable
Notes. With the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, the aggregate principal amount of 2011 Exchangeable
Notes issued and outstanding is $200,000. In connection with the offering of the Exchangeable Notes, the Operating
Partnership entered into capped call transactions in order to increase the effective exchange price. The aggregate
cost of the capped call transactions was approximately $6.8 million.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table lists our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2006 (In thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years  Over 5§ Years
Operating and Ground Leases* ... ... $ 41649 3 2561 $ 4417 $ 3504 $ 31,167
Real Estate Development® .. ..... ... 101,050 101,050 —— — —_
Long-term Debt. . ................ 1,847,077 152,884 343,112 422,905 928,176

Interest Expense on Long-Term :
Debt* .. .. ............ . ... 921,160 100967 189,078 162,359 468,756
Total . . ... e $2,910,936 $357.462 $536,607 $588,768 351,428,099

* Not on balance sheet.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Letters of credit are issued in most cases as pledges to governmental eatities for development purposes or to
support purchase obligations. At December 31, 2006, the Company has $9.0 million in outstanding letters of credit,
none of which are reflected as liabilities on the Company’s balance sheet. The Company has no other off-balance
sheet arrangements other than those disclosed on the Contractual Obligations and Commitmenis table above.

Environmental

The Company incurred environmental costs of approximately $0.6 million and $0.4 million in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The Company estimates 2007 costs of approximately $0.7 million. The Company estimates that the
aggregate cost which needs to be expended in 2007 and beyond with regard to currently identified environmental
issues will not exceed approximately $2.0 million, a substantial amount of which will be the primary responsibility
of the tenant, the seller to the Company or another responsible party.
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Inflation

For the last several years, inflation has not had a significant impact on the Company because of the relatively
low inflation rates in the Company’s markets of operation. Most of the Company’s leases require the tenants to pay
their share of operating expenses, including common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance, thereby
reducing the Company’s exposure to increases in costs and operating expenses resulting from inflation. In addition,
many of the outstanding leases expire within six years which may enable the Company to replace existing leases
with new leases at higher base rentals if rents of existing leases are below the then-existing market rate.

Market Risk

The following discussion about the Company’s risk-management activities includes “forward-looking state-
ments” that involve risk and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the
forward-looking statements.

This analysis presents the hypothetical gain or loss in earnings, cash flows or fair value of the financial
instruments and derivative instruments which are held by the Company at December 31, 2006 that are sensitive to
changes in the interest rates. While this analysis may have some use as a benchmark, it should not be viewed as a
forecast. '

In the normal course of business, the Company also faces risks that are either non-financial or non-
quantifiable. Such risks principally include credit risk and legal risk and are not represented in the following
analysis.

At December 31, 2006, $1,627.7 million (approximately 88.7% of total debt at December 31, 2006) of the
Company’s debt was fixed rate debt and $207.0 million (approximately 11.3% of total debt at December 31,
2006) was variable rate debt. Currently, the Company does not enter into financial instruments for trading or other
speculative purposes.

For fixed rate debt, changes in interest rates generally affect the fair value of the debt, but not earnings or cash
flows of the Company. Conversely, for variable rate debt, changes in the interest rate generally do not impact the fair
value of the debt, but would affect the Company’s future earnings and cash flows. The interest rate risk and changes
in fair market value of fixed rate debt generally do not have a significant impact on the Company until the Company
is required to refinance such debt. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the
maturity dates of the Company’s various fixed rate debt.

Based upon the amount of variable rate debt outstanding at December 31, 2006, a 10% increase or decrease in
the interest rate on the Company’s variable rate debt would decrease or increase, respectively, future net income and
cash flows by approximately $1.3 million per year. A 10% increase in interest rates would decrease the fair value of
the fixed rate debt at December 31, 2006 by approximately $55.2 million to $1,659.9 million. A 10% decrease in
interest rates would increase the fair value of the fixed rate debt at December 31, 2006 by approximately
$59.1 million to $1,774.2 million.

The use of derivative financial instruments allows the Company to manage risks of increases in interest rates
with respect to the effect these fluctuations would have on our earnings and cash flows. As of December 31, 2006,
we had two outstanding interest rate swaps with aggregate notional amount of $145.8 million which fix the 1nterest
rate on a forecasted offering of debt.

Subsequent Events

On January 2, 2007, the Company pajd fourth quarter 2006 dividends of $53.91 per share ($0.5391 per
Depositary Share) on its Series C Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $1.1 million; a dividend
of $4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series J Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate,
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approximately $2.7 million; and a dividend of $4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series K
Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $0.9 million.

On January 22, 2007, the Company and the Operating Partnership paid a fourth quarter 2006 distribution of
$.7100 per share, totaling approximately $36.6 million.

On February 28, 2007, the Company declared a first quarter 2007 distribution of $.7100 per common share/unit
on its common stock/units which is payable on April 16, 2007, The Company also declared first quarter 2007
dividends of $53.91 per share (30.5391 per Depositary Share), on its Series C Preferred Stock, totaling, in the
aggregate, approximately $1.1 million, which is payable on April 2, 2007; semi-annual dividends of $3,118.00 per
share (3$31.1800 per Depositary Share) on its Series F Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately
$1.6 million, which is payable on April 2, 2007; semi-annual dividends of $3,618.00 per share ($36.1800 per
Depositary Share) on its Series G Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $0.9 million, which is
payable on April 2, 2007; adividend of $4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series J Preferred
Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $2.7, which is payable on April 2, 2007; and a dividend of
$4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series K Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate,
approximately $0.9 million, which is payable on April 2, 2007. -

From January 1, 2007 to February 22, 2007, the Company awarded 1,598 shares of restricted common stock to
certain Directors. These shares of restricted common stock had a fair value of approximately $0.1 million on the
date of grant. The restricted common stock vests over a period of five years. Compensation expense will be charged
to earnings over the respective vesting period.

From January 1, 2007 to February 22, 2007, the Company acquired 55 industrial properties (including 41
properties in connection with the purchase of the 90% equity interest from the institutional investor in the
September 1998 Joint Venture on January 31, 2007) and several land parcels for a total estimated investment of
approximately $135.9 million. The Company also sold 14 industrial properties for approximately $74.4 million of
gross proceeds during this period.

Related Party Transactions

The Company periodically engages in transactions for which CB Richard Ellis, Inc. acts as a broker. A relative
of Michael W. Brennan, the President and Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company, is an employee of
CB Richard Ellis, Inc. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 this relative received approximately
$0.3, $0.3, and $0.03 million in brokerage commissions.

Other

In February 2006, the FASB issved Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments” which amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities. This Statement resolves issues addressed in Statement 133 Implementation
Issue No. DI, “Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets”” This
statement:

a. Permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded
derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation; ' '

b. Clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of
SFAS No. 133;
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c. Establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that
are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid firancial instruments that contain an embedded derivative
requiring bifurcation;

d. Clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordipation are not embedded
derivatives; and

e. Amends SFAS No. 140 to climinate the prohibition on a qualifying special-purpose entity from
holding a derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative
financial instrument.

This Statement is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first
fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that the implementation of this
statement will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets” which amends
FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities, (“FAS 140") with respect to the accounting for separately recognized servicing assets and servicing
liabilities. This statement was issued to simplify the accounting for servicing rights and reduce the volatility that
results from the use of different measurements attributes for servicing rights and the related financial instruments
used to economically hedge risks associated with those servicing rights. The statement clarifies when to separately
account for servicing rights, requires separately recognized servicing rights to be initially measured at fair value,
and provides the option to subsequently account for those servicing rights at either fair value or under the
amortization method previously required under FAS 140, An entity should adopt this statement as of the beginning
of its first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that the implementation of
this statement will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48"). FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN 48 is a two-step process. First, the
Company determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination based
on the technical merits of the position. Second, a tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured
at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition thresheld should be recogrized in
the first subsequent reporting period in which the threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no
longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent reporting
period in which the threshold is no longer met. The Company is required to apply the guidance of FIN 48 beginning
January 1, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating what impact the application of FIN 48 will have on the
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” which establishes a common
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair
value measurements. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company
does not expect that the implementation of this statement will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In December 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF")
regarding EITF 00-19-2, “Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements.” The guidance specifies that the
contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a registration payment
arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included as a provision of a financial instrument or other
agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
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Contingencies”. The guidance is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2006. EITF 00-19-2 is not
expected to impact the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

RISK FACTORS

The Company’s operations involve various risks that could adversely affect its financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow, ability to pay distributions on its common stock and the market price of its common stock.
These risks, among others contained in the Company’s other filings with the SEC, include:

Real estate investments’ value fluctuates depending on conditions in the general economy and the real
estate business. These conditions may limit the Company’s revenues and available cash.

The factors that affect the value of the Company’s real estate and the revenues the Company derives from its
properties include, among other things:

* general economic conditions;

* local conditions such as oversupply or a reduction in demand in an area;
« the attractiveness of the properties to tenants;

* tenant defaults;

« zoning or other regulatory restrictions;

» competition from other available real estate;

» our ability to provide adequate maintenance and insurance; and

* increased operating costs, including insurance premiums and real estate taxes.

Many real estate costs are fixed, even if income from properties decreases.

The Company’s financial results depend on leasing space to tenants on terms favorable to the Company. The
Company's income and funds available for distribution to its stockholders will decrease if a significant number of
the Company’s tenants cannot pay their rent or the Company is unable to lease properties on favorable terms. In
addition, if a tenant does not pay its rent, the Company may not be able to enforce its rights as landlord without
delays and the Company may incur substantial legal costs. Costs associated with real estate investment, such as real
estate taxes and maintenance costs, generally are not reduced when circumstances cause a reduction in income from
the investment. For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 69.4% of the Company’s gross revenues
from continuing operations came from rentals of real property.

The Company may be unable to sell properties when appropriate because real estate investments are not
as liguid as certain other types of assets.

Real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly and, therefore, will tend to limit the Company’s
ability to adjust its property portfolio promptly in response to changes in economic or other conditions. The inability
to respond prompily to changes in the performance of the Company’s property portfolio could adversely affect the
Company's financial condition and ability to service debt and make distributions to its stockholders. In addition,
like other companies qualifying as REITs under the Internal Revenue Code, the Company must comply with the
safe harbor rules relating to the number of properties disposed of in a year, their tax basis and the cost of
improvements made to the properties, or meet other tests which enable a REIT to avoid punitive taxation on the sale
of assets. Thus, the Company’s ability at any time to sell assets may be restricted.
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The Company may be unable to sell properties on advantageous terms.

The Company has sold to third parties a significant number of properties in recent years and, as part of its
business, the Company intends to continue to sell properties to third parties. The Company’s ability to sell
properties on advantageous terms depends on factors beyond the Company’s control, including competition from
other sellers and the availability of attractive financing for potential buyers of the Company’s properties. If the
Company is unable to sell properties on favorable terms or redeploy the proceeds of property sales in accordance
with the Company’s business strategy, then the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, cash flow and
ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, the Company’s common stock could be adversely affected.

The Company has also sold to its joint ventures a significant number of properties in recent years and, as part of
its business, the Company intends to continue to sell properties to its joint ventures as opportunities arise. If the
Company does not have sufficient properties available that meet the investment criteria of current or future joint
ventures, or if the joint ventures have reduced or do not have access to capital on favorable terms, then such sales
could be delayed or prevented, adversely affecting the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, cash
flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, the Company’s common stock.

The Company may be unable to acquire properties on advantageous terms or acquisitions may not per-
form as the Company expects.

The Company acquires and intends to continue to acquire primarily industrial properties. The acquisition of
properties entails various risks, including the risks that the Company’s investmenis may not perform as expected
and that the Company’s cost estimates for bringing an acquired property up to market standards may prove
inaccurate. Further, the Company faces significant competition for attractive investment opportunities from other
well-capitalized real estate investors, including both publicly-traded REITs and private investors. This competition
increases as investments in real estate become attractive relative to other forms of investment. As a result of
competition, the Company may be unable to acquire additional properties as it desires or the purchase price may be
elevated. In addition, the Company expects to finance future acquisitions through a combination of borrowings
under its revolving line of credit (“Unsecured Line of Credit 1), proceeds from equity or debt offerings by the
Company and proceeds from property sales, which may not be available and which could adversely affect the
Company’s cash flow. Any of the above risks could adversely affect the Company’s financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market value of, the Company’s common stock.

The Company may be unable to complete development and re-development projects on advantageous
terms.

As part of its business, the Company develops new and re-develops existing properties. In addition, the
Company has sold to third parties or sold to the Company’s joint ventures a significant number of development and
re-development properties in recent years, and the Company intends to continue to sell such properties to third
parties or to sell such properties to the Company’s joint ventures as opportunities arise. The real estate development
and re-development business involves significant risks that could adversely affect the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of the Company’s
coemmon stock, which include:

+ the Company may not be able to obtain financing for development projects on favorable terms and complete
construction on schedule or within budget, resulting in increased debt service expense and construction costs
and delays in leasing the properties and generating cash flow;

« the Company may not be able to obtain, or may experience delays in obtaining, all necessary zoning, land-
use, building, occupancy and other governmental permits and authorizations;
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» the properties may perform below anticipated levels, producing cash flow below budgeted amounts and
limiting the Company's ability to sell such properties to third parties or to sell such properties to the
Company’s joint ventures.

The Company may be unable to renew leases or find other lessees.

The Company is subject to the risks that, upon expiration, leases may not be renewed, the space subject to such
leases may not be relet or the terms of renewal or reletting, including the cost of required renovations, may be less
favorable than expiring lease terms. If the Company were unable to promptly renew a significant number of expiring
leases or to promptly relet the space covered by such leases, or if the rental rates upon renewal or reletting were
significantly lower than the current rates, the Company’s cash, funds from operations, and ability to make expected
distributions to stockholders might be adversely affected. As of December 31, 2006, leases with respect to
approximately 12.6 million, 12.3 million and 10.0 million square feet of GLA, representing 20%, 19% and 16% of
GLA, expire in the remainder of 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively.

The Company might fail to qualify or remain gqualified as a REIT.

The Company intends to operate so as to qualify as a REIT under the Code. Although the Company believes
that it is organized and will operate in a manner so as to qualify as a REIT, qualification as a REIT involves the
satisfaction of numerous requirements, some of which must be met on a recurring basis. These requirements are
established under highly technical and complex Code provisions of which there are only limited judicial or
administrative interpretations and involve the determination of various factual matters and circumstances not
entirely within the Company’s control.

The Company (through one of its subsidiary partnerships) entered into certain development agreements in
2000 through 2003, the performance of which has been completed. Under these agreements, the Company provided
services to unrelated third parties and certain payments were made by the unrelated third parties for services
provided by certain contractors hired by the Company. The Company believes that these payments were properly
characterized by it as reimbursements for costs incurred by it on behalf of the third parties and do not constitute
gross income and did not prevent the Company from satisfying the gross income requirements of the REIT
provisions (the “gross income tests™). The Company has brought this matter to the attention of the Internal Revenue
Service (the “IRS"). The IRS has not challenged or expressed any interest in challenging the Company’s view on
this matter.

Employees of the Operating Partnership, a subsidiary partnership of the Company (the “Service Employees”),
have been providing certain acquisition and disposition services since 2004 and certain leasing and property
management services since 1997 to one of the Company’s taxable REIT subsidiaries (the “TRS™}, and have also
been providing certain of these services (or similar services) to joint ventures in which First Industrial, L.P. owns a
minority interest or to unrelated parties. In determining whether it satisfied the gross income tests for certain years,
the Company has taken and intends to take the position that the costs of the Service Employees should be shared
between First Industrial, L.P. and the TRS and that no fee income should be imputed to the Company as a result of
such arrangement. However, because certain of these services (or similar services) have also been performed for the
joint ventures or unrelated parties described above, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not successfully
challenge this position. First Industrial, L.P, has taken and intends to continue to take appropriate steps to address
this issue going forward, but there can be no assurance that any such steps will adequately resolve this issue.

If the IRS were to challenge either of the positions described in the two preceding paragraphs and were
successful, the Company could be found not to have satisfied the gross income tests in one or more of its taxable
years. If the Company were found not to have satisfied the gross income tests, it could be subject to a penalty tax.
However, such noncompliance should not adversely affect the Company's status as a REIT as long as such
noncompliance was due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect and certain other requirements were met, The
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Company believes that, in both situations, any such noncompliance was due to reasonable cause and not willful
neglect and that such other requiremenis were met. :

If the Company were to fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it would be subject to federal income tax,
including any applicable alternative minimum tax, on its taxable income at corporate rates. This could result in a
discontinuation or substantial reduction in dividends to stockholders and in cash to pay interest and principal on
debt securities that the Company issues. Unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions, the Company
would be disqualified from electing treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which it
failed to qualify as a REIT. .

Certain property transfers may generate prohibited transaction income, resulting in a penalty tax on the
gain attributable to the transaction.

As part of its business, the Company {through the Operating Partnership) sells properties to third parties or sells
properties to the Company’s joint ventures as opportunities arise. Under the Code, a 100% penalty tax could be
assessed on the gain resulting from sales of properties that are deemed to be prohibited transactions. The question of
what constitutes a prohibited transaction is based on the facts and circumstances surrounding each transaction. The
IRS could contend that certain sales of properties by the Company are prohibited transactions. While the
Company’s management does not believe that the IRS would prevail in such a dispute, if the matter were
successfully argued by the IRS, the 100% penalty tax could be assessed against the profits from these transactions.
In addition, any income from a prohibited transaction may adversely affect the Company’s ability to satisfy the
income tests for qualification as a REIT.

The REIT distribution requirements may require the Company to turn to external financing sources.

The Company could, in certain instances, have taxable income without sufficient cash to enable it to meet the
distribution requirements of the REIT provisions of the Code. In that situation, the Company could be required to
borrow funds or sell properties on adverse terms in order to meet those distribution requirements. In addition,
because the Company must distribute to its stockholders at least 90% of the Company’s REIT taxable income each
year, the Company’s ability to accumulate capital may be limited. Thus, in connection with future acquisitions, the
Company may be more dependent on outside sources of financing, such as debt financing or issuances of additional
capital stock, which may or may not be available on favorable terms. Additional debt financings may substantially
increase the Company’s leverage and additional equity offerings may result in substantial dilution of stockholders’
interests.

Debt financing, the degree of leverage and rising interest rates could reduce the Company’s cash flow.

Where possible, the Company intends to continue to use leverage to increase the rate of return on the
Company’s investments and to allow the Company to make more investments than it otherwise could. The
Company's use of leverage presents an additional element of risk in the event that the cash flow from the Company’s
properties is insufficient to meet both debt payment obligations and the distribution requirements of the REIT
provisions of the Code. In addition, rising interest rates would reduce the Company’s cash flow by increasing the
amount of interest due on its floating rate debt and on its fixed rate debt as it matures and is refinanced.

Cross-collateralization of mortgage loans could result in foreclosure on substantially all of the Company’s
properties if the Company is unable to service its indebtedness.

If the Operating Partnership decides to obtain additional debt financing in the future, it may do so through
mortgages on some or all of its propertics. These mortgages may be issued on a recourse, noN-recourse Or Cross-
collateralized basis. Cross-collateralization makes all of the subject properties available to the lender in order to
satisfy the Company’s debt. Holders of indebtedness that is so secured will have a claim against these properties. To
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the extent indebtedness is cross-collateralized, lenders may seek to foreclose upon properties that are not the
primary collateral for their loan, which may, in turn, result in acceleration of other indebiedness secured by
properties. Foreclosure of properties would result in a loss of income and asset value to the Company, making it
difficult for it to meet both debt payment obligations and the distribution requirements of the REIT provisions of the
Code. As of December 31, 2006, none of the Company’s current indebtedness was cross-collateralized.

The Company may have to make lump-sum paymentis on its existing indebtedness.

The Company is required to make the following lump-sum or “balloon” payments under the terms of some of
its indebiedness, including the Operating Partnership’s: '

+ $50 million aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Notes due 2032 (the *2032 Notes™)

» $200 million aggregate principal amount of 7.60% Notes due 2028 (the “2028 Notes™)

» approximately $15 million aggregate principal amount of 7.15% Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes™)
* $100 million aggregate principal amount of 7.50% Notes due 2017 (the “2017 Notes™)

» $200 million aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Notes due 2016 {(the “2016 Notes™)

+ $125 million aggregate principal amount of 6.42% Notes due 2014 (the 2014 Notes™)

+ $200 million aggregate principal amount of 6.875% Notes due 2012 (the “2012 Notes"”)

+ $200 million aggregate principal amount of 4.625% Notes due 2011 (the “2011 Exchangeable Notes™)
* $200 million aggregate principal amount of 7.375% Notes due 2011 (the “2011 Notes™)

+ $125 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% Notes due 2009 (the “2009 Notes™)

* $150 million aggregate principal amount of 7.60% Notes due 2007 (the *2007 Notes™)

* a $500 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Unsecured Line of Credit I} under which First
Industrial Realty Trust, Inc., through the Operating Partnership, may borrow to finance the acquisition of
additional properties and for other corporate purpases, including working capital.

The Unsecured Line of Credit I provides for the repayment of principal in a lump-sum or “balloon” payment at
maturity in 2008. Under the Unsecured Line of Credit I, the Operating Partnership has the right, subject 1o certain
conditions, to increase the aggregate commitment by up to $100.0 million. As of December 31, 2006, $207.0 million
was outstanding under the Unsetured Line of Credit I at a weighted average interest rate of 6.058%.

The Company’s ability to make required payments of principal on outstanding indebtedness, whether at
maturity or otherwise, may depend on its ability either to refinance the applicable indebtedness or to sell properties.
The Company has no commitments to refinance the 2007 Notes, the 2009 Notes, the 2011 Notes, the 2011
Exchangeable Notes, the 2012 Notes, the 2014 Notes, the 2016 Notes, the 2017 Notes, the 2027 Notes, the 2028
Notes, the 2032 Notes or the Unsecured Line of Credit I. Some of the existing debt obligations, other than those
discussed above, of the Company, through the Operating Partnership, are secured by the Company’s properties, and
therefore such obligations will permit the lender to foreclose on those properties in the event of a default.

There is no limitation on debt in the Company’s organizational documents.

The organizational documents of the Company do not contain any limitation on the amount or percentage of
indebtedness the Company may incur. Accordingly, the Company could become more highly leveraged, resulting in
an increase in debt service that could adversely affect the Company’s ability to make expected distributions to
stockholders and in an increased risk of default on the Company’s obligations. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company’s ratio of debt to its total market capitalization was 40.1%. The Company computes that percentage by
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calculating its total consolidated debt as a percentage of the aggregate market value of all outstanding shares of the
Company’s commen stock, assuming the exchange of all limited partnership units of the Operating Partnership for
common stock, plus the aggregate stated value of all outstanding shares of preferred stock and total consolidated
debt.

Rising interest rates on the Company’s Unsecured Line of Credit could decrease the Company’s available
cash. ‘ .

The Company’s Unsecured Line of Credit I bears interest at a floating rate. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company's Unsecured Line of Credit I had an outstanding balance of $207.0 million at a weighted average interest
rate of 6.058%. The Company’s Unsecured Line of Credit T bears interest at the Prime Rate or at the LIBOR plus
.625%. Based on an outstanding balance on the Company’s Unsecured Line of Credit 1 as of December 31, 2006, a
10% increase in interest rates would increase interest expense by $1.3 million on an annual basis. Increases in the
interest rate payable on balances outstanding under the Unsecured Line of Credit I would decrease the Company’s
cash available for distribution to stockholders.

Earnings and cash dividends, asset value and market interest rates affect the price of the Company’s com-
mon stock,

As a real estate investment trust, the market value of the Company’s commeon stock, in general, is based
primarily upon the market’s perception of the Company’s growth potential and its current and potential future
earnings and cash dividends. The market value of the Company’s common stock is based secondarily upon the
market value of the Company’s underlying real estate assets. For this reason, shares of the Company’s common
stock may trade at prices that are higher or lower than the Company’s net asset value per share. To the extent that the
Company retains operating cash flow for investment purposes, working capital reserves, or other purposes, these
retained funds, while increasing the value of the Company’s underlying assets, may not correspondingly increase
the market price of the Company’s common stock. The Company’s failure to meet the market’s expectations with
regard to future earnings and cash dividends likely would adversely affect the market price of the Company’s
common stock, Further, the distribution yield on the common stock (as a percentage of the price of the common
stock) relative to market interest rates may also influence the price of the Company’s common stock. An increase in
market interest rates might lead prospective purchasers of the Company’s common stock to expect a higher
distribution yield, which would adversely affect the market price of the Company’s common stock. Additionally, if
the market price of the Company’s common stock declines significantly, then the Company might breach certain
covenants with respect to its debt obligations, which could adversely affect the Company’s liquidity and ability to
make future acquisitions and the Company’s ability to pay dividends to its stockholders.

The Company may incur unanticipated costs and liabilities due to environmental problems.

Under various federal, state and local laws, ordinances and regulations, an owner or operator of real estate may
be liable for the costs of clean-up of certain conditions relating to the presence of hazardous or toxic materials on, in
or emanating from a property, and any related damages to natural resources. Environmental laws often impose
liability without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, the presence of hazardous
or toxic materials. The presence of such materials, or the failure to address those conditions properly, may adversely
affect the ability to rent or sell the property or to borrow using a property as collateral. Persons who dispose of or
arrange for the disposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic materials may also be liable for the costs of clean-up of
such materials, or for related natural resource damages, at or from an off-site disposal or treatment facility, whether
or not the facility is owned or operated by those persons. No assurance can be given that existing environmental
assessments with respect to any of the Company’s properties reveal all environmental liabilities, that any prior
owner or operator of any of the properties did not create any material environmental condition not known to the
Company or that a material environmental condition does not otherwise exist as to any of the Company’s properties.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company’s insurance coverage does not include all potential losses.

The Company currently carries comprehensive insurance coverage including property, boiler & machinery,
liability, fire, flood, terrorism, earthquake, extended coverage and rental loss as appropriate for the markets where
each of the Company's propertics and their business operations are located. The insurance coverage contains policy
specifications and insured limits customarily carried for similar properties and business activities. The Company
believes its properties are adequately insured. However, there are certain losses, including losses from earthquakes,
hurricanes, floods, pollution, acts of war, acts of terrerism or riots, that are not generally insured against or that are
not generally fully insured against because it is not deemed to be economically feasible or prudent to do so. If an
uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occurs with respect to one or more of the Company’s properties,
the Company could experience a significant loss of capital invested and potential revenues from these properties,
and could potentially remain obligated under any recourse debt associated with the property.

The Company is subject to risks and liabilities in connection with ifs investments in properties through
Jjoint ventures.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s six joint ventures owned approximately 26.0 million square feet of
properties. As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s investment in joint ventures exceeded $55 miilion in the
aggregate, and for the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company’s equity in income of joint ventures exceeded
$30 million. The Company’s organizational documents do not limit the amount of available funds that the Company
may invest in joint ventures and the Company intends to continue to develop and acquire properties through joint
ventures with other persons or entities when warranted by the circumstances. Joint venture investments, in general,
involve certain risks, including:

+ co-members or joint venturers may share certain approval rights over major decisions;
» co-members or joint venturers might fail to fund their share of any required capital commitments;

= co-members or joint venturers might have economic or other business interests or goals that are inconsistent
with the Company’s business interests or goals that would affect its ability to operate the property;

* co-members or joint venturers may have the power to act contrary to the Company’s instructions, requests,
policies or objectives, including our current policy with respect to maintaining our qualification as a real
estate investment trust;

» the joint venture agreements often restrict the transfer of a member’s or joint venturer’s interest or “buy-sell”
or may otherwise restrict our ability to sell the interest when we desire or on advantageous terms;

» disputes between the Company and its co-members or joint venturers may result in litigation or arbitration
that would increase the Company’s expenses and prevent its officers and directors from focusing their time
and effort on the Company’s business and subject the properties owned by the applicable joint venture to
additional risk; and

+ the Company may in certain circumstances be liable for the actions of its co-members or joint venturers.

The occurrence of one or more of the events described above could adversely affect the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, its common
stock,

In addition, joint venture investments in real estate involve all of the risks related to the ownership, acquisition,
development, sale and financing of real estate discussed in the risk factors above. To the extent the Company’s
investments in joint ventures are adversely affected by such risks, the Company's financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow and ability to pay dividends on, and the market price of, its common stock could be adversely
affected.
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‘ : CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES C

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the Company’s periodic reports pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management,
including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required financial disclosure.

The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's
management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuanmt to Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon this evaluation, the Company’s
principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and .
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management of the Company has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting,
management used the criteria described in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Management of the Company has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting was effective.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which appears herein. See Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on page B29-30.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
fourth quarter of 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.:

We have completed integrated audits of First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.’s consolidated financial statements
and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented
below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the accompanying financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform .
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for stock-based compensation in fiscal 2006,

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing on page B-28 of the 2006 Annual Report to Stockholders, that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore,
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
COSO. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over
financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinions. '

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
conirols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PissnatiRovasBopira L

Chicago, Illinois
March 1, 2007
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

| (Dollars in thousands, except

share and per share data)

ASSETS
Assets: i o
Investment in Real Estate:

- T« (D $ 558,425 $ 541,406

Buildings and Improvements. . .. ... o . L e e e 2,626,284 2,653,281

Construction in Progress . .. ... .. vttt i ittt e 35,019 66,074

Less: Accomulated Depreciation . . . . .. ..ottt ittt e, (465,418) {410,566}

Net Investment in Real Bstate . . . ... ... ... . . i it iiianannn.s 2,754,310 2,850,195
Real Estate Held for Sale, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization of $9,688 and

$1,622 at December 31, 2006 and December 31,2005 . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... . ... 115,961 16,840
Cash and Cash Bquivalents .. .. ... o it it it m e 16,135 8,237
Restricted Cash . . .. ... i i e e 15,970 29,581
Tenant Accounts Receivable, Net ... ... . i i i i et s e 8,014 8,897
Investments in Joint Ventures . . .. .. ... .., . ... . e e e 55,527 44241
Deferred Rent Receivable, Net. . . ... ... . i i i i e it caanns 28,839 24,910
Deferred Financing Costs, Net . . . ... ... ... . i it i e 15210 10,909
Deferred Leasing Intangibles, Net. . ... ... . oo o, e e 86,265 78,537
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, Nt .. ... ... . . ot 128,168 153,896

Total Assets . .............. e e e e et e $3,224,399 $3,226,243

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:

Mortgage Loans Payable, Net. . . .. ... . . . i i it e i aaany $ 77926 $ 57309
Senior Unsecured Debt, Net. . . oottt ittt et e i e st i e e e 1,549,732 1,298,893
Unsecured Lines of Credit. . . . ... ... it i i i s et s 207,000 457,500
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses. . ... ........ . it 119,027 110,560
Deferred Leasing Intangibles, Net. . .. .. ... ... i i i 19,486 24,307
Rents Received in Advance and Security Deposils. . ... ... .. o0ttt nnna, 30,844 32,283
Leasing Intangibles Held for Sale Net of Accumulated Amortization of $183 at December 31,

2000 . ottt e et 2,310 —
Dividends Payable . . ... ... ..o . i e 42,548 39,509

Total Lisbilities .. ... oottt i ittt i e e 2,048,873 2,020,361

Commitments and Contingencies . . . .. .. ..ttt it i a it e et e e — -
Minority Interest . . . ... . e et et et e 152,547 162,320
Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred Stock ($0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 20,000, 500, 250, 600, and

200 shares of Series C, F, G, J, and K Cumulative Preferred Stock, respectively, issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2006, having a liquidation preference of $2,500 per share

{$50,000), $100,000 per share ($50,000), $100,000 per share ($25,000), $250,000 per share

{$150,000), and $250,000 per share ($50,000), respectively, At December 31, 2005,

10,000,000 shares authorized, 20,000, 500, 250 and 750 shares of Series C, F, G and [

Cumulative Preferred Stock, respectively, were issued and outstanding, having a liquidation

preference of $2,500 per share ($50,000), $100,000 per share ($50,000), $100,000 per share

($25,000) and $250,000 per share ($187,500), respectively ....................... — —
Common Stock ($0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 47,537,030 and

46,971,110 shares issued and 45,010,630 and 44,444,710 shares outstanding at December 31,

2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively) . ... ... ... ittt i e 475 470
Additional Paid-in-Capital , . . .. .. ... e, 1,388,311 1,384,712
Distributions in Excess of Accumulated Earnings . ... ... ... .0 vterceernnrannrens (284,955} (248,686)
Unearned Value of Restricted Stock Grants .. ......... ..ttt iienan - (16,825)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss . . .. ... it iiiiinnnnnnsacisnnseeannna (10,264) (5,521}
Treasury Shares at Cost (2,526,400 shares at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) . .. (70,588) {70,588)

Total Stockholders” Bquity . . . ... v oo i e i e 1,022,979 1,043,562

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity. ... ... ... o i it innnnnnnnn $3,224,399 $3,226,243

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands except per unit data)
Revenues:

Rental INCOme . . . . ...t e e e $ 274,907 $ 223,572 $200,600

Tenant Recoveries and Other Income . . .. ........... e 110,589 85,717 67.408

Revenues from Build to Suit Development for Sale . ... ... .. [P 10,540 16,241 —

Total Revenues . ... . ... . it it e e 396,036 325,530 . 268,008
Expenses:

Property EXpenses . . ........ i n e anrrierona 130,230 108,464 50,309

General and Adminisrative . . . .. it i i it i 71497 55,812 39,569

Depreciation and Other Amortization. . ... .. .cov e v i .. 145,906 105,720 79,939

Expenses from Build to Suit Development for Sale .................. 10,263 15,574 —

Total BXPENSES . . oo ittt e e s 363,896 285,570 209,817
Other Income/Expense:
Interest Income . ........... it e e e e 1,614 1,436 3,632
Mark-to-Market/(Loss) Gain on Settlement of Interest Rate Protection
AGTEEMENES . . .0 ottt it i et (3.112) 811 1,583

Interest EXpense . . ... coit it e e e (121,141) (108,339) (98,636)

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs . ......... R (2,666) (2,125) {1,931)

Gain (Loss) From Early Retirementof Debt . . ......... .. ... ... ... — 82 (515)

Total Other Income/EXPense . . ... oottt v e (125,305) {108,085) (95.867)
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Equity in Income of Joint Ventures,

Income Tax Benefit and Income Allocated To Minority Interest . . .. .. .., . (93,165) (68,125) (37.676)
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures . . . .. ... .. i v iriin it 30,673 3,699 37,301
Income Tax Benefit .. ... ..ot intr et o e e e e c e e ey 8,920 14,022 7,937
Minority Interest Allocable to Continuing Operations. .. ... ....vvvn.oun 9,795 7,980 2,034
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations . . ............covvvueuy 43,771 (42,424) 9,596
Income from Discontinued Operations {Including Gain on Sale of Real Estate

of $213,442, $132,139, and $88,245 for the Years Ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004, respectively) ... .. ... ...t i 225,357 154,061 116,693
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Discontinued Operations (including

$47,511, 520,529, and $8,659 allocable to Gain on Sale of Real Estate for

the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively). . .. . ... {50,140) (23,583) (11,005)
Minority Interest Allocable to Discontinued Operations . . .. ............. (22,796) (17,171) (14,500)
Income Before Gain on Sale of Real Estate . .. ....... ..o ivinein... 108,644 70,883 100,784
GainonSaleof Real Estate. . . ... .. ..o viiiin i ioininaaiiinns 6,071 29,550 16,755
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Gain on Sale of Real Estate. . .. .. .. {2,119) (10,871) (5,371)
Minority Interest Allocable to Gain on Sale of Real Estate . . ............. {514) (2,458) (1,562)
= o T o 1 - 112,082 87,104 110,606
Less: Preferred Dividends . . .. ... ... ... it ian e (21,424) (10,688) (14,488)
Less: Redemption of Preferred Stock. . .. ... ... . i (672) — (7,959)
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders . .. ................... $ 89,986 § 76416 $ 88,159
Basic Earnings Per Share: '

Loss from Continuing Operations Available to Commen Stockholders. . .. .. $ (142) $ (0.87) $ (0.07)

Income from Discontinued Operations . . . . ........ [ $ 346 $ 267 $ 225

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders .. ... ... ..o cuvvennn $F 204 $ 1.80 $ 217

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding . . ......... ..o 44,012 42,431 40,557
Diiuted Earnings Per Share:

Loss from Continuing Operations Available to Common Stockholders. . . . . . $ Q4 5 (0.87) $ (0.07

Income from Digscontinued Qperations . .. ... ... . i $ 346 $ 267 $§ 225

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders .. .................. $ 204 $ 130 $ 217

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding . .. ........ ... .. o0 oan 44,012 42,431 40,557
Dividends/Distributions declared per Common Share Qutstanding . .. ....... $ 23100 $ 2.7850 $ 2.7500

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

"CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
NetIneome. .............ooruiinrinniaineneinnns 112,082  $87,104 $110,606
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income:
Settlement of Interest Rate Protection Agreements. .......... (1,729) — 6,816
Reclassification of Settlement of Interest Rate Protection
AgreementstoNetIncome . ............. ... vuninn. — (159) —
Mark-to-Market of Interest Rate Protection Agreements. . . . ... (2,800) (1,414) 106
Amortization of Interest Rate Protection Agreements. . .. ... .. (912) (1,085) (512)
Other Comprehensive Loss Allocable to Minority Interest . ... ... 698 837 —
ComprehensiveIncome .. ............................. $107,339 $85,283 $117,016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Preferred Stock — Beginning of Year .. .. ... ... .. ... .............. $ — $ — $ 1

Issuance of Preferred Stock . . ..., . oo iiin i — —

Redemption of Preferred Stock . . ... ... ... e — — (1)
Preferred Stock — Endof Year. . .. ... . .. e $ — s — $ —
Common Stock — Beginning of Year . ... .......... ... ... ... . ... 3 470 5 454 3 424

Net Proceeds from the Issuance of Common Stock, . ... ... ... . ... 1 15 30

Issuance of Restricted Stock . ... ..., ittt i e 3 2 2

Repurchase and Retirernent of Common Stock . .................... (1) (1) 1)

Restricted Stock Forfeitures . ... ... ... i, — N 4)

Conversion of Units to Common Stock .. ..., ... oo .. 2 | 3
Common Stock—Endof Year. . ... ... ..o i i $ 475 b 470 $ 454
Additional Paid-In-Capital — Beginning of Year...................... 51,384,712 $1,142,356 $1,161,373

Net Proceeds from the Issuance of Common Stock. . . ... .. ..o .. .. 3,819 56,109 99,250

Issuance of Restricted Stock. ... ...t ii e e i e i 3) 8,379 8,377

Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock/Commeon Stock . ......... (2,463) (2,741) (3.094)

Restricted Stock Forfeitures . ... ... ..o ittt it et — (2,825) (10,629)

Call Spread . .. ... et (6,835) — —_

Net Proceeds from the Issuance of Preferred Stock., .. .. ... ... . .. ... 192,624 181,484 194,424

Redemption of Preferred Stock . . ... ... ... ... .. . .. i i (181,484) — (313,537)

Conversion of Units to Common Stock .. ........................ 5,142 1,950 6,192

Reclassification to initially adopt SFAS No, 123R . ... .. ............. (16,825) —_ —

Amortization of Restricted Stock Grants. . . ... ......... ... .cvven.. 9,624 — —
Additional Paid-In-Capital —Endof Year . . ........................ $1,388,311 $1,384,712 81,142,356
Dist. In Excess of Accum. Earnings — Beginning of Year ... .... ... .... $ (248,686) $ (203417 8 (172,892)

Preferred Stock Dividends . . . . ... . .. it e (21,424) (10,688) (14,488)

Distributions ($2.8100, $2.7850 and $2.7500 per Share/Unit at December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively) ... ... i s (144,720) (139,168) {132.585)
Redemption of Preferred Stock . . ... ... ... . it (672) — (7,959)
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock/Common Stock ... ... .. .. (269) (543) (652)
Restricted Stock Forfeitures . . .. ... ... ... i —_ - {147) (3,464)
Net Income Before Minority Interest . . . ... ... .. ... vt runnnnrunn 125,597 98,753 124,634
Minority Interest;

Allocationof Income . .. . ... .. .. ... ... e (13,515) (11,649) (14,028)

Distributions ($2.8100, $2.7850 and $2.7500 per Unit at December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively) . . . oo i e 18,734 18,173 18,017
Dist. In Excess of Accum. Earnings —End of Year. . ... ............... $ (284,955) $ (248,686) $ (203,417)
Unearned Value of Rest. Stock Grants — Beginning of Year . . .. ..., ...... $ (16,825) $ (19,611) $ (19,035)

Issuance of Restricted Stock. .. .o oo v i i v i i e e e — (8.381) (8,379)

Amortization of Restricted Stock Grants. . ... ..... . ... i tnnn.. — 8,845 6,866

Restricted Stock Forfeitures . ... .. .. . i it i i i i —_ 2,322 937

Reclassification to initially adopt SFAS No, 123R ................... 16,825 — —
Uneamed Value of Rest. Stock Grants —Endof Year .................. 3 — $ (16,825) $ (19,611)
Treasury Shares, at cost — Beginning of Year. . ... ............c00uu.. $ (70,588 $ (70,588) $ (70,588)

Purchase of Treasury Shares. .. ............. e e — — —
Treasury Shares, atcost—Endof Year......... ... ... $ (70,588) § (70,588) $ (70,588)
Accum. Other Comprehensive Loss — Beginning of Year. .. ............. 3 (5521) S (3,700) $ (10,110)

Settlement of Interest Rate Protection Agreements . ... ............... (1,729) — 6,816

Reclassification of Settlement of Interest Rate Protection Agreements to Net .

IO . . e e —_— (159) —
Mark-to-Market of Interest Rate Protection Agreements . .. ... ......... (2,800) {1,414) 106
Amortization of Interest Rate Protection Agreements . . ............... {912) (1,085) (512)
Other Comprehensive Loss Allocable to Minority Interest. .. ........... 698 837 —

Accum. Other Comprehensive Loss —Endof Year. . .................. $ (10,264) $  (5.521) $ (3,700
Total Stockholders’ Equity at End of Year . ........... e $1,022,979 $1,043,562 $ 845494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

. B-34




FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NetIncome . ... i i e
Income Allocated to Minority Interest. . . ........ ... ...

Net Income Before Minority Interest . .. ........ ... ... ... v,
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities: .
Depreciation. . . . .. ... .. ... e s
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs . . . .. ...............
Other Amortization . . . ... ... ... i ittt arnnnn
ProvisionforBad Debt . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ..
Mark-to-Market/Loss on Settlement of Interest Rate Protection
AZIEBMENTS . ... ..ottt i e e
(Gain} Loss From Early Retirementof Debt. . .................
Equity in Income of Joint Ventures . . . ... .................. .
Distributions from Joint Ventures . ... ......................
Decrease (Increase) in Build to Suit Development for Sale Costs
Receivable . . ...... .. .. i i e e
GainonSale of Real Estate . . . . ... .......................
Increase in Tenant Accounts Receivable and Prepaid Expenses and
Other Assets, Net . .. .. .. e i i et e e
Increase in Deferred Rent Receivable . ..., ... ... ... .....
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses and
Rents Received in Advance and Security Deposits. . ...........

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities. . . ...............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of and Additions to Investment in Real Estate_ . . . ... .....
Net Proceeds from Sales of Investments in Real Estate . . ... ........
Contributions to and Investments in Joint Ventures. . . . ............
Distributions from Joint Ventures ., . ... ....... ..., ............
Repayment and Sale of Mortgage Loans Receivable. . .............
Decrease (Increase) in Restricted Cash . . ... ...................

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities . . . ... .......

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net Proceeds from the Issuance of Common Stock. . . .............
Proceeds from the Issuance of Preferred Stock. . . ................
Preferred Stock Offering Costs. ... ..o oo i e i v i i
Redemption of Preferred Stock ... ... ... ... ... . i il

Repurchase of Restricted Stock ... ... ... ... ... :

Proceeds from Senior Unsecured Debt . . ... ...................
Other {Costs) Proceeds from Senior Unsecured Debt . .............
Repayment of Senior Unsecured Debt. . ... ... ... i
Dividends/Distributions . . . . ... ... 0o i e e
Preferred Stock Dividends . . . ... ... ... . ... L.
Proceeds from Mortgage Loans Payable . . .....................
Repayments of Mortgage Loans Payable. .. ....................
Proceeds from Unsecured Lines of Credit . . ... .. ...............
Repayments on Unsecured Lines of Credit . ....................
Call Spread .. . ... ... i et e e
Cost of Debt Issuance and Prepayment Fees . .. .................

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities . .. .........

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Bquivalents. . .. .. ... ..............
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period. . .................

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period . . ............... .. ...

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
$ 112,082 $ 87,104 $ 110,606
13,515 11,649 14,028
125,597 98,753 124,634
121,347 99,338 82,757
2,666 2,125 1,931
40,965 33,728 22,547
2,289 1,817 (1,474)
(16) (143) —
—_ (82) 515
(30,673) (3,699} (36,451)
31,604 3,866 36,451
5,883 (16,241) —
{219,513) (161,689) (91,242)
(16,524) (23,371) {46,030)
(10,154) (9,459 6,771)
6,020 24,407 (92100
59,551 49,350 77,657
(813,840) (920,707 (485,393)
907,428 537,252 293,703
(32,773) {45,175) (5.422)
15,734 2,971 14,074
34,987 83,561 111,049
13,611 {29,556) 81,981
129,147 (371,654) 9,992
3,462 55,754 86,121
200,000 187,500 200,000
(7,103) (5,906) (5,576)
(182,156) — (321,438)
(2,660) (3,285) (3,747
399,306 —_ 134,496
(1,729) — 6,816
{150,000) (50,000 —
(143,858) (137,672) {130,220)
{19,248) (8,162) (13,256)
— 1,167 1,400
(12,618) (1,987} (5.965)
779,300 647,500 581,000
(1,029,800) (357,500) (609,400)
{6,835) — —
(6,861) ' (1,792) (3,777
(180,800} 325,617 (83,546)
7,898 3,313 4,103
8,237 4,924 821
$ 16,135 $ 8237 $ 4924

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in thousands)

1. Organization and Formation of Company

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. was organized in the state of Maryland on August 10, 1993. First Industrial
Realty Trust, Inc. is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”).

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc, and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) began operations on July 1, 1994. The
Company’s operations are conducted primarily through First Industrial, L.P. (the “Operating Partnership’) of which
the Company is the sole general partner: The Company is the sole stockholder of First Industrial Finance
Corporation, First Industrial Pennsylvania Corporation, First Industrial Harrisburg Corporation, First Industrial
Securities Corporation, First Industrial Mortgage Corporation, First Industrial Indianapolis Corporation, FI
Development Services Corporation and First Indusirial Florida Finance Corporation, which are the sole general
partners of First Industrial Financing Partnership, L.P. (the “Financing Partnership”), First Industrial Pennsylvania,
L.P. (the “Pennsylvania Partnership™), First Industrial Harrisburg, L.P. (the “Harrisburg Partnership™), First
Industrial Securities, L.P. (the “Securities Partnership™), First Industrial Mortgage Partnership, L.P. (the “Mortgage
Partnership”), First Industrial Indianapolis, L.P. (the “Indianapolis Partnership™), FI Development Services, L.P.
and TK-S8V, LTD., respectively (except in the case of the Financing Partnership in which case the Operating
Partnership is also the general partner), and the Operating Partnership is the sole limited partner. The Operating
Partnership is also the sole member of limited liability companies and the sole stockholder of First Industrial
Investment, Inc. The operating data of the foregoing subsidiaries of the Company is consolidated with that of the
.Company as presented herein. The Company, through separate, wholly-owned limited liability companies of which
the Operating Partnership or First Industrial Investment, Inc. is the sole member, also owns minority equity interests
in, and provides various services to, six joint ventures which invest in industrial properties (the “September 1998
Joint Venture,” the “May 2003 Joint Veature,” the “March 2005 Joint Venture,” the “September 2005 Joint Venture,”
the “March 2006 Co-Investment Program” and the “July 2006 Joint Venture’). The Company, through a separate,
wholly-owned limited liability company of which the Operating Partnership is also the sole member, also owned a
minority interest in and provided property management services to a seventh joint venture which invested in
industrial properties (the “December 2001 Joint Venture”; together with the September 1998 Joint Venture, the May
2003 Joint Venture, the March 2005 Joint Venture, the September 2005 Joint Venture, the March 2006 Co-
Investment Program and the July 2006 Joint Venture, the “Joint Ventures”). During the year ended December 31,
2004, the December 2001 Joint Venture sold all of its industrial properties. On January 31, 2007, the Company
purchased the 90% equity interest from the institutional investor in the September 1998 Joint Venture, The
operating data of the Joint Ventures is not consolidated with that of the Company as presented herein.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company owned 931 industrial properties (inclusive of developments in
progress) located in 28 states in the United States and one province in Canada, containing an aggregate of
approximately 76.9 million square feet (unaudited) of gross leasable area (“GLA”}.

2. Basis of Presentation

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. is the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership, with an approximate
87.3% and 86.8% ownership interest at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Minority interest at Decem-
ber 31, 2006 and 2005, represents the approximate 12.7% and 13.2%, respectively, aggregate partnership interest in
the Operating Partnership held by the limited partners thereof.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for each of the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 include the accounts and operating results of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Such financial statements present the Company’s minority equity interests in the Joint Ventures under
the equity method of accounting. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In order to conform with generally accepted accounting principles, management, in preparation of the
Company’s financial statements, is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash and liquid investments with an initial maturity of thre¢ months or
less. The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short term maturity of these investments.

Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, restricted cash includes gross proceeds from the sales of certain properties.
These sales proceeds will be disbursed as the Company exchanges into properties under Section 1031 of the Internal
Revenue Code. The carrying amount approximates fair value due'to the short term maturity of these investments.

Investment in Real Estate and Dép}'eciation

Investment in Real Estate is carried at cost. The Company reviews its properties on a quarterly basis for
impairment and provides a provision if impairments are found. To determine if an impairment may exist, the
Company reviews its properties and identifies those that have had either an event of change or event of
circumstances warranting further assessment of recoverability (such as a decrease in occupancy). If further
assessment of recoverability is needed, the Company estimates the future net cash flows expected to result from the
use of the property and its eventual disposition, on an individual property basts. If the sum of the expected future net
cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the property on an
individual property basis, the Company will recognize an impairment loss based upon the estimated fair value of
such property. For propertics management considers held for sale, the Company ceases depreciating the properties
and values the properties at the lower of depreciated cost or fair value, less costs to dispose. If circumstances arise
that were previously considered unlikely, and, as a result, the Company decides not to sell a property previously
classified as held for sale, the Company will reclassify such property as held and used. Such property is measured at
the lower of its carrying amount (adjusted for any depreciation and amortization expense that would have been
recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used) or fair value at the date of the subsequent
decision not to sell. To calculate the fair value of properties held for sale, the Company deducts from the estimated
sales price of the property the estimated costs to close the sale. The Company classifies properties as held for sale
when management of the Company has approved the properties for sale.

Interest costs, real estate taxes, compensation costs of development personnel and other directly related costs
incurred during construction periods are capitalized and depreciated commencing with the date the property is
substantially completed. Upon substantial completion, the Company reclassifies construction in progress to
building, tenant improvements and leasing commissions. Such costs begin to be capitalized to the development
projects from the point the Company is undergoing necessary activities to get the development ready for its intended
use and ceases when the development projects are substantially completed and held available for occupancy.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line methed based on the following useful lives:

Years
Buildings and Improvements ................ e 20 to 50
Land IMProvementS. . . ... v ittt ittt ettt i et ettt e te e a e 15
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment . .. .. .. ... ... .. . . i e 5t 10




FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Construction expenditures for tenant improvements, leasehold improvements and leasing commissions
(inclusive of compensation costs of personnel attributable to leasing) are capitalized and amortized over the
terms of each specific lease. Capitalized compensation costs of personnel attributable to leasing relate to time
directly attributable to originating leases with independent third parties that result directly from and are essential to
originating those leases and would not have been incurred had these leasing transactions not occurred. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for improvements are capitalized.

The Company accounts for all acquisitions entered into subsequent to June 30, 2001 in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB™) Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 141, “Busi-
ness Combinations™ (“FAS 1417). Upon acquisition of a property, the Company allocates the purchase price of the
property based upon the fair value of the assets acquired, which generally consist of land, buildings, tenant
improvements, leasing commissions and intangible assets including in-place leases, above market and below
market leases and tenant relationships. The Company allocates the purchase price to the fair value of the tangible
assets of an acquired property by valuing the property as if it were vacant. Acquired above and below market leases
are valued based on the present value of the difference between prevailing market rates and the in-place rates over
the remaining lease term.

The purchase price is further allocated to in-place lease values and tenant relationships based on management’s
evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease and the Company’s overall relationship with the
respective tenant. Acquired above and below market leases are amortized over the remaining non-cancelable terms
of the respective leases as an adjustment to rental revenue on the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
The value of in-place lease intangibles and tenant relationships, which are included as components of Deferred
Leasing Intangibles, Net (see below) are amortized over the remaining lease term and expected renewal periods of
the respective lease as adjustments to depreciation and other amortization expense. If a tenant terminates its lease
carly, the unamortized portion of the tenant improvements, leasing commissions, above and below market leases,
the in-place lease value and tenant relationships is immediately written off.

Deferred Leasing Intangibles, exclusive of deferred leasing intangibles held for sale, included in the
Company’s total assets consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

In-Place Leases . . . ... ovurnnneeeemin i e ce... $81422 $78,674
Less: Accumulated Amortization . ........ ..ottt erennns (15,361) (6,236)
. $ 66,061 $72,438

ABOve Market Leases. - . oo oottt e e e e e $ 6,933 $ 7,958
Less: Accumulated Amortization .. ...... ... ... irerrerenn.- 217N (1,859)
' $ 4756  $ 6,099

Tenant Relationships . ........ ... ... .0 iiiriiiinnnin... $ 16,657 $ —
Less: Accumulated AMOTHZAtON . ... \.vvvnnrernrerernnnnn. (1,209) —
| $ 15448 $ —
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Deferred Leasing Intangibles, exclusive of deferred leasing intangibles held for sale, included in the
Company’s total liabilities consist of the following:
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

Below Market Leases . . ..ot i ittt e et et e ettt e e $25,735 $27,710
Less: Accumulated Amortization . ............. ... .. P (6,249) (3,403}
$19,486 $24,307

Amortization expense related to deferred leasing intangibles was $13,747, $6,733, and $1,643 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 respectively. The Company will recognize net amortization expense
related to deferred leasing intangibles over the next five years as follows:

200 . e e $19,673
2008 . L e 17,012
2000 . e e e 14,695
2000 L e e e e e e 12,324
200 L e 10,409

Build to Suit for Sale Revenues and Expenses

During 2006 and 2005, the Company entered into contracts with third parties to construct industrial properties.
The build-to-suit for sale contracts require the purchase price to be paid at closing. The Company uses the
percentage-of-completion contract method of accounting in accordance with SOP 81-1 “Accounting for Perfor-
mance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts™. During the period of performance, costs are
accumulated on the balance sheet in Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets ($10,263 at December 31, 2006 and
$15,574 at December 31, 2005) and revenues and expenses are recognized in continuing operations. -

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs include fees and costs incurred 1o obtain long-term financing. These fees and costs are
being amortized over the terms of the respective loans. Accumulated amortization of deferred financing costs was
513,863 and $12,541 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, Unamortized deferred financing costs are
written-off when debt is retired before the maturity date.

Investments in Joint Ventures

Investments in Joint Ventures represent the Company’s mincrity equity interests in the Joint Ventures. The
Company accounts for its investments in Joint Ventures under the equity method of accounting, as the Company
does not have operational control or a majority voting interest. Under the equity method of accounting, the
Company’s share of earnings or losses of the Joint Ventures is reflected in income as earned and contributions or
distributions increase or decrease, respectively, the Company’s Investments in Joint Ventures as paid or received,
respectively. Differences between the Company’s carrying value of its investments in joint ventures and the
Company's underlying equity of such joint ventures are amortized over the respective lives of the underlying assets.

Stock Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R,
“Share Based Payment” (“FAS 123R”"), using the¢ modified prospective application method, which requires
measurement of compensation cost for all stock-based awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognition
of compensation over the service period for awards expected to vest. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004
and 2005, the Company accounted for its stock incentive plans under the recognition and measurement principles of
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation™ for all new
issuances of stock based compensation. At January 1, 2006, the Company did not have any unvested option awards
and the Company had accounted for their previously issued restricted stock awards at fair value, accordingly, the
adoption of FAS 123R did not require the Company to recognize a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, The Company did reclassify $16,825 from the Unearned Value of Restricted Stock Grants caption within
Stockholder’s Equity to Additional Paid in Capital during the year ended December 31, 2006 in accordance with the
provisions of FAS 123R.

Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company accounted for its stock incentive plans under the recognition
measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees™ (“APB 25”). Under APB 25, compensation expense is not recognized for options issued in which
the strike price is equal to the fair value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates
the pro forma effect on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value recognition provisions of FAS 123R had
been applied to all outstanding and unvested option awards for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

For the Year Ended

2005 2004

Net Income Available to Commeon Stockholders —as reported. . ... ..... ... 376,416  $88,159
Add: Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense Included in Net Income

Available to Common Stockholders, Net of Minority Interest — as

=5+ 1o 1 — —
Less: Total Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense, Net of Minority

Interest — Determined Under the Fair Value Method . ................. {87) (362)
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders —pro forma .............. $76,329  $87,797
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders per Share — as reported —

Basic .. e e e $ 180 $ 217
Net Income Available to Commonr Stockholders per Share — pro forma —

BasiC ... e e e $ 180 % 26
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders per Share — as reported —

Diluted . ... e - $ 180 § 217
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders per Share — pro forma —

Diluted . . ...t e $ 18 $ 216
The fair value of each opticn grant is estimated on the date of grant using the

Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average

assumptions:

Expected dividend yield ........... ... .. o i N/A N/A

Expected stock price volatility . . ........ ... ... ... .o oLt N/A N/A

Risk-free interest rate . . ...... ... ... . . i e, N/A N/A

Expected lifeof options. . .. ... ...t L N/A N/A

The Company did not issue any options in 2005 and 2004,

Revenue Recognition

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line method under which contractual rent increases are recognized
evenly over the lease term. Tenant recovery income includes payments from tenanis for real estate taxes, insurance
and other property operating expenses and is recognized as revenue in the same period the related expenses are
incurred by the Company.
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Revenue is recognized on payments received from tenants for early lease terminations after the Company
determines that all the necessary criteria have been met in accordance with FASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards Noe. 13, “Accounting for Leases” (“FAS 13").

Interest income on mortgage loans receivable is recognized based on the accrual method unless a significant
uncertainty of collection exists. If a significant uncertainty exists, interest income is recognized as collected.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts against the portion of tenant accounts receivable
which is estimated to be uncollectible. Accounts receivable in the consolidated balance sheets are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $783 and $111 as of December 31, 2006 and 20035, respectively. For accounts
receivable the Company deems uncollectible, the Company uses the direct write-off methed.

Gain on Sale of Real Estate

Gain on sale of real estate is recognized using the full accrual method, when appropriate. Gains relating to
transactions which do not meet the full accrual method of accounting are deferred and recognized when the full
accrual method of accounting criteria are met or by using the installment or deposit methods of profit recognition, as
appropriate in the circumstances. As the assets are sold, their costs and related accumulated depreciation are written
off with resulting gains or losses reflected in net income or loss. Estimated future costs to be incurred by the
Company after completion of each sale are included in the determination of the gain on sales.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code. As a result, the
Company generally is not subject to federal income taxation to the extent of the income which it distributes if it
satisfies the requirements set forth in Section 856 of the Code (pertaining to its organization and types of income and
assels) necessary to maintain its status as a REIT, it distributes annually at least 90% of its REIT taxable income, as
defined in the Code, to its stockholders and it satisfies certain other requirements.

A provision has been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
activities conducted in its taxable REIT subsidiary, First Industrial Investment, Inc. which has been accounted for
under FASB Statement of Financial Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes™ (“FAS 109"). In accordance
with FAS 109, the total benefit/expense has been separately allocated to income from continuing operations, income
from discontinued operations and gain on sale of real estate.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are subject to certain state and local income, excise and franchise
taxes. The provision for excise and franchise taxes has been reflected in general and administrative expense in the
consolidated statements of operations and has not been separately stated due to its insignificance. State and local
income taxes are included in the provision/benefit for income taxes which is allocated to income from continuing
operations, income from discontinued operations and gain on sale of real estate.

Earnings Per Common Share

Net income per weighted average share — basic is based on the weighted average common shares outstanding
(excluding restricted stock that has not yet vested). Net income per weighted average share — diluted is based on
the weighted average common shares outstanding (excluding restricted stock that has not yet vested) plus the
dilutive effect of in-the-money employee stock options, restricted stock and 2011 Exchangeable Notes (hereinafter
defined). See Note 10 for further disclosure about earnings per share,
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include short-term investments, tenant accounts receivable, net, mort-
gage notes receivable, accounts payable, other accrued expenses, mortgage loans payable, unsecured lines of credit
and senior unsecured debt.

The fair values of the short-term investments, tenant accounts receivable, net, mortgage notes receivable,
accounts payable and other accrued expenses approximates their carrying or contract values. See Note 5 for the fair
values of the mortgage loans payable, unsecured lines of credit and senior unsecured debt,

Derivative Financial Instruments

Historically, the Company has used interest rate protection agreements (the “Agreements™) to fix the interest
rate on anticipated offerings of senior unsecured debt or convert floating rate debt to fixed rate debt. Receipts or
payments that result from the settlement of Agreements used to fix the interest rate on anticipated offerings of senior
unsecured debt are amortized over the life of the senior unsecured debt and included in interest expense. Receipts or
payments resulting from Agreements used to convert floating rate debt to fixed rate debt are recognized as a
component of interest expense. Agreements which qualify for hedge accounting are marked-to-market and any gain
or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income (shareholders’ equity). Any agreements which no longer
qualify for hedge accounting are marked-to-market and any gain or loss is recognized in net income immediately.
The credit risks associated with the Agreements are controtled through the evaluation and monitoring of the
creditworthiness of the counterparty. In the event that the counterparty fails to meet the terms of the Agreements, the
Company’s exposure is limited to the current value of the interest rate differential, not the notional amount, and the
Company’s carrying value of the Agreements on the balance sheet. See Note 5 for more information on the
Agreements.

Discontinued Operations

On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets” (“FAS 144™). FAS 144 addresses financial
accounting and reporting for the disposal of long lived assets. FAS 144 requires that the results of operations and
gains or losses on the sale of property or property held for sale be presented in discontinued operations if both of the
following criteria are met: (a) the operations and cash flows of the property have been (or will be) eliminated from
the ongoing operations of the Company as a result of the disposal transaction and (b) the Company will not have any
significant continuing involvement in the operations of the property after the disposal transaction. FAS 144 also
requires prior period results of operations for these properties to be reclassified and presented in discontinued
operations in prior consolidated statements of operations.

Segment Reporting

Management views the Company as a single segment based on its method of internal reporting.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments” which amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (“FAS 133"), and SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. This Statement resolves issues addressed in Statement 133
Implementation Issue No. D1, “Application of SFAS No. 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial
Assets.” This statement: '

a. Permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded
derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation;,
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b. Clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of
SFAS No. 133;

c. Establishes a requirement to ¢valuate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that
are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative
requiring bifurcation;

d. Clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded
derivatives; and

e. Amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-purpose entity from
holding a derivative financial instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative
financial instrument.

This Statement is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first
fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that the implementation of this
statement will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets” which amends
FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities, (“FAS 140™) with respect to the accounting for separately recognized servicing assets and servicing
liabilities. This statement was issued to simplify the accounting for servicing rights and reduce the volatility that
results from the use of different measurements attributes for servicing rights and the related financial instruments
used to economically hedge risks associated with those servicing rights. The statement clarifies when to separately
account for servicing rights, requires separately recognized servicing rights to be initially measured at fair value,
and provides the option to subsequently account for those servicing rights at either fair value or under the
amortization method previously required under FAS 140. An entity should adopt this statement as of the beginning
of its first fiscal year that begins after September 13, 2006, The Company does not expect that the implementation of
this statement will have a materiat effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 43”). FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” The evaluation of a tax position in accordance. with FIN 48 is a two-step process. First, the
Company determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination based
on the technical merits of the position. Second, a tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is
measured to determine the amouat of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured
at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be recognized in
the first subsequent reporting period in which the threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no
longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent reporting
period in which the threshold is no longer met. The Company is required to apply the guidance of FIN 48 beginning
January 1, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating what impact the application of FIN 48 will have on the
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” which establishes a common
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair
value measurements. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company
does not expect that the implementation of this statement will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In December 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
regarding EITF 00-19-2, “Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements.” The guidance specifies that the
contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a registration payment
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arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included as a provision of a financial instrument or other
agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies.” The guidance is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2006. EITF 00-19-2 is not
expected to impact the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

4. Investments in Joint Ventures

On September 28, 1998, the Company, through a wholly-owned limited liability company in which the
Operating Partnership is the sole member, entered into a joint venture arrangement (the “September 1998 Joint
Venture”) with an institutional investor to invest in industrial properties. At December 31, 2006, the Company,
through wholly-owned limited liability companies of the Operating Partnership, owns a 10% equity interest in the
September 1998 Joint Venture and provides property and asset management services to the September 1998 Joint
Venture. On January 31, 2007, the Company purchased the remaining 90% equity interest from the institutional
investor in the September 1998 Joint Venture (See Note 16).

On December 28, 2001, the Company, through a wholly-owned limited liability company in which the
Operating Partnership is the sole member, entered into a joint venture arrangement (the “December 2001 Joint
Venture™) with an institutional investor to invest in industrial properties. The Company, through wholly-owned
limited liability companies of the Operating Partnership, owned a 15% equity interest in the December 2001 Joint
Venture and provided property management services to the December 2001 Joint Venture. On August 27, 2004, the
December 2001 Joint Venture sold all 36 industrial properties, containing approximately 6.2 million square feet
(unaudited) of GLA, to a third party for gross proceeds of approximately $349,750. Due to certain provisions in the
operating agreement, the Company received distributions in excess of its 15% equity interest in the December 2001
Joint Venture. Due to the sale of all 36 industrial properties, the Company recognized, in aggregate, approximately
$34,767 from the Company’s 15% share of gain from the sale of the December 2001 Joint Venture’s properties and
distributions received from the December 2001 Joint Venture in excess of the Company’s 15% equity interest. This
amount is included in Equity in Income of Joint Ventures,

Asa reéult of the sale on August 27, 2004 o a third party, the Company recognized the unamortized portion of
the previously deferred gain from the original sales to the December 2001 Joint Venture, of approximately $5,836.
These deferred gains are included in Equity in Income of Joint Ventures.

On May 16, 2003, the Company, through a wholly-owned limited liability company in which the Operating
Partnership is the sole member, entered into a joint venture arrangement (the “May 2003 Joint Venture”) with an
institutional investor to invest in industrial properties. The Company, through wholly-owned limited liability
companies of the Operating Partnership or First Industrial Investment, Inc., owns a 15% equity interest in the
May 2003 Joint Venture and provides property management services to the May 2003 Joint Venture.

On March 18, 2005, the Company, through a wholly-owned limited liability company in which First Industrial
Investment, Inc. is the sole member, entered into a joint venture arrangement (the *“March 2005 Joint Venture™) with
an institutional investor to invest in, own, develop, redevelop and operate certain industrial properties. The
Company, through wholly-owned limited liability companies of the Operating Partnership or First Industrial
Investment, Inc., owns a 10% equity interest in the March 2005 Joint Venture and provides property management,
asset management, development management and leasing management services to the March 2005 Joint Venture.

On September 7, 2005, the Company, through a wholly-owned limited liability company in which First
Industrial Investment, Inc. is the sole member, entered into a joint venture arrangement (the “September 2005 Joint
Venture”) with an institutional investor to invest in, own and operate certain industrial properties. The Company,
through wholly-owned limited liability companies of the Operating Partnership or First Industrial Investment, Inc.,
owns a 10% equity interest in the September 2005 Joint Venture and provides property management, asset
management, development management and leasing management services to the September 2005 Joint Venture.
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On March 21, 2006, the Company, through separate wholly-owned limited liability companies in which the
Operating Partnership is the sole member, entered into a co-investment arrangement with an institutional investor to
invest in industrial properties (the “March 2006 Co-Investment Program”). The Company, through separate wholly-
owned limited liability companies of the Operating Partnership or First Industrial Investment, Inc., owns a 15%
equity interest in and provides property management, asset management and leasing management services to the
March 2006 Co-Investment Program.

On July 21, 2006 the Company, through a wholly-owned limited liability company of First Industrial
Investment, Inc., entered into a joint venture arrangement with an institutional investor to invest in land and
vertical development (the “July 2006 Joint Venture™). The Company, through wholly-owned limited liability
companies of First Industrial Investment, Inc., owns a 10% equity interest in and provides property management,
asset management, development management and leasing management services to the July 2006 Joint Venture.

As of December 31, 2006, the September 1998 Joint Venture owned 41 industrial properties comprising
approximately 1.3 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA, the May 2003 Joint Venture owned 12 industrial
properties comprising approximately 5.4 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA, the March 2005 Joint Venture
owned 42 industrial properties comprising approximately 3.9 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA and several
land parcels, the September 2005 Joint Venture owned 148 industrial properties comprising approximately
10.3 million square feet {unaudited) of GLA and several land parcels, the March 2006 Co-Investment Program
owned 13 industrial properties comprising approximately 5.9 miltion square feet (unaudited) of GLA (of which the
Consolidated Operating Partnership has an equity interest in 12 industrial properties comprising approximately
5.0 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA) and the July 2006 Joint Venture owned several land parcels.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company sold several land parcels to the March 2005 Joint
Venture for a sales price of $12.3 million. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company sold eight
properties and several land parcels to the March 2005 Joint Venture for a sales price of $92.6 million. The-Company
deferred 10% of the gain from these sales in 2006 and 2005, which is equal to the Company’s economic interest in
the March 2005 Joint Venture. In 2006 and 2003, the March 2005 Joint Venture sold three properties and several
parcels of land to third parties. As a result of the sales, the Company recognized the unamortized portion of the
previously deferred gains from the original sales to the March 2005 Joint Venture in Equity in Income of Joint
Ventures. If the Company repurchases any of the properties or land parcels from the March 2005 Joint Venture, the
10% deferral will be netted against the basis of the property purchased (which reduces the basis of the property).

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company earned acquisition fees from the May 2003 Joint
Venture, the September 2005 Joint Venture and the March 2006 Co-Investment Program. During the year ended
December 31, 2003, the Company earned acquisition fees from the May 2003 Joint Venture and the September 2003
Joint Venture. The Company deferred 15% of the acquisition fees earned from the May 2003 Joint Venture and the
March 2006 Co-Investment Program activity and 10% of the acquisition fees earned from the September 2005 Joint
Venture activity. The deferrals reduced the Company’s investment in the joint ventures and are amortized into
income over the life of the properties, generally 25 to 40 years.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has a receivable from the Joint Ventures of $7,967 and $3,354,
respectively, which relates to development, leasing, property management and asset management fees due to the
Company from the Joint Ventures, reimbursement for general contractor expenditures made by a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company who is acting in the capacity of the developer for several development projects for the
March 2005 Joint Venture and from borrowings made to the September 1998 Joint Venture.

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company invested the following amounts in its
Joint Ventures as well a8 received distributions and recognized fees (included within Other Income) from
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acquisition, disposition, property management, leasing, development, general contractor, incentive and asset
management services in the following amounts: '

Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Contributions. .. ....... ..ot $29,194 $43 311 § 3,676
Distributions . . ... ........ ... . ... ... $51,398 $ 6,837 $50,525
Fees .. e e $22,507 $ 8,301 $ 2,689

The combined summarized financial information of the investments in joint ventures is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

Condensed Combined Balance Sheets

Gross Real Estate Investment . .. .............coitenrinenen.. $1,685969  $1,410,389
Less: Accumulated Depreciation. . ........ ... .. ... . ... ..... (72,398) (30,497)
Net Real Estate . .. ... .. i 1,613,571 1,379,892
Other ASSeIS ..o\ttt it i e e e 224,048 256,233
TOtA] ASSEIS . o v v v ettt et e e e e e $1,837,619  §1,636,125
Dbl . L e e e $1,276,001  $1,174,296
Other Liabilities. . ... ... .o e 108,430 46,962
EqQuity . . o e e 453,188 414,867
Total Liabilities and Equity. . .. ..... ... ... i, $1,837,619  $1,636,125
Company's share of Bquity. .. . ......... ... ... .uionaa.. $ 53151 3 4772
Basis Differentials{1) . ... ... ... . i e 2,376 (531)
Carrying Value of the Company’s investments in joint ventures . . ... .. $ 55527 § 44,241

(1) This amount represents the aggregate difference between the Company’s historical cost basis and the basis

reflected at the joint venture level. Basis differentials are primarily comprised of gain deferrals related to
properties the Company sold to the Joint Ventures, certain acquisition costs which are not reflected at the joint
venture level and incentive payments the Company has earned but has not received.

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Condensed Combined Statements of Operations
Total REVEIMUES . . o\ vt ie st e i ar e ee it s n i anenanss $163,443  $59411 $32,353
Expenses

Operatingand Other. ... ......... ... .. ... 55,070 16,128 11,593

Interest ... e e 61,524 20,995 7,712

Depreciation and Amortization . .. ............. ... ... ... 90,842 32,150 12,540
Total EXpenses . ... .. ittt 207,436 69,273 31,845
Gain on Sale of Real Estate . ... .......... e e e 94,352 10,761 81,431
NetIncome . ..o oot it i it et ittt e i e 50,359 899 81,939
Company’s share of Net Income. . .............. ... ... ... 530,673 % 3,699 $37,301
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5. Mortgage Loans Payable, Net, Senior Unsecured Debt, Net and Unsecured Lines of Credit

The following table discloses certain information regarding the Company’s mortgage loans, senior unsecured
debt and unsecured lines of credit:

Effective
QOutstanding Balance at gl;::e:: Il;:iere::
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, Maturity
2006 2005 2006 2006 Date
July 2009 -

Mortgage Loans Payable, Net. . . . .. $ 77926 $ 57309 550%-925% 4.58% -9.25% September 2024
Unamortized Premiums . .......... (2,919) (3,549)
Mortgage Loans Payable, Gross . ... $ 75007 § 53,760
Senior Unsecured Debt, Net _
2006 Notes . . . ....... v ieunnn, $ — $ 150,000 7.000% 7.22% 12/01/06
2007Notes . . ... .oviv i, 149,998 149,992 7.600% 7.61% 05/15/07
20l6NOteS . ..o e 199,372 — 5.750% 5.91% 01/15/16
2017 Notes . .. .......... e e 99,895 99,886 7.500% 7.52% 120117
2027 Notes . . ....... .. 15,055 15,054 7.150% 1.11% 05/15/27
2028Notes. . ... i 199,831 199,823 7.600% 8.13% 07/15/28
2001 Notes. . ..., 199,746 199,685 71.375% 1.39% 03/15/11
2002 N0tes . . .o s e 199,270 199,132 6.875% 6.85% 04/15/12
2032 Notes . . ... ... 49,435 49,413 7.750% 1.87% 04/15/32
2000 Notes . . .. ..von i, 124,893 124,849 5.250% 4.10% 06/15/09
2004 Notes . . .. i e 112,237 111,059 6.420% 6.54% 06/01/14
2011 Exchangeable Notes. . ........ 200,000 —_ 4.625% 4.63% 09/15/11
Subtotat. . .................... $1.549,732  $1,298,893
Unamortized Discounts . .......... 15,338 16,177
Senior Unsecured Notes, Gross . . . . . $1,565,070  $1,315,070
Unsecured Lines of Credit
Unsecured Line of CreditI......... $ 207,000 $ 332,500 6.058% 6.058% 09/28/08
Unsecured Line of Credit IT .~ ...... — 125,000 N/A N/A N/A
Unsecured Lines of Credit Total . ... $ 207,000 §$ 457,500

Mortgage Loans Payable, Net

During 2006, in conjunction with the acquisition of several industrial properties, the Company assumed
mortgages in the aggregate of $33,866. In conjunction with the assumption of the loans, the Company recorded a
premium in the amount of $116. Also during 2006, the Company paid off and retired $10,331 of mortgage loans
payable. As of December 31, 2006, mortgage loans payable of $77,926 is collateralized by industrial properties
with a carrying value of $124,470.

Senior Unsecured Debt, Net

On January 10, 2006, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, issued $200,000 of senior unsecured
debt which matures on January 15, 2016 and bears interest at a rate of 5.75% (the “2016 Notes™). The issue price of
the 2016 Notes was 99.653%. Interest is paid semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15. In December
2003, the Company also entered into interest rate protection agreements which were used to fix the interest rate on
the 2016 Notes prior to issnance. The Company settled the interest rate protection agreements on January 9, 2006
for a payment of approximately $1,729, which is included in other comprehensive income. The debt issue discount
and the settlement amount of the interest rate protection agreements will be amortized over the life of the 2016
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Notes as an adjustment to interest expense. Including the impact of the offering discount and the settlement amount
of the interest rate protection agreements, the Company’s effective interest rate on the 2016 Notes is 5.91%.

On September 25, 2006, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, issued $175,000 of senior unsecured
debt which bears interest at a rate of 4.625% (the “2011 Exchangeable Notes”). The Company also granted the
initial purchasers of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes an option exercisable until Gctober 4, 2006 to purchase up to an
additional $25,000 principal amount of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes to cover over-allotments, if any (the “‘Over-
allotment Option™). Holders of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes may exchange their notes for the Company’s common
stock prior to the close of business on the second business day immediately preceding the stated maturity date at any
time beginning on July 15, 2011 and also under the following circumstances: 1) during any calendar quarter
beginning after December 31, 2006 (and only during such calendar quarter), if, and only if, the closing sale price per
share of the Company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days ending on the last trading day of the preceding
calendar quarter is more than 130% of the exchange price per share of the Company’s common stock in effect on the
applicable trading day; 2) during the five consecutive trading-day period following any five consecutive trading-day
period in which the trading price of the notes was less than 98% of the product of the closing sale price per share of
the Company’s common stock multiplied by the applicable exchange rate; 3) if those notes have been called for
redemption, at any time prior to the close of business on the second business day prior to the redemption date;
4} upon the occurrence of distributions of certain rights to purchase the Company’s common stock or certain other
assets; or 5) if the Company’s common stock ceases to be listed on a U.S. national or regional securities exchange
and is not quoted on the over-the-counter market as reported by Pink Sheets LLC or any similar organization, in
each case, for 30 consecutive trading days. The 2011 Exchangeable Notes have an initial exchange rate of
19.6356 shares of the Company’s common stock per $1,000 principal amount, representing an exchange price of
approximately $50.93 per common share and an exchange premium of approximately 20% based on the last
reported sale price of $42.44 per share of the Company’s common stock on September 19, 2006. If a change of
control transaction described in the indenture relating to the 2011 Exchangeable Notes occurs and a holder elects to
exchange notes in connection with any such transaction, holders of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes will be entitled to
a make-whole amount in the form of an increase in the exchange rate. The exchange rate may also be adjusted under
certain other circumstances, including the payment of cash dividends in excess of the Company’s current regular
quarterly dividend on its common stock of $0.70 per share. The 2011 Exchangeable Notes will be exchangeable for
cash up to their principal amount and shares of the Company’s common stock for the remainder of the exchange
value in excess of the principal amount. The 2011 Exchangeable notes mature on September 15, 2011, unless
previously redeemed or repurchased by the Company or exchanged in accordance with their terms prior to such
date. Inferest is paid semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and September 15 of each year, beginning March 15,
2007. The 2011 Exchangeable Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. On October 3,
2006, the initial purchasers of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes exercised their Over-Allotment Option with respect to
$25,000 in principal amount of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes. With the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, the
aggregate principal amount of 2011 Exchangeable Notes issued and outstanding is $200,000. In connection with the
Operating Partnership’s offering of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes, the Operating Partnership entered into capped
call transactions (the “capped call transactions”) with affiliates of two of the initial purchasers of the 2011
Ekchangeable Notes (the “option counterparties”) in order to increase the effective exchange price of the 2011
Exchangeable Notes to $59.42 per share of the Company’s common stock, which represents an exchange premium
of approximately 40% based on the last reported sale price of $42.44 per share of the Company’s common stock on
September 19, 2006. The aggregate cost of the capped call transactions was approximately $6,835. The capped call
transactions are expecled to reduce the potential dilution with respect to the Company’s common stock upon
exchange of the 2011 Exchangeable Notes to the extent the then market value per share of the Company’s common
stock does not exceed the cap price of the capped call transaction during the observation period relating to an
exchange. The cost of the capped call will be accounted for as a hedge and included in shareholders’ equity because
the derivative is indexed to the Company’s own stock and meets the scope exception in FAS 133,
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On December 1, 2006, the Company paid off and retired its 7.0% 2006 Unsecured Notes in the amount of
$150,000.

All of the Company’s senior unsecured debt (except for the 2011 Exchangeable Notes) contains certain
covenants, including limitations on incurrence of debt and debt service coverage.

Unsecured Lines of Credit -

The Company has maintained an unsecured revolving credit facility since 1997 (the “Unsecured Line of
Credit”). On August 23, 2005, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, amended and restated the
Unsecured Line of Credit {the “Unsecured Line of Credit I"). The Unsecured Line of Credit I matures on
September 28, 2008, has a borrowing capacity of $500,000, with the right, subject to certain conditions, to increase
the borrowing capacity up to $600,000 and bears interest at a floating rate of LIBOR plus .625%, or the Prime Rate,
at the Company’s election. The net unamortized deferred financing fees related to the Unsecured Lire of Credit 1
and any additional deferred financing fees incurred related to the Unsecured Line of Credit I are being amortized
over the life of the Unsecured Line of Credit I in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 98-14,
“Debtor’s Accounting for Changes in Line-of-Credit or Revolving-Debt Arrangements”, except for $51, which
represents the write off of deferred financing costs and is incleded in the gain from early retirement of debt. The
Unsecured Line of Credit I contains certain financial covenants relating to debt service coverage, market value net
worth, dividend payout ratio and total funded indebtedness.

In December 20035, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, entered into a non-revolving unsecured
line of credit (the “Unsecured Line of Credit I”"; together with the Unsecured Line of Credit I, the “Unsecured Lines
of Credit™). The Unsecured Line of Credit IT had a borrowing capacity of $125,000 and matured on March 135, 2006.
The Unsecured Line of Credit II provided for interest only payments at LIBOR plus .625% or at Prime, at the
Company's election. The Company, through the Operating Partnership, paid off and retired the Unsecured Line of
Credit II in January 2006.

The following is a schedule of the stated maturities and scheduled principal payments of the mortgage loans,
senior unsecured debt and unsecured line of credit, exclusive of premiums and discounts, for the next five years
ending December 31, 2007 and thereafter:

—Amount
2L $ 152,884
2008 . e e i e 210,111
2009 ... 133,001
2 LY 15,545
L4 407,360
Thereafter ... ..ottt i s e 928,176
Total . . e e i e, $1,847,077
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Fair Value

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the fair value of the Company’s mortgage loans payable, senior unsecured
debt and Unsecured Line of Credit 1 were as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Mortgage Loans Payable .............. $ 77926 $ 78730 % 57309 § 58,864
Senior Unsecured Debt. . .............. 1,549,732 1,636,318 1,298,893 1,415,268
Unsecured Lines of Credit I............ 207,000 207,000 457,500 457,500
TOEL .« v v e e e e e 51,834,658 $1,922,048 51,813,702  $1,931,632

The fair value of the senior unsecured debt was determined by quoted market prices, if available. The fair
values of the Company’s senior unsecured debt not valued by quoted market prices and mortgage loans payable
were determined by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar lcans would be made
to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. The fair value of the Unsecured Lines
of Credit was equal to their carrying value due to the variable interest rate nature of the loans,

Other Camprehensiire Income

In conjunction with the prior issuances of senior unsecured debt, the Company entered into interest rate
protection agreements to fix the interest rate on anticipated offerings of senior unsecured debt (the “Interest Rate
Protection Agreements™). In the next [2 months, the Company will amortize approximately $1,182 of the Interest
Rate Protection Agreements into net income as a decrease to interest expense.

In October 2005, the Company, through an entity wholly-owned by the Operating Partnership, entered into an
interest rate protection agreement which hedged the change in value of a build to suit development project the
Company was constructing. This interest rate protection agreement had a notional value of $50,000, was based on
the three Month LIBOR rate, had a strike rate of 4.8675%, had an effective date of December 30, 2005 and a
termination date of December 30, 2010. Per Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” fair value and cash flow hedge accounting for hedges of non-financial assets
and liabilities is limited to hedges of the risk of changes in the market price of the entire hedged item because
changes in the price of an ingredient or component of a non-financial item generally do not have a predictable,
separately measurable effect on the price of the item. Since the interest rate protection agreement is hedging a
component of the change in value of the build to suit development, the interest rate protection agreement does not
qualify for hedge accounting and the change in value of the interest rate protection agreement will be recognized
immediately in net income as opposed to other comprehensive income. On January 5, 2006, the Company, settled
the interest rate protection agreement for a payment of $186.

In December 2003, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, entered into three interest rate protection
agreements which fixed the interest rate on a forecasted offering of unsecured debt which it designated as cash flow
hedges. Two of the interest rate protection agreements each had a notional vatue of $48,700 and were effective from
December 30, 2005 through December 30, 2015. The interest rate protection agreements fixed the LIBOR rate at
5.066% and 5.067%. The third interest rate protection agreement had a notional value of $48,700, was effective
from January 19, 2006 through January 19, 2016, and fixed the LIBOR rate at 4.992%. The Company settled the
three interest rate protection agreements on January 9, 2006 for a payment of $1,729, which is included in other
comprehensive income. The settlement amount of the interest rate protection agreements will be amortized over the
life of the 2016 Notes as an adjustment to interest expense.

In April 2006, the Company, through the Operating Partnership, entered into four interest rate protection
agreements which fixed the interest rate on forecasted offerings of unsecured debt which it designated as cash flow
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hedges. Two of the interest rate protection agreements each have a notional value of $72,900 and are effective from
November 28, 2006 through November 28, 2016. The interest rate protection agreements fixed the LIBOR rate at
5.537%. The third and fourth interest rate protection agreements each have a notional value of $74,750, are effective
from May 10, 2007 through May 10, 2012, and fixed the LIBOR rate at 5.420% (the 2006 Interest Rate Protection
Agreements”). In September 2006, the 2006 Interest Rate Protection Agreements failed to qualify for hedge
accounting, since the actual debt issuance date was not within the range of dates the Company disclosed in its hedge
designation. The Company settled the 2006 Interest Rate Protection Agreements and paid the counterparties
$2,942. This amount is recognized in the mark-to-market/gain (loss) on settlement of interest rate protection
agreements caption on the consolidated statements of operations.

6. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

On June 6, 1997, the Company issued 2,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of the
Company’s 8%%, $0.01 par value, Series C Cumulative Preferred Stock (the “Series C Preferred Stock™), at an
initial offering price of $25 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series C Preferred Stock, represented by the
Depositary Shares, are cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable quarterly in arrears. With respect
to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the Series C Preferred Stock
ranks senior to payments on the Company’s Common Stock and pari passu with the Company’s Series F Preferred
Stock (hereinafter defined), Series G Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined), Series J Preferred Stock (hereinafter
defined) and Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafier defined). The Series C Preferred Stock is not redeemable prior to
June 6, 2007. On or after June 6, 2007, the Series C Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at the option of the
Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equivalent to $25 per Depositary Share, or $50,000 in the
aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. The Series C Preferred Stock has no stated
maturity and is not convertible into any other securities of the Company.

On February 4, 1998, the Company issued 5,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share
of the Company’s 7.95%, $0.01 par value, Series D Cumulative Preferred Stock (the *“Series D Preferred Stock™), at
an initial offering price of $25 per Depositary Share. On or after February 4, 2003, the Series D Preferred Stock
became redeemable for cash at the opticn of the Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equivalent to
$25 per Depositary Share, or $125,000 in the aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid to the redemption date.
The Company redeemed the Series D Preferred Stock on June 7, 2004 at a redemption price of $25.00 per
Depositary Share, and paid a prorated second quarter dividend of $0.36990 per Depositary Share, totaling
approximately $1,850. In accordance with EITF D-42, due to the redemption of the Series D Preferred Stock,
the initial offering costs associated with the issuance of the Series D Preferred Stock of $4,467 were reflected as a
deduction from net income to arrive at net income available to common stockholders in determining earnings per
share for the year ended December 31, 2004.

On March 18, 1998, the Company issued 3,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of
the Company’s 7.90%, $0.01 par value, Series E Cumuiative Preferred Stock (the “Series E Preferred Stock™), at an
initial offering price of $25 per Depositary Share. On or after March 18, 2003, the Series E Preferred Stock became
redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equivalent to $25 per
Depositary Share, or $75,000 in the aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. The
Company redeemed the Series E Preferred Stock on June 7, 2004 at a redemption price of $25.00 per Depositary
Share, and paid a prorated second quarter dividend of $0.36757 per Depositary Share, totaling approximately
$1,103. In accordance with EITF D-42, due to the redemption of the Series E Preferred Stock, the initial offering
costs associated with the issuance of the Series E Preferred Stock of $2,892 were reflected as a deduction from net
income to arrive at net income available to common stockholders in determining earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2004.
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On May 27, 2004, the Company issued 50,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of the
Company’s 6.236%, $0.01 par value, Series F Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Series F
Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $1,000.00 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series F Preferred
Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable semi-annually in arrears for the period from
the date of original issuance through March 31, 2009 (the “Series F Initial Fixed Rate Period™), commencing on
September 30, 2004, at a rate of 6.236% per annum of the liquidation preference (the “Series F Initial Distribution
Rate™) {equivalent to $62.36 per Depositary Share). On or after March 31, 2009, the Series F Initial Distribution
Rate is subject to reset, at the Company’s option, subject to certain conditions and parameters, at fixed or floating
rates and pericds. Fixed rates and periods will be determined through a remarketing procedure. Floating rates during
floating rate periods will equal 2.375% (the initial credit spread), plus the greater of (i) the 3-month LIBOR Rate,
(i1) the 10-year Treasury CMT Rate (as defined in the Articles Supplementary), and (iii) the 30-year Treasury CMT
Rate (the adjustable rate)(as defined in the Articles Supplementary), reset quarterly. Dividends on the Series F
Preferred Stock are payable semi-annually in arrears for fixed rate periods subsequent to the Series F Initial Fixed
Rate Period and quarterly in arrears for floating rate periods. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts
upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the Series F Preferred Stock ranks senior to payments on the
Company’s Common Stock and pari passu with the Company’s Series C Preferred Stock, Series G Preferred
Stock (hereinafter defined), Series J Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined) and Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafter
defined). On or after March 31, 2009, subject to any conditions on redemption applicable in any fixed rate period
subsequent to the Series F Initial Fixed Rate Period, the Series F Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at the option
of the Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equivalent to $1,000.00 per Depositary Share, or $50,000
in the aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid 1o the redemption date. The Series F Preferred Stock has no
stated maturity and is not convertible into any other securities of the Company.

On May 27, 2004, the Company issued 25,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of the
Company’s 7.236%, $0.01 par value, Series G Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Series G

Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $1,000.00 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series G-

Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable semi-annually in arrears for the
period from the date of original issuance of the Series G Preferred Stock through March 31, 2014 (the “Series G
Initial Fixed Rate Period™), commencing on September 30, 2004, at a rate of 7.236% per annum of the liquidation
preference (the “Series G Initiai Distribution Rate™) (equivalent to $72.36 per Depositary Share). On or after
March 31, 2014, the Series G Initial Distribution Rate is subject to reset, at the Company’s option, subject to certain
conditions and parameters, at fixed or floating rates and periods. Fixed rates and periods will be determined through
a remarketing procedure. Floating rates during floating rate periods will equal 2.500% (the initial credit spread),
plus the greater of (i) the 3-month LIBOR Rate, (ii) the 10-year Treasury CMT Rate (as defined in the
Articles Supplementary), and (iii) the 30-year Treasury CMT Rate (the adjustable rate} (as defined in the
Articles Supplementary), reset quarterly, Dividends on the Series G Preferred Stock are payable semi-annuaily
in arrears for fixed rate periods subsequent to the Series G Initial Fixed Rate Period and quarterly in arrears for
floating rate periocds. With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, the Series G Preferred Stock ranks senior to payments on the Company’s Common Stock and pari passu
with the Company’s Series C Preferred Stock, Series F Preferred Stock, Series J Preferred Stock (hereinafter
defined) and Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafter defined). On or after March 31, 2014, subject to any conditions
on redemption applicable in any fixed rate period subsequent to the Series G Initial Fixed Rate Period, the Series G
Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption price
equivalent to $1,000.00 per Depositary Share, or $25,000 in the aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid to the
redemption date. The Series G Preferred Stock has no stated maturity and is not convertible into any other securities
of the Company.

On June 2, 2004, the Company issued 500 shares of 2.965%, $0.01 par value, Series H Flexible Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Series H Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $250,000.00 per share.
On or after July 2, 2004, the Series H Preferred Stock became redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, in
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whole but not in part, at a redemption price equivalent, initially, to $242,875.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid
dividends. The Company redeemed the Seriés H Preferred Stock on July 2, 2004 and paid a prorated second and
third quarter dividend of $629.555 per share, totaling approximately $315. In accordance with EITF D-42, due to
the redemption of the Series H Preferred Stock, the initial offering costs associated with the issuance of the Series H
Preferred Stock of $600 is reflected as a deduction from net income to arrive at net income available to commeon
stockholders in determining earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2004,

On November 8, 2005 and November 18, 2005, the Company issued 600 and 150 Shares, respectively, of
$.01 par value, Series [ Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, (the “Series I Preferred Stock™), in a
private placement at an initial offering price of $250,000 per share for an aggregate initial offering price of
$187,500. The Company redeemed the Series I Preferred Stock on January 13, 2006 for $242,875.00 per share, and
paid a prorated first quarter dividend of $470.667 per share, totaling approximately $353. In accordance with EITF
D-42, due to the redemption of the Series I Preferred Stock, the difference between the redemption cost and the
carrying value of the Series I Preferred Stock of approximately $672 is reflected as a deduction from net income to
arrive at net income available to common stockholders in determining earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

On January 13, 2006, the Company issued 6,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/10,000th of a
share of the Company’s 7.25%, $.01 par value, Series J Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Series J
Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $25.00 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series J Preferred
Stock, represented by the Depositary Shares, are cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable
quarterly in arrears. However, during any period that both (i) the depositary shares are not listed on the NYSE or
AMEX, or quoted on NASDAQ, and (ii) the Company is not subject to the reporting requiremenis of the Exchange
Act, but the preferred shares are outstanding, the Company will increase the dividend on the preferred shares to a
rate of 8.25% of the liquidation preference per year. However, if at any time both (i) the depositary shares cease to be
listed on the NYSE or the AMEX, or quoted on NASDAQ, and (i) the Company ceases to be subject to the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act, but the preferred shares are outstanding, then the preferred shares will be
redeemable, in whole but not in part at the Company’s option, within 90 days of the date upon which the depositary
shares cease to be listed and the Company ceases to be subject to such reporting requirements, at a redemption price
equivalent to $25.00 per Depositary Share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. With
respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the Series J Preferred
Stock ranks senior to payments on the Company’s Common Stock and pari passu with the Company’s Series C
Preferred Stock, Series F Preferred Stock, Series G Preferred Stock and Series K Preferred Stock (hereinafier
defined). The Series J Preferred Stock is not redeemable prior to January 15, 2011. On or after January 15, 2011, the
Series J Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equivalent to $25.00 per Depositary Share, or $150,000 in the aggregate, plus dividends accrued and unpaid to
the redemption date. The Series J Preferred Stock has no stated maturity and is not convertible into any other
securities of the Company.

On August 21, 2006, the Company issued 2,000,000 Depositary Shares, each representing 1/10,000th of a
share of the Company’s 7.25%, $.01 par value, Series K Flexible Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the
“Series K Preferred Stock™), at an initial offering price of $25.00 per Depositary Share. Dividends on the Series K
Preferred Stock, represented by the Depositary Shares, are comulative from the date of initial issuance and are
payable quarterly in arrears, With respect to the payment of dividends and amounts upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, the Series K Preferred Stock ranks senior to payments on the Company’s Common Stock and pari passu
with the Company's Series C Preferred Stock, Series F Preferred Stock, Series G Preferred Stock and Series J
Preferred Stock. The Series K Preferred Stock is not redeemable prior to August 15, 2011. On or after August 15,
2011, the Series K Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price equivalent to $25.00 per Depositary Share, or $50,000 in the aggregate, plus dividends accrued
and unpaid to the redemption date. The Series K Preferred Stock has no stated maturity and is not convertible into
any other securities of the Company.
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The following table summarizes certain information regarding the Company’s preferred stock:

Stated Value at
December 31, December 31,
5

2006
Series CPreferred Stock . ... oot i e e $ 50,000 $ 50,000
Series FPreferred Stock. . ... ... vt it e e 50,000 50,000
Series G Preferred Stock . ... it e e 25,000 25,000
Series I Preferred Stock .. ......... ... ... .. ..., e —_ 187,500
Series JPreferred Stock . .. .. oo v i i e e 150,000 —
Series K Preferred Stock ........ 0o . 50,000 —
U] | U $325,000 $312,500

Shares of Common Stock

On September 16, 2004, the Company and the Operating Partnership entered into a sales agreement to sell up
to 3,900,000 shares of the Company’s common stock from time to time with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., as sales agent,
in a controlled equity offering program. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company issued
1,333,600 shares of common stock under the controlled equity offering program and received net proceeds of
$48,820. ,

On December 9, iOOS, the Combany issued 1,250,000 shares of $0.01 par value common stock (the
“December 2005 Equity Offering™). The price per share was $39.45 resulting in gross offering proceeds of
$49,313. Proceeds to the Company, net of underwriters’ discount and total expenses, were approximately $48,775.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 213,773, 81,644, and 248,098 respectively, shares of
common stock were converted from an equivalent number of limited partnership interests in the Operating
Partnership (“Units™). :
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The following table is a roll-forward of the Company’s shares of common stock outstanding, including

unvested restricted shares of common stock for the three years ended December 31, 2006:
5

Shares of
Common Stock
_ Ouistanding
Balance at December 31, 2003 . . ........ ... i e i 39,850,370
Issuance of Common Stock and Stock Option Exercises. . .. ............oo0. .. 2,621,082
Issuance of Restricted Stock Shares. . .. ... .ottt i i e 216,617
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock Shares .. .......... ... ....... (102,076}
Conversion of Operating Partnership Units . ........... .. ... .. coumveon.. 248,098
Balance at December 31,2004 .. ... ... ... . ... . .. e e, 42,834,091
Issuance of Common Stock and Stock Option Exercises. ... ......... e 1,480,942
Issuance of Restricted Stock Shares. . ..o ... oottt ittt e v e e 200,042
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock Shares . ........... ... ... ... .., (152,009)
Conversion of Operating Partnership Units . ........... e 81,644
Balance at December 31,2005 . . ... ... .. ... .. .. ... 44,444 710 -
Stock Option EXercises. . ... ... .. e 125,780
Issuance of Restricted Stock Shares. . . .. ... .. . . it 319,374
Repurchase and Retirement of Restricted Stock Shares ..................... . (93,007)
Conversion of Operating Partnership Units ........... ... ... ... ... .... 213,773
Balance at December 31,2006 . .. .. ... ... .. e 45,010,630

Non-Qualified Employee Stock Options

For the year ended December 31, 2004, certain employees of the Company exercised 1,663,652 non-qualified
employee stock options. Net proceeds to the Company were approximately $37,301.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, certain employees of the Company exercised 248,881 non-qualified
employee stock options. Net proceeds to the Company were approximately $6,698.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, certain employees of the Company exercised 125,780 non-qualified
employee stock options. Net proceeds to the Company were approximately $3,742.

Restricted Stock

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 the Company awarded 319,374, 200,042, and
216,617 restricted shares of common stock, respectively, to certain employees and certain directors of the Company.
See Note 13 for further disclosure on the Company’s stock based compensation,

Shareholders’ Rights Plan

On September 4, 1997, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a dividend distribution of one
Preferred Share Purchase Right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of Common Stock. The dividend distribution
was made on October 20, 1997 to stockholders of record as of the close of business on October 19, 1997, In addition,
a Right will attach to each share of Common Stock issued in the future. Each Right entitles the registered holder to
purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of a share of Junior Participating Preferred Stock (the “Junior
Preferred Stock™), at a price of $125 per one one-hundredth of a share (the “Purchase Price™), subject to adjustment.
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The Rights become exercisable only if a person or group of affiliated or associated persons (an “Acquiring Person’)
acquires, or obtains the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of Common Stock or other voting securities (“Voting
Stock™) that have 15% or more of the voting power of the outstanding shares of Voting Stock, or if an Acquiring
Person commences or makes an announcement of an intention to commence a tender offer or exchange offer to
acquire beneficial ownership of Voting Stock that have 15% or more of the voting power of the outstanding shares of
Voting Stock. The Rights will expire on October 19, 2007, unless redeemed earlier by the Company at $0.001 per
Right, or exchanged by the Company at an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock per Right.

In the event that a person becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right, other than the Acquiring
Person, is entitled to receive, upon exercise, (1) Common Stock having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price
of the Right or (2) common stock of the acquiring company having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price of
the Right.

The Junior Preferred Stock ranks junior to all other series of the Company’s preferred stock with respect to
payment of dividends and as to distributions of assets in liquidation. Each share of Junior Preferred Stock has a
quarterly dividend rate per share equal to the greater of $1.00 or 100 times the per share amount of any dividend
(other than a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock or a subdivision of the Common Stock) declared on the
Common Stock, subject to certain adjustments, In the event of liquidation, the holder of the Junior Preferred Stock is
entitled to receive a preferred liquidation payment per share of $1.00 (plus accrued and unpaid dividends) or, if
greater, an amount equal to 100 times the payment to be made per share of Common Stock, subject to certain
adjustments.

Dividends/Distributions
The foltowing table summarizes dividends/distributions declared for the past three years:
Year Ended 2006 Year Ended 2005 Year Ended 2004
Dividend/ Dividend/ Dividend/
Distribution Total Distribution Total Distribution Total
per Share/ Dividend/ per Share/ Dividend/ per Share/ Dividend/
Unit Distribution Unit Distribution Unit Distribution

Common Stock/Operating
Partnership Units ...... $ 28100 $144720 $ 27850 $139,168 $ 27500 $132,585

Series C Preferred Stock. .. $§ 2156240 $ 4313 § 2156240 $ 4,313 § 2156240 § 4,313
Series D Preferred Stock. .. § — 3 — % — % — $ 86,6780 $ 4,334
Series E Preferred Stock ... § — 3 — % — — 3 86.1320 $ 2,585
Series F Preferred Stock ... $ 6,236.0000 §$ 3,118 $6,236.0000 $ 3,118 $3,724.2800 . $ 1,861
Series G Preferred Stock. .. $ 7,23-6.0000 $ 1,809 $7.2360000 $ 1,809 $4,321.5000 $ 1,080
Series H Preferred Stock. .. $ — 3 — § — § — $ 6295550 $ 315
Series I Preferred Stock ... $ 470.6667 3 353 $1,9302431 $ 1,448 § — 3 —_
Series J Preferred Stock ... $17,521.0000 $ 10,512 § — 3 — § — 3 —
Series K Preferred Stock. .. $ 6,595.6000 $ 17319 § — 3 — 3 — $ —

7. Acquisition and Development of Real Estate

In 2004, the Company acquired 79 industrial properties comprising, in the aggregate, approximately
9.2 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA and several land parcels for a total purchase price of approximately
$402,388, excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of the properties. The Company also
substantially completed development of 11 properties comprising approximately 2.3 million square feet (unau-
dited) of GLA at a cost of approximately $80,241. The Company reclassed the costs of the substantially completed
developments from construction in progress to building, tenant improvements and leasing commissions.
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In 2005, the Company acquired 161 industrial properties comprising, in the aggregate, approximately
20.1 million square feet (unaudited) of GL.A and several land parcels. The gross purchase price for 160 industrial
properties and several land parcels totaled approximately $752,674, (approximately $14,698 of which was made
through the issuance of 366,472 Units relating to five properties) excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the
acquisition of the properties. Additionally, one industrial property was acquired through foreclosure due to a default
on a morigage loan receivable, The Company also substantially completed development of five properties
comprising approximately 1.8 million square feet {(unaudited) of GLA at a cost of approximately $97,466. The
Company reclassed the costs of the substantially completed developments from construction in progress to
building, tenant improvements and leasing commissions.

In 2006, the Company acquired 91 industrial propertics comprising, in the aggregate, approximately
10.5 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA and several land parcels for a total purchase price of approximately
$610,745 (approximately $1,288 of which was made through the issuance of 31,473 Units relating to two
properties) excluding costs incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of the properties. The Company also
substantially completed development of 15 properties comprising approximately 5.0 million square feet (unau-
dited) of GLA ata cost of approximately $188,592. The Company reclassed the costs of the substantially completed
developments from construction in progress to building, tenant improvements and leasing commissions.

Intangible Assets Subject To Amortization in the Period of Acquisition

The fair value of in-place leases, above market leases, tenant relationships and below market leases recorded as
a result of the above acquisitions was $36,270, $3,831, $20,336, and $(13,148), respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The weighted average life in months of in-place leases, above market leases, tenant
relationships and below market leases recorded as a result of 2006 acquisitions was 72, 71, 105, and 109 months,
respectively. :

The fair value of in-place leases, above market leases, and below market leases recorded as a result of the above
acquisitions was $59,901, $6,137, and $(23,600), respectively for the year ended December 31, 20035, The weighted
average life in months of in-place leases, above market leases, and below market leases recorded as a result of 2005
acquisitions was 137, 75 and 115 months, respectively.

8. Sale of Real Estate, Real Estate Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

In 2004, the Company sold 97 industrial properties comprising approximately 7.4 million square feet
(unaudited) of GLA and several land parcels. Gross proceeds from the sales of the 97 industrial properties and
several land parcels were approximately $424,878. The gain on sale of real estate was approximately $103,000, of
which $88,245 is shown in discontinued operations. Ninety-two of the 97 sold industrial properties meet the criteria
established by FAS 144 to be included in discontinued operations. Therefore, in accordance with FAS 144, the
results of operations and gain on sale of real estate, net of income taxes for the 92 sold industrial properties that meet
the criteria established by FAS 144 are included in discontinued operations. The results of operations and gain on
sale of real estate, net of income taxes for the five industrial properties and several land parcels that do not meet the
criteria established by FAS 144 are included in continuing operations.

In 2005, the Company sold 96 industrial properties comprising approximately 12.8 million square feet
(unaudited) of GLA and several land parcels. Of the 96 industrial properties sold, eight industrial property sales
were to the March 2005 Joint Venture. Gross proceeds from the sales of the 96 industrial properties and several land
parcels were approximately $656,094. The gain on sale of real estate was approximately $161,689, of which
$132,139 is shown in discontinued operations. Eighty-six of the 96 sold industrial properties meet the criteria
established by FAS 144 to be included in discontinued operations. Therefore, in accordance with FAS 144, the
results of operations and gain on sale of real estate for the 86 sold industrial properties that meet the criteria
established by FAS 144 are included in discontinued operations. The results of operations and gain on sale of real
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cstate for the ten industrial propertics and several land parcels that do not meet the criteria established by FAS 144
are included in continuing operations.

In 2006, the Company sold 125 industrial properties comprising approximately 17.1 million square feet
(unaudited) of GLA and several land parcels, totaling gross proceeds of $946,800. The gain on sale of real estate
was approximately $219,513, of which $213,442 is shown in discontinued operations. The 125 sold industrial
properties meet the criteria established by FAS 144 to be included in discontinued operations. Therefore, in
accordance with FAS 144, the results of operations and gain on sale of real estate, for the 125 sold industrial
properties are included in discontinued operations. The results of operations and gain on sale of real estate, for the
several land parcels that do not meet the criteria established by FAS 144 are included in continuing operations.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had 25 industrial properties comprising approximately 2.0 million square
feet (unaudited) of GLA held for sale. In accordance with FAS 144, the results of operations of the 25 industrial
properties held for sale at December 31, 2006 are included in discontinued operations. There can be no assurance
that such industrial properties held for sale will be sold,

The following table discloses certain information regarding the industrial properties included in discontinued
operations by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Total REVENUES. . . ... ..ttt it n e e $ 37449 % 66,731 § 75,i05
Property Expenses ... ........... N (11,145) (22,155) (25,441)
Interest Expense. . ... ... .. i e —_ (373) (609)
Depreciation and Amortization . ... ..................... (14,389) (22,281} (20,607)
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Operations . ........ (2,629) {3,054) (2,346)
Gainon Saleof Real Estate . . ............0. i iinan.. 213,442 132,139 88,245
Provision for Income Taxes Allocable to Gain on Sale of Real

BSlale, . v vttt s it ettt e e e e {47,511) (20,529) (8,659
Income from Discontinued Operations . .................. $175,217  $130.478 $105,688

In conjunction with certain property sales, the Company provided seller financing. At December 31, 2006 and
2005, the Company had mortgage notes receivable and accrued interest outstanding of approximately $0 and
$24,118, respectively, which is included as a component of prepaid expenses and other assets.

9. Supplemental Information to Statements of Cash Flows

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Year Ended Year Eonded Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
006

2005 2004

Interest paid, net of capitalized interest. .................... $114,709 '$107,573 $ 98,910
Interest capitalized . . .. ..., it iin e $ 5,159 $ 3,271 $ 1304
Income Taxes Paid. . ... ... vttt et eannan $ 36374 $ 36,080 $ 7,936
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing

activities: -

Distribution payable on common stock/units .. ............. $ 36,613 $ 35,752 $ 34,255

Distribution payable on preferred stock . . ................. $ 5935 $ 3,757 $ 1,232
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Exchange of units for common shares: :
| Minority interest. . ... ... ... ..o $ (5144)  $ (1,951)  $ (6,195)
| Commonstock........... .. ... . . i, 2 1 3
Additional paid-in-capital . ........... ... ... .. . . 5,142 1,950 6,192
$ — $ — b —
In conjunction with property and land acquisiticns, the following
assets and liabilities were assumed:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . .. ... ... ... ... ... $ (1.928) $ 4,735 $ (3,231
Issuance of Operating Partnership Units ... ............... $ (1,288) $(14,698) $ —
e $(33,982)  $(11,545)  $(18244)
Foreclosed property acquisition and write-off of a Mortgage loan
receivable. . .. .. e 3 — $ 3870 $ —
Write-off of fully depreciated assets .. ................... $ 30,596 $ 67,814 $ 26,041
In conjunction with certain property sales, the Company provided
seller financing or assigned a mortgage loan payable:
Notesreceivable. . ... ..o it i i i ine i $ 11,200 $ 76,744 $ 92,146
Mortgage Note Payable . ............................. $ — $ 13,242 $ —

10. Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

The computation of basic and diluted EPS is presented below.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006

2005 2004
Numerator:
{Loss) Income from Continuing Operations .. .............. 5 @377y 3 (42424) § 9,596
Gain on Sale of Real Estate, Net of Minority Interest and
Income Tax . .. .. ... i i e i e 3,438 16,221 0,822
Less: Preferred Stock Dividends ... ..................... (21,424) - (10,688) (14,488)
Less: Redemption of Preferred Stock. .. .................. (672) — {7,959)

Loss from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Stockholders, Net of Minority Interest — For Basic and

Diluted EPS . ... .. e (62,435) (36,891) (3,029)
Discontinued Operations, Net of Minority Interest and Income

. 152,421 113,307 91,188
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders — For Basic

and Diluted EPS © ... .. ... . e e $ 89986 $ 76416 $§ 88,159
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Denominator:
Weighted Average Shares —Basic. ...................... 44.011,503 42,431,109 40,557,053
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
2011 Exchangeable Notes ... .......... .. ... oo nn, — —_ —
Employee and Director Common Stock Options. . ........... — — —
Employee and Director Shares of Restricted Stock........... — — —
Weighted Average Shares —Diluted ... ... ... ... ... .... 44.011,503 42,431,109 40,557,053
Basic EPS:
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Stockholders, Net of Minority Interest . ... .............. 5 (1.42) § (0.87) % (0.07)
Discontinued Operations, Net of Minority Interest and Income
5 EE R TR $ 346 $ 267 § 2.25
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders. ... ......... $ 204§ 1.80 § 2.17
Diluted EPS:
Loss from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Stockholders, Net of Minority Interest . .. .. ............. % (142) § (0.87) $ (0.07)
Discontinued Operations, Net of Minority Interest and Income
1 O $ 346 $ 267 % 2.25
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders. ............ $ 204 $ 1.80 % 2.17

2004 were antidilutive.

price did not exceed the strike price of the conversion feature (see Note 5).
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Weighted average shares — diluted are the same as weighted average shares — basic for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 as the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock was excluded because
its inclusion would have been anti-dilutive to the loss from continuing operations available to common stock-
holders, net of minority interest. The dilutive stock options and restricted stock excluded from the computation are
116,155 and 93,643, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2006, 141,625 and 82,888, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 2005 and 227,423 and 103,551, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Unvested restricted siock of 778,535, 700,023, and 823,836 were outstanding as of December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 respectively. Unvested restricted stock aggregating 109,517, 182,651, and 211,924 were antidilutive at
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and accordingly, were excluded from dilution computations.

Additionally, options to purchase common stock of 381,976, 546,723, and 823,421 were outstanding as of
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. None of the options outstanding at December 31, 2006, 2005 and

The 2011 Exchangeable Notes issued during 2006, which are convertible into comanon shares of the Company
at a price of $50.93, were not included in the computation of diluted EPS for 2006 as the Company’s average stock
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11. Income Taxes

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to common shareholders are classified as ordinary income, capital
gain, return of capital or qualified dividends. For the three years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the
distributions per common share were classified as follows:

As a Percentage As a Percentage As a Percentage

2006 of Distributions 2005 of Distributions 2004 of Distributions

Ordinary income. .. ..... $0.2613 9.30% $0.3278 11.77%  $0.3622 13.17%

Short-term c"apital gains. . . — — — — 0.0423 1.54%

Long-term capital gains. .. 03364 - 1197%  0.4289 15.40%  0.8654 31.47%

Unrecaptured Section 1250

gaim ............... 0.2408 8357%  0.2158 - 1.75% 02503 9.10%

Return of capital . . ... ... 1.3918 49.53%  1.6276 58.44% 1.2298 44.72%
Qualified Dividends .. ... 0.5797 20.63% 0.1849 6.64% — —

$ 2.810 100.00% $ 2.785 100.00% $2.7500 100.00%

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to preferred sharcholders are classified as ordinary income, capital
gain, or qualified dividends. For the three years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the preferred
distributions per depositary share were classified as follows:

Series C Cumulative As a Percentage As a Percentage As a Percentage
Preferred Stock 2006 of Distributions 2005 of Distributions 2004 of Distributions
Ordinary income . ....... $0.3972 18.42% $0.5992 27.79% $0.9249 23.81%
Short-term capital gains. . . — — — — 0.1080 2.78%
Long-term capital gains... 0.5115 23.72%  (.8023 3721% 22119 56.94%
Unrecaptured Section 1250

gain . .............. 0.3661 1698%  0.4041 - 18.74%  0.6398 16.47%
Qualified Dividends ..... 0.8814 40.88%  0.3506 16.26% — —

$2.1562 100.00%  $2.1562 100.00%  $3.8846 100.00%

As a Percentage

Series J Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock 2006 of Distributions
Ordinary income . ... ... ... ittt et $0.3227 18.42%
Long-term capital gaiNS . .... ... ...t ernniiiaiiea. 0.4156 23.72%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .. ......... .00t virennanevenn., (.2975 16.98%
Qualified Dividends ... ... ... .. .. i e e 0.7163 40.88%
$1.7521 100.00%

As a Percentage

Series K Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock . 2006 of Distributions
Ordinary inCome .. ...... . it it e i e et e $0.1215 18.42%
Long-term capital aiNS . ...........cuiuiirinernnnrrennnenn 0.1564 23.72%
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain . .......... . i ninnnnn.. 0.1120 16.98%
Qualified Dividends .. .. ... ... i e 0.2696 40.88%
$0.6595 100.00%
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The components of income tax (expense) benefit for the Company’s taxable REIT subsidiary (the “TRS") for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are comprised of the following:

2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal .. ... ... i i i e it c e $(39,531) $(19,265) $(8,074)
State . ... e e e e (7,734) (4,519)  (1,654)
Deferred:
Federal ........ ... .. it 3,548 4,299 1,070
o (O 695 1,009 219

$(43,022) $(18476) $(8439)

In addition to income tax expense/benefit recognized by the TRS, $317 and $1,956 of state income taxes was
recognized by the Company and is included in income tax expense (benefit) on the consolidated statement of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of the temporary differences between the book and tax basis of
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) of the TRS include the following as of December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004:
2006 2005 2004

Bad debtexpense .. .. ... vt ninr e, $ 119 % 118 § —
Investment in partnerships . . . ....... ... ... . ... .. . ... 2,519 648 —
Fixed assets .. ... oo 7,133 4,363 2,012
Prepaid rent .. ..., ... .. .. e e 556 461 323
Capitalized general and administrative expense under 263A ........ 2,408 2,696 818
Deferred losses/gains. . ... ... . i e e 968 878 334
Mark-to-Market of interest rate protection agreements ............ — 6 —
Capitalized interest under 263A. .. . ... .. .. ... . il 191 184 —
Accrued contingency 10SS .. ... ... 297 — —

Total deferred lax assets. .. ... vt irr it e i in i en s 514,191  $9,354 $3,487
Straight-line rent . . .. ... ... ... e (1,483) (923) (430)
Build tosuitdevelopment ... .......... ... e {100) (66) —

Total deferred tax liabilities . . ... ... ... ... .ot $(1,583) § (989) § (430)

Total net deferred taX ASSEL . . oot vt v ittt e et e anseee $12,608 $8,365 33,057

The TRS does not have any net operating loss carryforwards or tax credit carryforwards.
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The TRS’s components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as
follows: :

2006 2005 2004

Tax expense associated with income from operations on sold

properties which is included in discontinued operations . . . . . .. $ (2,629) 3 (3,054) $(2,346)
Tax expense associated with gains and losses on the sale of real

estate which is included in discontinued operations ... ... ., .. (47,511  (20,529) (8,659
Tax expense associated with gains and losses on the sale of real

BSAE. o ... 2,119y (10871) (5371)
Incometax benefit. . ... ... ... ... ... ... L, 9,237 15,978 7,937

INCOME 1AX EXPENSE .« vt et e r s ie e ieee i aee s $(43,022) $(18,476) $(8,439)

The income tax benefit pertaining to income from continuing operations and gain on sale of real estate for the
TRS differs from the amounts computed by applying the applicabie federal statutory rate as follows:

1006 2005 2004
Tax benefit at Federal rate related to continuing operations, . . ....... $5,873  $2,785 §2,256
State tax benefit, net of Federal benefit . . ...................... 700 403 282
Meals and Entertainment . .. ... ... .. i e (24) as (16)
Prior year provision to return adjustments . .. ...... .. ... ..., 434 1,836 —_
Other .. e e e 85 52 44
Net Income tax benefit . ............. ... ... ... ... $7,118  $5,107 $2,566

12. Future Rental Revenues

The Company’s properties are leased to tenants under net and semi-net operating leases. Minimum lease
payments receivable, excluding tenant reimbursements of expenses, under non-cancelable operating leases in effect
as of December 31, 2006 are approximately as follows:

2007 . oo e e e e e e e e e e $ 280,654
2008 . . i e e e 236,882
2000 . e e e e e e 189,035
248 1 140,853
7.1 1 1 106,194
Thereafter .. ... ..ot iiiiiannn. e 460,231
17 $1,413,849

13. Stock Based Compensation

The Company maintains three stock incentive plans (the “Stock Incentive Plans™) which are administered by
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. There are approximately 10.0 million shares reserved
under the Stock Incentive Plans. Only officers, other employees of the Company, its Independent Directors and its
affiliates generally are eligible to participate in the Stock Incentive Plans.

The Stock Incentive Plans authorize (i) the grant of stock options that qualify as incentive stock options under
Section 422 of the Code, (ii) the grant of stock options that do not so qualify, (iii) restricted stock awards,
(iv) performance share awards and (v) dividend equivalent rights, The exercise price of the stock options is
determined by the Compensation Committee. Special provisions apply to awards granted under the Stock Incentive
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Plans in the event of a change in control in the Company. As of December 31, 2006, stock options and restricted
stock covering 1.2 million shares were outstanding and 2.3 million shares were available under the Stock Incentive
Plans. At December 31, 2006 all outstanding stock options are vested. Stock option transactions are summarized as
follows: )

Weighted Aggregate
Average Exercise Price Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price per Share Value
Outstanding at December 31,2004 ... .. .. 823,421 $30.74 $18.25-$33.15 $8,230
Exercised . ......... ..., (248,881) $29.57 $18.25-$33.15 $2,588
Expired or Terminated. . ............. (27,817) $30.71 $25.13-333.13
QOutstanding at December 31,2005 ....... 546,723 $31.27 $22.75-%33.15 $3,954
Exercised ................ P (125,780) $30.24 $22.75-$33.15 $1,846
Expired or Terminated. . ... .......... (38,967) $30.88 $27.25-$33.13
Outstanding at December 31,2006 ....... 381,976 $31.65 $25.13-$33.15 $5,823
The following table summarizes currently outstanding and exercisable options as of December 31, 2006:
Numher Weighted Weighted
Outstanding Average Average
and Remaining Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Exercisable Contractual Life Price
$25.13-830.53. ... e e 117,576 398 29.90
$31.05-833.15. .. e e 264,400 345 32.42

In September 1994, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted a 4¢1(k)/Profit Sharing Plan.
Under the Company's 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan, all eligible employees may participate by making voluntary
contributions. The Company may make, but is not required to make, matching contributions. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company made matching contributions of approximately $451, $358, and
$305, respectively.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company awarded 319,374, 200,042 and
216,617 restricted stock awards to its employees and directors of the Company having a fair value at grant date of
$12,152,$8,381 and $8,379 respectively. Restricted stock awards granted to employees generally vest over a period
of three years and restricted stock awards granted to directors generally vest over a period of five to ten years. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company recognized $9,624, $8,845 and $6,869 in
restricted stock amortization related to restricted stock awards, of which $1,323, $1,357, and $1,140 respectively,
was capitalized in connection with development activities. At December 31, 2006, the Company has $18,541 in
unearned compensation related to unvested restricted stock awards. The weighted average period that the
unrecognized compensation is expected to be incurred is 1.84 years. The Company has not awarded options to
employees or directors of the Company during the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, and
therefore no stock-based employee compensation expense related to options is included in net income available to
commeon stockholders. :
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Restricted stock transactions for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:

Weighted
Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31,2004 .. ... ... ... ... it 823,836 $31.88
ISSUBH . ottt e e e e 200,042 $41.89
Vesled...................1 ............................... (279,266)  $32.78
CForfeited . . ... e e e s (44,589)  $34.37
Outstanding at December 31,2005 ... ... ... 0ttt 700,023 $34.23
Issued . ... o e e e e 319,374 $38.05
RT3 O (217,168)  $36.57
Forfeited . ... .. .. i i i i e e e e e (23,694)  $34.55
QOutstanding at December 31,2006 ............ ... s, 778,535 $35.49

14. Related Party Transactions

~ The Company periodically engages in transactions for which CB Richard Ellis, Inc. acts as a broker. A relative
of one of the Company’s officers/Directors is an employee of CB Richard Ellis, Inc. For the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 this relative received brokerage commissions in the amount of $341, $285
and $29, respectively.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

) In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in legal actions arising from the ownership of its

properties. In management’s opinion, the liabilities, if any, that may ultimately result from such legal actions are not
expected to have a materially adverse effect on the consolidated financial position, operations or liquidity of the
Company. .

Twelve properties have leases granting the tenants options to purchase the property. Such options are
exercisable at various times at appraised fair market value or at a fixed purchase price in excess of the Company’s
depreciated cost of the asset. The Company has no notice of any exercise of any tenant purchase option.

The Company has committed to the construction of certain industrial propentiies totaling approximately
3.2 million square feet (unaudited) of GLA. The estimated total construction costs are approximately $168,614
(unaudited). Of this amount, approximately $101,050 (unaudited) remains to be funded. There can be no assurance
that the actual completion cost will not exceed the estimated completion cost stated above.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had 23 other letters of credit outstanding in the aggregate amount of
$9,012. These letters of credit expire between March 31, 2007 and January 13, 2010.
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Ground and Operating Lease Agreements

Future minimum rental payments under the terms of all non-cancelable ground and operating leases under
which the Company is the lessee, as of December 31, 2000, are as follows:

2007 e e e e e e e $ 2,561
2008 . . 2,433
2000 L e e e e e e e 1,984
7.0 1 1 1,789
(1 1 1 OO 1,715
7 (=T T 31,167
- | P $41,649

16. Subsequent Events

On January 2, 2007, the Company paid fourth quarter 2006 dividends of $53.91 per share ($0.5391 per
Depositary Share) on its Series C Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $1,078; a dividend of
$4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series J Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate,
approximately $2,719; and a dividend of $4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series K
Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $906.

On January 22, 2007, the Company and the Operating Partnership paid a fourth quarter 2006 distribution of
$.7100 per common sharefunit, totaling approximately $36,613.

On February 28, 2007, the Company declared a first quarter 2007 distribution of $.7100 per common share/unit
on its common stock/units which is payable on April 16, 2007. The Company alsc declared first quarter 2007
dividends of $53.91 per share ($0.5391 per Depositary Share), on its Series C Preferred Stock, totaling, in the
aggregate, approximately $1,078, which is payable on April 2, 2007; semi-annual dividends of $3,118.00 per share
($31.1800 per Depositary Share) on its Series F Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $1,559,
which is payable on April 2, 2007; semi-annual dividends of $3,618.00 per share ($36.1800 per Depositary Share)
on its Series G Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $905, which is payable on April 2, 2007; a
dividend of $4,531.30 per share ($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series J Preferred Stock, totaling, in the
aggregate, approximately $2,719, which is payable on April 2, 2007; and a dividend of $4,531.30 per share
($0.4531 per Depositary Share) on its Series K Preferred Stock, totaling, in the aggregate, approximately $906,
which is payable on April 2, 2007,

From January 1, 2007 to February 22, 2007, the Company awarded 1,598 shares of restricted common stock to
certain Directors. These shares of restricted common stock had a fair value of approximately $73 on the date of
grant. The restricted common stock vests over a period of five years. Compensation expense will be charged to
earnings over the respective vesting period.

From January 1, 2007 to February 22, 2007, the Company acquired 55 industrial properties (including 41
properties in connection with the purchase of the 90% equity interest from the institutional investor in the
September 1998 Joint Venture on January 31, 2007) and several land parcels for a total estimated investment of
approximately $135,937. The Company also sold 14 industrial properties for approximately $74,430 of gross
proceeds during this period.
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17. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

The following table summarizes quarterly financial information of the Company. The first, second and third
fiscal quarters of 2006 and all fiscal quarters in 2005 have been revised in accordance with FAS 144,

Net income available to common stockholders and basic and diluted EPS from net income available to
common stockholders has not been affected.

Year Ended December 31, 2006

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Total ReVenUes . . ..o i et et e e e enen s $90,591 $94487 $97,512 $113,446
Equity in Income (Loss) of Joint Ventures . . ... ... (34} 7,307 4,747 18,654
Minority Interest Allocable to Continuing

Operations. . ... ..o ier i e 2,916 2,231 2,892 1,756
Loss from Continuing Operations, Net of Income i

Tax and Minority Interest .................. (13,754)  (10,635)  (14,063) (5,325)
Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of '

Income Tax. .........coiiiniennnnnnn... 41,284 47,874 48,190 37,869
Minority Interest Allocable to Discontinued '

Operalions ..........c..cunriiiinnnenn.. (5,442) (6,228) (6,260) (4,866)
Gain on Sale of Real Estate, Net of Income Tax . .. 982 1,475 1,729 (234)
Minority Interest Allocable to (Gain) Loss Sale of ‘

Real Estate . ......... ... ... ... iiiiinnn. (127) (192) (225) 30
NetIncome. ........cciiiiinininninneeennns 22,943 32294 29,371 27474
Preferred Stock Dividends. ................... (5,019) (5,029) (5,442) (5,934)
Less: Redemption of Preferred Stock............ (672) — -— —
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders. ... $17252  $27265 ~ §23,929 .§ 21,540
Basic Earnings Per Share: : .

Loss From Continuing Operations . ........... $ (042) § (033 § (04D § (0.26)

Income from Discontinued Operations .. .. ... .. $ 082 § 095 $ 095 § 0I5

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders . . $ 039 § 062 § 054 §$ 049

Weighted Avérage Shares Outstanding . .. ... ... 43,887 44,006 44,032 44,118
Diluted Earnings Per Share; | _ o

Loss From Continuing Operations .. .......... $ (042) § (033 & 041y $ (0.26)

Income from Discontinued Operations .. .. ... .. $ 082 § 095 § 095 3% 075

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders.. $ 039 § 062 $ 054 $ 049

Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding . ........ 43,887 44,006 44,032 44,118
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Total Revenues ... ...... P
Equity in (Loss) Income of Joint Ventures .........

Minority Interest Allocable to Continuing
Operations . . . ...ttt

Loss from Continuing Operations, Net of Income Tax
and Minority Interest . ......................

Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income

Minority Interest Allocable to Discontinued
Operations . ... ...t

‘Gain on Sale of Real Estate, Net of Income Tax ... ..

Minority Interest Allocable to Gain on Sale of Real
Estate .........conivinvnnnnn e

NetIncome ..........cooneven. e
Preferred Stock Dividends . ....................

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders . .. ..

Basic Earnings Per Share:
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations ... ...

Income From Discontinued Operations . .........
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders . . .
Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding ..........

Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations ... ...

Income From Discontinued Operations . .........
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders . . .

Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding ..........
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Year Ended December 31, 2005

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$73,267 $ 72,365 $88,861 $ 91,037

(122) (98) 3,978 59

1,724 1,954 1,854 2,448
(9,238) (10,828) (9,901) (12,457)
15,714 35,666 36,943 42,155
(2,053) (4,665) (4,880} (5,573)
13,780 1,818 1,538 1,543
(1,813) (238) (203) (204)
16,390 21,753 . 23,497 25,464
(2,310) (2,310} (2,310 (3,758)
$14,080 $ 19,443 $21,187  $ 21,706
$ 0.01 $ 027 $ 0260 $ (035
$ 032 §$§ 0.73 $ 0.735 $ 0385
$ 033 $ 046 $ 050 $ 051
42,158 42,285 42,468 - 42806
$ 001 $ 027y $ (0260 $ (0.35
$ 032 % 073 $ 0.75 $ 085
$ 033 $ 046 $ 050 § 0.5
42,466 42,285 42 468 42,806
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18. Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)

The following Pro Forma Condensed Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 (the “Pro Forma Statements™) are presented as if the acquisition of 56 operating industrial properties between
January 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006 had occurred at the beginning of each year. The Pro Forma Statements do
not include acquisitions between January 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006 for industrial properties that were vacant
upon purchase, were leased back to the sellers upon purchase or were subsequently sold before December 31, 2006.
The Pro Forma Condensed Statements of Operaticns include alt necessary adjustments to reflect the occurrence of
purchases and sales of properties during 2006 as of January 1, 2006 and 2005,

The Pro Forma Statements are not necessarily indicative of what the Company’s results of operations would
have been for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, nor do they purpert to present the future results of
operations of the Company.

Pro Forma Condensed Statements of Operations

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
ProForma RevenUEs . ... oottt ittt ittt e $409,229 $355,126
Pro Forma Loss from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Stockholders, Net of Minority Interest and Income Taxes.......... $(58,391) $(36,017)
Pro Forma Net Income Available to Common Stockholders. . . .. Lot $.94,029 $ 77,290
Per Share Data:
Basic Earnings Per Share Data:
Income from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Stockholders. .. ... ... i i e e $ (3D $ (0.85)
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders .. .............. $ 2.4 $ -1.82
Diluted Earnings Per Share Data:
Income from Continuing Operations Available to Common ‘
Stockholders. .. ... ... L e 5 a3n $  (0.85)
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders ................ $ 214 $ 182

The following Pro Forma Condensed Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 (the “Pro Forma Statements™) are presenied as if the acquisition of 73 operating industrial properties between
January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2005 had occurred at the beginning of each year. The Pro Forma Statements do
not include acquisitions between January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2005 for industrial properties that were vacant
upon purchase, were leased back to the sellers upon purchase or were subsequently sold before December 31, 2005.
The Pro Forma Condensed Statements of Operations include all necessary adjustments to reflect the occurrence of
purchases and sales of properties during 2005 as of January 1, 2005 and 2004.
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The Pro Forma Statements are not necessarily indicative of what the Company’s results of operations would
have been for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, nor do they purport to present the future results of
operations of the Company.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2005 2004
ProForma REVenues . .........cu v n e rnannennnanss $390,716 $329,152
Pro Forma (Loss) Income from Continuing Operations Available to
Common Stockholders, Net of Minority Interest and Income Taxes . . (16,869) 17,661
Pro Forma Net Income Available to Common Stockholders. .. .... ... 85,580 100,982
Per Share Data: )
Basic Earnings Per Share Data:
Income from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Stockholers. . ...t e e $ (040) $ 044
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders . ............... $ 202 $ 249
Diluted Earnings Per Share Data: '
Income from Continuing Operations Available to Common
SIOCKNOIdErS . . o ot o e e $  (040) $ 043
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders .. ... .. e $ 202 $ 247
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
SCHEDULE HI:
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As Of December 31, 2006

NOTES:

(a) See description of encumbrances in Note 5 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) Initial cost for each respective property is langible purchase price allocated in accordance with SFAS No. 141.
(c) Comprised of two properties.

(d) Comprised of three properties.

(e) Comprised of four properties.

(fy Comprised of 28 properties.

(g) These properties represent developable land and redevelopments that have not been placed in service.

(h) Improvements are net of write-off of fully depreciated assets.

(j} Property is not in-service as of December 31, 2006.

(k)
Gross Amount
Amounts Carried AL
Included Amounts Within Close of Period
in Real Estate Net Investment December 31,
Held for Sale in Real Estate 2006
Land .. .. ... i e e e $ 16,229 $ 558,425 $ 574,654
Buildings & Improvements . . . ................ 88,465 2,626,284 2,714,749
Accumulated Depreciation . .................. (8,464) (465,418) (473,882)
Subtotal . .......... . e, 96,230 2,719,291 2,815,521
Construction in Progress . ................. .. 6,960 35,019 41,979
Leasing Commissions, Net and Deferred Leasing
Intangibles . ... ... ... ... . o it 12,771 — 12,771
Total at December 31,2006 .................. $115,961 $2,754,310 $2,870,271

(I This property collateralizes a $3.0 million mortgage loan which matures on May 1, 2016.

(m) This property collateralizes a $15.2 million mortgage loan which matures on December 1, 2010.
(n) This property collateralizes a $5.1 million mortgage loan which matures on December 1, 2019.
(o) This property collateralizes a $1.6 million mortgage loan which matures on January 1, 2013.

(p) These properties collateralize a $1.8 million mortgage loan which matures on September 1, 2009.
(q) This property collateralizes a $2.4 million mortgage loan which matures on January 1, 2012.

(r) This property collateralizes a $1.9 million mortgage loan which matures on June 1, 2014.

(s) This property collateralizes a $5.3 million mortgage loan which matures on December 1, 2019.
() This property collateralizes a $1.9 million morgage loan which matures on September 30, 2024.
(u) This property collateralizes a $6.7 million mortgage loan which matures on March 1, 2011.

(v) This property collateralizes a $14.2 million mortgage loan and a $12.0 million mortgage loan which both
mature on January 1, 2014.

(w) These properties collateralize a $6.0 million mortgage loan which matures on July 1, 2009.
(x) This property collateralizes a $0.8 million mortgage loan which matures on February 1, 2017.
(¥} Comprised of five properties. )

{z) Comprised of six properties.

(aa) Comprised of 8 properties.

At December 31, 2006, the aggregate cost of land and buildings and equipment for federal income tax purpose
was approximately $3.1 billion (excluding construction in progress.)
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FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

SCHEDULE III: _
REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (continued)
As of December 31, 2006

The changes in total real estate assets for the three years ended December 31, 2006 are as follows;

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance, Beginning of Year . ........ .. ... ... ... ... ..., $3,278,740  $2910468  $2,738,034
Acquisition, Construction Costs and Improvements . ... ......... 763,571 875,028 508,572
Disposition of AsSsels . ... ... ... . e (693,159) (473,743) (313,940)
Write-off of Fully Depreciated Assets. . ..................... (17,770) (33,013) (22,198)
Balance, Endof Year . .. .. ... . i e $3,331,382  $3,278,740  $2,910,468

The changes in accumulated depreciation for the three years ended December 31, 2006 are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Balance, Beginning of Year ... $412,039  $381,297 $349,252
Depreciation for Year . .. ... i i i 121,347 99,338 82,757
Disposition of Assets .. ................. e e e (41,734) (35,946) (28,514
Write-off of Fully Depreciated Assets. ................0ccviu.n. (17,770) (32,650) (22,198)
Balance, End of Year .. ... .. it et e $473.882 $412,039  $381,297
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MARKET INFORMATION

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing prices per share and
distributions declared per share for the Company’s common stock, which trades on the New York Stock Exchange
under the trading symbol “FR".

Quarter Ended _High Low Distribution Declared
December 31,2006 . . ..ottt e $50.52 $43.70 $0.7100
September 30,2006. .......... .. ... .. ... e $44.25 $37.25 $0.7000
June 30, 2000 . . .. c i i i i i it $41.79  $36.50 $0.7000
March 31,2006, .. . oot e i e $43.24 $37.73 $0.7000
December 31, 2005 . . . .t ittt e $41.82  $37.79 $0.7000
September 30,2005. . ... ... . $41.80 $37.20 $0.6950
June 30, 2005 . . . ..o e e $42.16  $37.35 $0.6950
March 31,2005, . . .. .o e e et $42.65 §37.83 $0.6950

The Company had 713 common stockholders of record registered with its transfer agent as of March 20, 2007.
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Performance Graph*

The following graph provides a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return among the Company,
the NAREIT Equity REIT Total Return Index (the “NAREIT Index”), an industry index which, as of December 31,
2006, was comprised of 130 tax-qualified equity REITs (including the Company), and the Standard & Poor’s 500
Index (“S&P 5007). The comparison is for the period from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2006 and assumes
the reinvestment of any dividends. The closing price for the Company’s Common Stock quoted on the NYSE at the
close of business on December 31, 2001 was $31.10 per share. The NAREIT Index includes REITs with 75% or
more of their gross invested book value of assets invested directly or indirectly in the equity ownership of real estate.
Upon written request, the Company will provide stockholders with a list of the REITs included in the NAREIT
Index. The historical information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of future performance. The following
graph was prepared at the Company’s request by Research Data Group, Inc., San Francisco, California.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

N =
o o

$200 / /
5150 /ﬁ/ \
‘ N
$50
$0 I T T T
12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06
—{— First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc. —— S&P 500 —0O— NAREIT
12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06
FIRST INDUSTRIAL REALTY TRUST, INC. $100 $98 8129 3167 8169 3220
S&P 500 100 78 100 111 117 135
NAREIT 100 104 142 187 210 284

* The information provided in this performance graph shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material,” to be “filed”
or to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act of 1934
unless specifically treated as such.
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CORPORATE AND STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Michael W. Brennan
President and Chief Executive Officer

Michael J. Havala
Chief Financial Officer

Johannson L. Yap
Chief Investment Officer

David P. Draft
Executive Vice President, Operations

Gerald A. Pientka
Executive Vice President, Development

David G. Harker
Executive Director, Investments

Patrick R. Hunt
Executive Director, Joint Ventures

Christopher M. Schneider
Chief Information Officer

Scott A. Musil
Chief Accounting Officer; Treasurer and
Assistant Secretary

Sean P. O’Neill
Senior Vice President, Investor Relations and
Corporate Communications

Brigitte Janos Brozenec
Chief Marketing Officer

Susan L. Piis
Vice President, Organizational Development

John H. Clayton
Vice President — Corporate Legal, Secretary

DIRECTORS

Jay H. Shidler}

Chairman

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.
Managing Partner -

The Shidler Group

Chairman

Corporate Office Properties Trust

Michael W. Brennani .
President and Chief Executive Officer
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.
Director

Strategic Hotels & Resorts, Inc.

Michael G. Damoned
Director of Strategic Planning
First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

Kevin W, Lynch*§

Principal

The Townsend Group

Director

Lexington Corporate Properties

Robert D. Newman
Principal and Member of Executive Committee
William Blair & Company, LLC

John Rau*

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Miami Corporation

Director

LaSalle Bank, N.A.

Nicor Inc.

Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company

Robert I. Slater§
President
Jackson Consulting, Inc.

W. Ed Tyleris

Chief Executive Officer

Ideapoint Ventures

Former Chief Executive Officer and Director
Moore Corporation Limited

J. Steven Wilson*§1

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Riverside Group, Inc.

President

Advanced Building Products & Services, LLC

§ Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committee

Compensation Commitice

Audit Committee

Investment Committee

+t+ ¥
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CORPORATE AND STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Executive Office

Corporate Office

First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.
311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 4000
Chicago, IL 60606

Phone: 312.344.4300

Fax: 312.922.6320
www_firstindustrial.com .

info@ firstindustrial.com

Stock Exchange Listing
New York Steck Exchange
Symbol: FR

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43078

Providence, RI 02940-3078
800.446.2617

Independent Registered Public Accouhting Firm
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, Illinois

General Counsel
Cahill Gordon & Reindel LLP
New York, New York

Barack Ferrazzano Kirschbaum
Perlman & Nagelberg LLP
Chicago, Illingis

10-K Report

A copy of the Company’s Form 10-K as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission is available on
the Company’s Web site and may also be obtained by
contacting the Senior Vice President of Investor Rela-
tions and Corporate Communications, First Industrial
Realty Trust, Inc. Included in such report were the
certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act. :

NYSE Annual CEQ Certification
In May 2006, the Company submitted to the NYSE its
Annual CEQ Certification.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of First Indus-
trial Realty Trust, Inc., will be held on Wednesday,
May 16, 2007, at 9:00 A.M. CDT at The Chicago Club,
Robert Todd Lincoln Room — 2nd Floor, 81 East Van
Buren, Chicago, Illinois.

To contact First Industrial’s Audit Committee:
Chairman of the Audit Committee

¢/o First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 4000
Chicago, IL 60606

To contact First Industrial's Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee:

Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee

¢/o First Industrial Realty Trust, Inc.

311 South Wacker Drive, Suite 4000

Chicago, IL 60606
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